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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FIEHEE

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
Operating results (HK$'000) REEE(THER)
Revenue L'ON 4,263,322 4,183,786
Gross profit EH 772,043 829,197
Profit before tax BR 35 A& A 27,586 58,242
Profit for the year F R A 4,842 50,785
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of AARHEAAN
the Company FEMEF R (B8 & (5,801) 39,674
Financial position (HK$’000) BMBEMRR (FET)
Total assets BEE 2,903,219 2,883,172
Net current assets MENEEFR 531,100 388,425
Bank borrowings RITER 873,757 736,054
Net assets BEEFE 1,225,843 1,309,466
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company RARHEBEAEREEFE 1,079,429 [,155,030
Per share data (HK cents) SRHE (BL)
Dividend per share FRRAR B
— Interim —h H _ _
— Final —KH = 10
~Total — 5t - 10
(Loss) earning per share Bk (&E18) &2H
— Basic —&EXR (0.33) 227
- Diluted —#E (0.33) 227
Net assets value per share BREERE 70.0 748
Share price as at 31 December RI2A3IBRRE 40.0 70.0
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

2018 2017
2018%F 20174

Key statistics TEYE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 18.1% 19.8%
Net profit margin (%) I (%) 0.1% 1.2%
Inventory turnover (days) FERBXE (XE) 63.3 629
Debtors' turnover (days) B AR EEXE (K80 68.4 64.0
Creditors' turnover (days) BREANEERE (XE) 47.8 515
Payout ratio (%) KB %K (%) N/A RiE R 34.5%
Dividend yield (%) % B U 2 3 (%) N/A RiE A 1.4%
Return on total assets (%) R E R R E (%) 0.2% 1.8%
Return on net assets (%) BEFEERE %) 0.4% 39%
Gearing ratio (%) BE BB E %) 71.3% 56.2%
Current ratio (%) B L (%) 141.1% 128.8%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERIE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Sinomax Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (altogether, the “Group”), | have the great
pleasure of presenting to you our annual report for the financial year ended 31 December

2018 (the "Reporting Period”).

2018 was a dynamic and challenging year. Facing the uncertainty of the potential antidumping
duty and the US-China and US-Canada trade wars, we responded quickly to re-align the
production locations of our products to minimize the impacts. As a long-term strategy, we have
decided to set up new production facilities in Vietnam which would produce foam as well as

consumer health products.

Upon completion of the set-up of the new production facilities in Vietnam and with the
presence of production facilities in both the US and the PRC, we are able to provide global

supply chain solutions to our customers effectively.

The global economy will be highly dynamic in the coming year. We will closely monitor the
latest developments and will continue to focus on the PRC and the US markets. Embracing
the new era of technology, our Group will deploy more resources to provide more innovative

products so as to capture the customer needs.
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Moving forward to 2019, we will continue to make good use of our existing strengths and
capture the opportunities in the growing of the “Mattress-in-a-Box" market, and diversify our
customer base in order to maintain our position as one of the leading experts in visco-elastic

health and wellness products in the US and the retail markets in Hong Kong and the PRC.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff members for
their dedication to the Group and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),

valued customers, suppliers, bankers and other business partners for their continuous support.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

27 March 2019

Lam Chi Fan k&N,

=
»>
Chairman EH K ‘(
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERED

Revenue by operating segments BREESTEDHBA

During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$79.5 RBESR REBNKAERNISBEE

million or approximately 1.9% to approximately HK$4,263.3 million (for the year ended 31 TLE AT 9%E 41426338 BB T (B E2017
December 2017 ("FY2017"): HK$4,183.8 million). FNRANBLEFE ([2017TFHBFE])

4,1838B 8B T) °

For the year ended 3| December

BZNANBLEE

2018 2017 Changes

2018%F 2017 b4
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

THET FHET

China market h BT 5 2,554,284 2,336,373 93
North American market tEM5 1,658,133 | 754,104 (5.5)
Europe and other overseas markets BUM R H A 8 5T 35 50,905 93,309 (45.5)
Total @t 4,263,322 4183786 19

The sales in China market increased by approximately 9.3% as a result of the increase in the BT 5 RO SH B I IN499.3% TR S
market share of foam sales. BT 35 0 REIE AT 3R

As there was a delay in a sales project with a customer in the US, sales to North American HREEEEPH—[EHEERTE §m
market recorded an approximate decrease of 5.5% for the Reporting Period. IEETIH R SHE R RS SRS R #5.5%

@

WAVES RN LS F YV TERE A B)i
REHRG%ItR 2 HER D H45.4% °

The general economy in Europe and other overseas markets was weak and we recorded a

misid

decrease of sales in this region of approximately 45.4% for the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit

Despite an increase of approximately 1.9% in the Group's revenue, the Group’s gross profit
(the “GP") decreased by approximately HK$57.2 million or 6.9% to approximately HK$772.0
million during the Reporting Period as compared to approximately HK$829.2 million for
FY2017.The GP margin decreased by 1.7% from approximately 19.8% to approximately 18.1%

as compared with FY2017.The major reasons for the decrease in the GP margin were:

(1) the significant increase in cost incurred in the trial run of production in the Group's

factory located in the US; and

(2)  the significant increase in the purchase price of a key raw material of polyurethane
foam, namely toluene diisocyanate (“TDI") during the Reporting Period, as compared

with the same period last year.

Costs and expenses

Selling and distribution costs for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately HK$19.5
million or 4.1% to approximately HK$453.3 million, as compared to approximately HK$472.8
million for FY2017. The decrease was mainly due to the reclassification of royalty fee
amounting to HK$19.7 million previously recorded as selling expenses but now recorded as
cost of goods sold of HK$9.4 million and net of sales of HK$10.3 million for the Reporting
Period.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period increased by approximately HK$0.5 million
or 0.2% to approximately HK$217.5 million, as compared to approximately HK$217.0 million
for FY2017.

Other expenses for the Reporting Period consisted mainly of research and development
expenses amounting to approximately HK$70.4 million, as compared to approximately

HK$77.4 million for FY2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WED

Profit for the year

Profit for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately HK$46.0 million or 90.6% to
approximately HK$4.8 million, as compared to approximately HK$50.8 million for FY2017.

The major reasons for the decrease in profit were:

(I net loss incurred on the trial run for the US production facility of HK$69.1 million;

(2)  the significant increase in the cost of our key raw material as mentioned above; and

(3)  additional import duties imposed on shipments for goods due to the outbreak of the

U.S.-China and the US.-Canada trade wars.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$531.1

million, as compared to approximately HK$388.4 million as at 3| December 2017.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$2,156.5 million of which approximately HK$959.9 million was utilized (as at 31 December
2017: banking facilities amounting to approximately HK$1,598.4 million of which approximately

HK$827.5 million was utilized) (which included unsecured bank borrowings and bills payables).

Bills payables were secured by pledged bank deposits of Nil as at 3| December 2018 (FY2017:

HK$2.9 million) and guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately
HK$46.0 million mainly for the purchase of the Group's plant and machinery (FY2017:
HK135.4 million).

Financial ratios

BEEFNWED

EARx

REMAEBENEARATH B460A B E
T ITEARBEALEENRBE LK
(017FEHBFEE 13548 887T) °

g da s

As at

i
3| December 31 December
2018 2017
2018128318 2017F12A318

Current ratio () T &R ()

Quick ratio @ FE RO

Gearing ratio © BEGELHEO
Debt to equity ratio ESERERE RO

(1) Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

(2)  Quick ratio is equal to current assets less inventories and divided by current liabilities.

(3)  Gearing ratio is derived by dividing interest-bearing debt incurred in the ordinary course of

business by total equity.

(4)  Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is defined to

include all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents.

141.1% 128.8%
100.0% 78.4%
71.3% 56.2%
52.2% 44.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WED

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Sinomax International Trading Limited (the
"Sinomax Trading”), as borrower and the Company as guarantor had entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited, OCBC Wing Hang
Bank Limited and United Overseas Bank Limited as lenders and mandated lead arrangers, and
Hang Seng Bank Limited as agent and security trustee, in respect of term loan facilities of up
to the aggregate principal amount of US$35 million and HK$273 million (the “Loan Facilities™)
with a final maturity date falling thirty-six months after the date of the Facility Agreement (the
outstanding loan balances were US$16.7 million and HK$273 million as at 31 December
2018). It is provided in the Facility Agreement, among other things, that an event of default
will occur if, without the prior consent of the majority of the lenders: (i) Sinomax Enterprises
Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, ceases to
maintain (directly or indirectly) at least 51% of the entire beneficial ownership interest in
the Company; (i) the following persons cease to collectively maintain/retain (directly or
indirectly) at least 51% beneficial ownership interest over the entire issued share capital
of Sinomax Enterprises: (a) Mr. Lam Chi Fan; (b) Mr. Cheung Tung; (c) any parent, spouse,
child, brother or sister of the persons referred to in (a) and (b) above; and (d) any trust whose
principal beneficiary(ies) is any one or more of the persons referred to under (a) to (c) above;
(i) Mr. Lam Chi Fan ceases to be the chairman of the Board; or (iv) Mr Lam Chi Fan ceases to

maintain control over the management and business of the Company.

Failure to comply with any of the said obligations regarding control of the Company will
trigger an event of default under the Facility Agreement which may result in, inter
alia, the cancellation of all or any part of the commitments under the Facility
Agreement and all or part of the loans under the Loan Facilities becoming immediately due

and payable or becoming payable on demand.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group carries on business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and the US. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk principally in Renminbi which can be largely offset by
its revenue and expenditure in the PRC. The Group does not expect any appreciation or
depreciation of the Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi which could materially affect the
Group's results on operations, and therefore no hedging instrument has been employed. The
Group will closely monitor the trend of the Renminbi and take appropriate measures to deal

with the foreign exchange exposure if necessary.

TREASURY POLICY AND MARKET RISKS

The Group has a treasury policy that aims to better control its treasury operations and lower
borrowing cost. Such treasury policy requires the Group to maintain an adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents, and sufficient available banking facilities to finance the Group's daily
operations and to address short term funding needs. The Group reviews and evaluates its

treasury policy from time to time to ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

PROSPECTS

The US-China and the US-Canada trade wars have created uncertainties over our US business
in 2018. In addition, an antidumping investigation has been initiated in the mattress industry
in the US for mattresses imported from China. At this stage, we may not be able to foresee
the final outcome of the trade wars and antidumping investigation. To cope with the above,
the Group has decided to set up production facilities in Vietnam. We expect the production
facilities in Vietnam would provide polyurethane foam to our customers in the Southeast Asia
regions in the third quarter of 2019.The Vietnam production facilities would also produce end
consumer health products. With factories located in China, the US and Vietnam, we would be
able to supply globally to our customers with various needs with the flexibility in arranging our
production and logistics schedules to minimise the overall costs including production, tariff and

transportation.

BEEFNWED

SME LR

AREXTBRHEERE TERXBELEXRR-
AKERTFETIEEHARENIMNERKR
i It 72 B B R AT B WS AR - AR E TR
METLHARBIHERRETSHASEN
ReXEELENEARE AMLERA
EAER TR AEEKETTEEARY
ES BERRRIVEE N E A B EIMNE
Rl -

ERHRR SRR

AEERAEBRE 5 HEERRLEHE
BEEERREEERA ZEEBHEKRE
RAGEEEFRAKINAS KRS EFE
W ARFEANABHRTRE  ABAA
SERRLENENEHESRR A&H
TR RTEEBEE NERERRR
BARIEE -

Az

=

gl

REREMEFBRER0IFHAEE 2 X
B RS ER T REE M bk EBREBRED
RETREOZKRBERARBHEAE -RNR
BB REBSRERAE B R RIEHS
BYRERER REYLAEE ARED
RERBERILERE A EERGME
HEERESR019FF=FERAAEENR
MG BRPHERAELK BHLEE
REMBEERRBEERRER BRELE
BARAE XBEREH2BE AEEK
RARERABTRABEZEPHEER
BEASEABELHEERYRERE A
EERERRLE BUNERENCER
R o

BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERED

Instead of relying on several key customers, we are diversifying our customer base by
developing more new customers in the US. Sales to these customers are gradually increasing

over the past months.We are expecting a continuing growth in the year of 2019.

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Gross profit” above, the price of TDI increased
significantly during the Reporting Period. Strategically, we did not wholly transfer cost increase
to our customers. As a result, we were able to obtain a larger market share of foam sales
despite the drop in our GP This was evidenced by the increase in sales of approximately 9.3%
in China market for the Reporting Period, as compared with the same period last year. We
believe a larger market share will generate more sales and profit for the Group in the long
run.We expect the price of TDI will become stable with a greater supply of TDI in the market
from the fourth quarter of 2018.

In the China market, the Group offers a wide range of health and household products, under
its flagship brand “SINOMAX". The Group will further enhance brand management through
various marketing activities to reinforce brand recognition and enhance the image of health,
relaxation and comfort of the “SINOMAX" brand. Sales under the brands “Octaspring”, “SPA
Supreme” and “Zeopedic” increased steadily during the Reporting Period. The Group will
continue to promote its brands and products to corporate customers so as to attract more
corporate sales. Though the e-commerce sales of the Group recorded a drop in 2018, we will

continue to deploy more resources to strengthen our sales through e-commence.

The Group will continue to upgrade the machinery so as to improve the production efficiency

and increase the competitiveness of the Group.

AEEERNERMRESHEFPUZ T
BFRAZPER MIEKBEERIZRF-
MZEREFPZHERBEHABRLSEM R
EEEHER09FHERR -

MEXTEM] Bt TOUERRHREH
PIARIE £ 7t SRAE b R B |ATACAR |
FeREETEF -Ei BEENTA
HEAKE R RGEARARHETN GO -
EARBREPAETETHHOHEEREFR
HIRRA9I%BIAENE - AR EMRE EX
MHSENERNREMNE HERARETRE
ZHERGEN AEERME0I18FFENF
e T35 EHOTDIH G 0 < TDIR) B A

AEELER DI [SINOMAX | TER B T35
REBERZOREERRXEER A&EK
EZEMSHERERE—FTRAREER
VA D38 fh K8 28 0 DA B4R 7T [ SINOMAX |
mMEHER BRATFEFRR BEH
M+ [Octaspring ] * [SPA Supreme | &
[Zeopedic | mEETHHEERBER K A
EEMBERCERPHEREMBERER
ARSI EZREEE - BEASBLEFE
BHER0ISFHRE Y EAKEHEE
BRHELZERNBRBEFRBIMAEHE-

AKBEREETRRE ARELEKELE
BERRBHEF S

OETASPRING MR

P T LT

Retail store in MegaBox

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

AMegaBoxH] T & 5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no

material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Prospects” above, the Group does not have other

plans for material investments or capital assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, there was no significant

event of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 3| December 2018, the employee headcount of the Group was 3,099 (as at 3l
December 2017: 3,422) and the total staff costs, including Directors' remuneration and share
option expenses, amounted to approximately HK$470.2 million for the Reporting Period
(FY2017: approximately HK$444.0 million). The significant increase in staff costs was primarily

due to salary increment.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate with industry practice
and provides various fringe benefits to employees including housing and travel allowances
depending on their grade and ranking within the Group. The Group also maintains medical
insurance for the benefit of its employees. The Group conducts induction training for all of its
new employees and on-going training from time to time during their employment. The nature
of training offered depends on their specific field of operation. The Group also operates an
employee incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the form of promotions, salary

raises and monetary bonuses, and a share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company who

held office during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAM Chi Fan, aged 60

Mr: Lam is a co-founder of the Group, the Chairman of the Group and an executive Director:
Mr. Lam is also the chairman of the Company's nomination committee and a member of
the Company's remuneration committee. Mr. Lam was appointed to the Board in June 2012.
Mr. Lam is responsible for formulation of the overall business strategies of the Group. He is
also responsible for the business planning and management of the Group. Mr: Lam is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years' experience in the
polyurethane foam business. Prior to founding the Group in January 2000, he was a director
of Luen Tai Component Limited, a company engaged in the sales of foam products, from
March 1991 to July 1996.He is a member of the |3th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Jiashan, Zhejiang Province Committee, the vice president of the Shau Kei Wan
District of the Scout Association of Hong Kong and an affiliated supervisor of the Huangpu
Customs of PRC and the president of the Dongguan City Tang Xia Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. Mr. Lam is the uncle of Mr Cheung Tung, the President and an
executive Director; the father of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the

Group; and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director.

CHEUNG Tung, aged 43

Mr. Cheung is the President of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined
the Group in 2003 as the Chairman’s assistant, responsible for handling the information
technology infrastructure of the Group. He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He is
currently responsible for the overall management and daily operations of the Group. He s also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung assisted
in setting up C&T Solutions Limited, a company engaged in providing information technology
services, in March 2000. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor's degree in computer engineering
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a master's degree in business
administration jointly issued by Northwestern University and the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Cheung was granted the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong
2014" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr: Cheung is a nephew of Mr. Lam Chi Fan,
the Chairman and an executive Director; a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director;

and a cousin of Mr: Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHEN Feng, aged 55

Mr. Chen is an executive Director. He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He
is responsible for the overall management of the export sales business and product
development of the Group. He is also the key executive in mapping the sales and marketing
strategies in the US through Sinomax USA Inc. (“Sinomax USA"). He is a director of certain
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group on in January 2000 as an export
sales manager and became the vice president of the Group in 2007. He assisted in setting up
Sinomax USA, a company engaging in export sales in the US, and has been the president and
director of Sinomax USA since its establishment in 2005. Mr. Chen holds a Master of Science
degree in industrial engineering from Louisiana State University and a Bachelor of Engineering
degree in safety engineering from Beijing College of Economics, now known as Capital
University of Economics and Business. Mr: Chen is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man,

an executive Director.

LAM Kam Cheung, aged 51

Mr. Lam is an executive Director, chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company.
Mr: Lam joined the Group in May 2004 as the financial controller and was appointed to the
Board in June 2012. He was appointed as the chief financial officer in August 2013 and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. Mr: Lam has over 20 years' experience
in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he was an executive director and
company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0259), a listed public
company in Hong Kong, from October 1995 to May 2004. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor's degree
in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

LAM Fei Man, aged 44

Ms. Lam is an executive Director. She is responsible for the Group's purchasing operations. She
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lam joined the Group in January
2000 and served as the assistant administration manager of Sinomax (Holding) Group Limited,
a predecessor company of Sinomax Enterprises, until January 2003. She was appointed to the
Board in June 2012, Ms. Lam has over |8 years” experience in purchasing and logistics. She
holds a bachelor's degree in commerce jointly issued by the University of Canberra and the
Hong Kong Baptist University. Ms. Lam is a cousin of Mr Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an executive

Director; and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG Chi Keung, aged 52

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
and corporate governance committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr: Wong was appointed to the Board in 4 March 2014. Mr.Wong is currently an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3322), a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was previously the chief financial
officer of Besunyen Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 0926) from September 201 | to
September 2013 and China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from May 2007
to April 2010, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Between June 2002 and
June 2006, Mr: Wong was a senior finance manager of China Netcom Group Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (a company previously listed in Hong Kong (former stock code: 0906)
which subsequently merged with China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 0762),
a listed public company in Hong Kong). Between July 1989 and December 1999, Mr. Wong
was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international public accounting firm, in Hong
Kong as an audit manager Mr. Wong holds a bachelor's degree in business administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in business administration
from the Australian Graduate School of Management, jointly issued by the University of New
South Wales and the University of Sydney. Mr.Wong is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon, aged 60

Professor Lam is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
corporate governance committee of the Company. Professor Lam is the Professor of
Management and Strategy at the Faculty of Business and Economics, The University of Hong
Kong. He is also Head of the Faculty's Management and Strategy Area, Director of the Centre
of Asian Entrepreneurship and Business Values and lan Davies Endowed Professor in Ethics.
Before joining the University of Hong Kong, Professor Lam had worked as a management
consultant and as a regional manager for a bank. He has gained extensive experience in the
area of corporate governance, strategy development and corporate finance. Professor Lam
is the independent non-executive director of Kwan On Holdings Limited (listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01559) and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings
Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 03366). Professor Lam is
also the non-executive director of Jacobson Pharma Corporation Limited (listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02633).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FAN Chun Wah Andrew, .P, aged 40

Mr: Fan is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee, the
corporate governance committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fan
was appointed to the Board in March 2014. He is a managing director of Fan, Mitchell & Co,,
Limited and C.W. Fan & Co. Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Chuang's China Investments Limited (stock code: 298), CNC Holdings Limited (stock code:
8356), Culturecom Holdings Limited (stock code: 343), Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1443), Nameson Holdings Limited (stock code: 1982), Omnibridge Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8462), Sanbase Corporation Limited (stock code: 8501), Space Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2448), all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Fan
was appointed as the chairman of the 23rd council of Hong Kong United Youth Association
with effect from | July 2015. He is also a committee member of the [0th, | Ith and [2th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Zhejiang Province Committee, the 4th and
5th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen Committee, member of
HKSAR Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education, HKSAR Justices of the Peace and
the vice chairman of Zhejiang Province United Young Association. Mr. Fan holds a bachelor's
degree in business administration in accounting and finance from the University of Hong Kong
and a bachelor's degree in laws from the University of London. Mr: Fan is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

ZHANG HWO Jie, aged 56 REE 565%

Mr Zhang is an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee RAEERARBBUFNTES EREE
and the corporate governance committee of the Company. Mr Zhang was appointed to ERERPEERZEGRE -RAELERN
the Board in March 2014. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of EVA Precision Industrial WI4FIARZEMAESS - RAEERESR
Holdings Limited (stock code: 838), a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr: Zhang has more B ITRARARENEE IEZERARAR]
than 20 years of experience in marketing, strategic planning and corporate management in (BRAREE - 838) ETE « ROTEERIEERH
manufacturing industry. Mr. Zhang was granted with the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong MZEHE EEREANCEERESHEER
Kong" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2008, and was bestowed as an honorary 0F BB REERBFREBTET£4
fellow by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in 2014. He is currently a RTH[EEEFFELERE]  WH204%F
honorary chairman of The Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, a honorary president BEATIXZXTERERREER L &
of Hong Kong Mould and Product Technology Association and an ex-officio advisor of Hong BRIAEREBHEFHERELR BF
Kong Young Industrialists Council. BARERHERBERBERERREASE
TEXMEERER -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WU Tak Lung, aged 53

MrWu is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee and
the corporate governance committee of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed to the Board
in March 2014. Mr.Wu had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an international accounting
firm, for five years and had worked in several companies in Hong Kong as head of corporate
finance and/or executive director. Mr. Wu had over 10 years experience in the corporate
finance field. Mr Wu currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Media Corporation Limited (stock code: 1000), China Machinery Engineering Corporation
(stock code: 1829), Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited (stock code: 6885), Kam Hing
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2307) all are listed public companies in Hong Kong,
and Olympic Circuit Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603920), a company listed in Shanghai.
Mr. Wu currently is the member of the committee of Jiangsu Provincial People’s Political
Consultative Conference, honorary member of the Council and the Court of Hong Kong
Baptist University, the honorary chairman of the North Kwai Chung Scout Association and the
executive vice-president of Hong Kong — GuangDong Youth Exchange Promotion Association.
Mr. Wu holds a bachelor's degree in business administration in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist University and a master's degree in business administration jointly issued by
the University of Manchester and the University of Wales. Mr.Wu is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and he is also a fellow member of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong Securities and

Investment Institute.

Moreover; in the past three years, MrWu was an independent non-executive director of Aupu
Group Holding Company, a then listed public company in Hong Kong which was delisted on
30 September 2016, Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited, a listed public in Hong
Kong company (stock code: 2277), First Tractor Company Limited, a listed public company in
both Hong Kong (stock code: 00038), and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601038),
and Sinotrans Shipping Limited, a then listed public company in Hong Kong which was delisted
on 16 January 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAM Sze Chiu, aged 36

Mr. Lam is the general manager of Sinohome Household Products (Shenzhen) Ltd (“Sinomax
Shenzhen"). He is responsible for the supervision of the daily operation of Sinomax Shenzhen.
Mr: Lam joined the Group in 2007 and has been working as the marketing director of the
Group from 2012 to 2016. He was responsible for developing and communicating marketing
strategies and coordinating marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Lam also participated in
the research and development of the Group's products, and the winner of German Red Dot
Design Award. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Arts degree with honours from York University in
Toronto, Canada. Mr. Lam was appointed as the chairman of The Youth Club of Hong Kong
Furniture Association with effect from 2017, the rotating chairman of the Youth Federation of
the Furniture and Decoration Industry Chamber of Commerce of the National Federation of

Industry and Commerce since 2018 and received the Outstanding Chinese Award.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

QIAN Hong Xiang, aged 55

Mr: Qian is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is responsible for the supervision
of the daily operation and management of Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited
("Sinomax Kuka"). Mr. Qian joined the Group in 2000 and worked as a general manager and
chief of foam research. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qian worked as a factory manager
and researcher in foams from 1993 to 2000 at Tung Ah (China Holdings) Limited, a company
engaged in the chemical and plastic business. Mr. Qian has over 20 years' experience in
foam production and research and has participated in formulating more than five national
standards. Mr: Qian was a member of the Standardisation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China until April 2018 and an expert in foaming plastics of the China Plastics
Processing Industry Association with tenure from November 2005 to September 2017. He
was presented the National Science & Technology Progress Award (third class) by the China
Light Industry Council in March 2008, the China Standards Innovation Contribution Award
jointly by the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
People’s Republic of China and the Standardisation Administration of the People’s Republic of
China in December 2009. He was also awarded Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry
in PRC by the China Plastics Processing Industry Association in May 2009, and Good Citizen
between 2011 and 2012 in January 2013, Model Worker of Haining between 2008 and 2012
in April 2013 and Outstanding Entrepreneur of 2011 in March 2012 by the Jiaxing People’s

Government.

YUE Wai Fun, aged 44

Ms. Yue was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax Health & Household Products
Limited (“Sinomax Health") in June 2012. Ms. Yue is responsible for the supervision of the
daily operation and management of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue joined the Group in 2004 and
served as marketing manager and brand & marketing manager prior to being appointed as the
general manager of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from

the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREERE

CHEN Xiao Hua, aged 57

Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2013 and was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax
(Zhejiang) Polyurethane Technology Limited (“Sinomax Zhejiang”) in October 2013. Mr. Chen
is responsible for supervision of the daily operation and management of Sinomax Zhejiang.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr: Chen was engaged in foam manufacturing from 2002 to 2013
and was a general manager of Sinomax Polyurethane (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, a company indirectly
controlled by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung and Mr. Chen Feng, the executive Directors,
and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, the mother of Mr. Cheung Tung,. Mr. Chen has over 20 vyears of
experience in foam production and research. Mr. Chen completed a business administration

course for company executives in Zhejiang University in November 2006.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page |31 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the Reporting Period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment properties and property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 18 and 17 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and other donations amounted to

approximately of HK$0.8 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Reporting Period are set

out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, there was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's

listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Directors consider that the Company's reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
comprise the share premium and the accumulated profits which amounted to approximately
HK$535.0 million as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
HK$561.2 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has share option schemes, the details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option” in this report. Save as aforesaid, the Company has not entered into

any equity-linked agreement during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report were as follows.

Executive Directors

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
CHEUNG Tung

CHEN Feng

LAM Kam Cheung

LAM Fei Man

Independent non-executive Directors

WONG Chi Keung

LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P
ZHANG HWO Jie

WU Tak Lung
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, four Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, J.B Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr.Wu Tak Lung will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"), and being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stocks Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing

Rules") and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any member of the
Group which is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” of this report, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
any Director or the Director’s connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting

Period.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the controlling Shareholders,
namely, Sinomax Enterprises, Mr: Lam Chi Fan, Mr: Cheung Tung, Mr: Chen Feng and Ms. Cheung
Shui Ying, in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition as
set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2014 (the “Prospectus”) for the
Reporting Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The articles of association of the Company provided that every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in

which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is quitted.

The Company has arranged approved Directors' liability insurance policy to protect the

Directors against potential costs and liability arising from claims brought against the Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company,
having regards to the comparable market practice, market conditions, individual performance
and the Group's operating results. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are set out in

note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning in Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™)) which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or (c)
were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuer (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

Interests in the Company

Name of Director

Nature of interest

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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RO RAEBRONER
REDRHES

Number of Shares ()

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding®

EEps EEiHE BRoBEO BORERTDL
LAM Chi Fan Founder of a discretionary trust 1,275,906,000 (L)© 7291%
&R MIBEFEHRILA
Beneficial owner 8,150,000 (L) 0.47%
ESEBA
CHEUNG Tung Beneficial owner 7,876,200 (L) 0.45%
SRR ESEBA
CHEN Feng Beneficial owner 4,050,000 (L) 0.23%
R ESEBA
LAM Fei Man Beneficial owner 3,150,000 (L)@ 0.18%
MER ESERAA
LAM Kam Cheung Beneficial owner 3,000,000 (L)@ 0.17%
R ESERAA
WONG Chi Keung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
FER ESERAA
LAM Sing Kwong, Simon Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
i ESERAA
FAN Chun Wah, Andrew, JP Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
SBEAE KL ESERAA
ZHANG HWO Jie Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
R ESERAA
WU Tak Lung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
Rz ESERAA

BHREBERALAF
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes long position.

The calculation is based on the total number of [,750,002,000 shares in issue as at 3l

December 2018,

These shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is legally and beneficially
owned as to 37.5% by Chi Fan Holding Limited and hence by The Frankie Trust. The Frankie
Trust is a discretionary family trust established by LAM Chi Fan as settlor and Vistra Trust (BVI)
Limited (“Vistra") acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are LAM Chi Fan

and his family members.

Each of LAM Chi Fan, CHEUNG Tung, CHEN Feng, LAM Fei Man and LAM Kam Cheung,
each being the executive Director, has been granted share options to subscribe for 6,650,000,
6,376,200, 3,050,000, 2,150,000 and 2,000,000 shares, respectively, under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, all of which are still outstanding. Each of LAM Chi Fan, CHEUNG Tung,
CHEN Feng, LAM Fei Man and LAM Kam Cheung, each being the executive Director, has
been granted share options to subscribe for 1,500,000, 1,500,000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000 and
1,000,000 shares, respectively, under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, all of which are still
outstanding. Each of WONG Chi Keung, LAM Sing Kwong Simon, FAN Chun Wah Andrew,
ZHANG HWO Jie and WU Tak Lung, each being the independent non-executive Director; has
been granted share options to subscribe for 300,000 shares respectively, under the Post-IPO

Share Option Scheme.
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Long positions in associated corporation — Sinomax Enterprises
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HEEBNT A - EHBERE

Approximate

percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares shareholding
Esfns EHitE B8 E BOREED L
LAM Chi Fan Beneficiary of The Frankie Trust I5 37.5%
HEN FrankiefS FEH X 28 A

CHEUNG Tung Beneficiary of The Cheung's Family Trust 5 12.5%
AR REREETNZEA

CHEN Feng Beneficiary of The Feng Chen’s Family Trust 5 12.5%
R BREREETNTEA

CHEUNG ShuiYing Beneficiary of The James' Family Trust I5 37.5%
FRIKH James' KK A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES EERERO KRN

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period,
had any rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company been granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under |8 years
old, or had any such rights been exercised by them; or was the Company; its holding company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective

spouse or children under 18 years old, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS ITERF 2 ER

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive R20I18F12A3IA - EBAL (FEBELRA
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares as AESHRERTHAR) RRHHBERN
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as HEARBRNRIEES RERAIE36MG

follows: FEGFENELMNESIOARNT

Long positions in Shares R

Approximate

percentage of

Name of substantial Shareholders Nature of interest Number of Shares ( shareholding®

TERREW HE EEiE RGOBE O BORERTDL

Sinomax Enterprises © Beneficial owner 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%

ERBELRO EREAA

Chi Fan Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
REEHEEE R

Vistra © Trustee of various trusts 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
ZEFFEHZTA

LI Ching Hau Interest of spouse 1,284,056,000 (L)© 73.38%

FTRE ALiBHE s
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The letter “L" denotes long position.

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as at 3l

December 2018,

Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 37.5%, 12.5%, 37.5% and 12.5% by Chi Fan Holding
Limited, Wing Yiu Investments Limited, The James" Family Holding Limited and Venture Win
Holdings Limited, respectively, and beneficially owned in the same proportion by The Frankie
Trust, The Cheung's Family Trust, The James' Family Trust and The Feng Chen’s Family Trust,

respectively.

These Shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 37.5% by Chi Fan

Holding Limited.

Vistra acts as the trustee of The Frankie Trust, The James" Family Trust, The Cheung's Family
Trust and The Feng Chen'’s Family Trust. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are Mr. LAM Chi
Fan and his family members. The beneficiaries of The Cheung's Family Trust are Mr CHEUNG
Tung and his family members. The beneficiaries of The James™ Family Trust are Ms. CHEUNG
Shui Ying and her family members. The beneficiaries of The Feng Chen’s Family Trust are Mr.

CHEN Feng and his family members.

These interests belong to Mr. LAM Chi Fan, the spouse of Ms. LI Ching Hau. Under the SFO,
Ms. LI Ching Hau is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares which Mr LAM

Chi Fan is interested.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction with certain connected persons, certain details of which have been disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated | November 2018 and 18 December 2018.
Certain continuing connected transactions are exempt from one or more of the reporting,
announcement, shareholders' approval and annual review requirements for the purpose of

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The following are the continuing connected transactions and connected transaction of the
Group during the Reporting Period that are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements but otherwise exempt from the shareholders” approval requirement pursuant to

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:

Continuing Connected Transactions

(i) Lease agreement between Dongguan Sinohome Limited* ( R = Z# 5 /& @ B IR
2} A]) (“Dongguan Sinohome”) and Dongguan Donglian Furniture Co., Led.* ( R3E
R EEFR 2 &) (“Dongguan Donglian”)

Dongguan Donglian is indirectly wholly-owned by Sinomax Enterprises, the controlling
Shareholder of the Company. Dongguan Donglian is therefore an associate of Sinomax

Enterprises and a connected person of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinohome, as tenant, entered into a lease agreement
(the "Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome") with Dongguan Donglian, as
landlord, for the lease of No. | Dajieling Road, Shahu Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan,
Guangdong Province, PRC (the “Dongguan Premises”) for a term of slightly more than
two years at a monthly rental of approximately RMB695,000.

On 18 December 2015, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the "Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of Dongguan Premises for a term of three years at a monthly rental of approximately

RMBI.3 million after the expiry of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome.
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(i)

On 18 December 2018, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the "2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of Dongguan Premises for a term of three years at a monthly rental of approximately

RMB660,000 after the expiry of the Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement.

Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome, the Renewal
Dongguan Lease Agreement and the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the Prospectus and the
announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 18 December 2018,

respectively.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for the continuing connected transaction under the Renewal Dongguan
Lease Agreement for each of the vear ended 31 December 2016, 3| December
2017 and 31 December 2018 were RMBI5.72 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$19.02 million). The total amount of rent paid pursuant to the Renewal Dongguan
Lease Agreement for the Reporting Period was approximately RMBIOS1 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$12.51 million).

Sale of foam products by Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna S.A (“Studio Moderna”)

Studio Moderna is the holding company of SMSA North America Holdings, LLC
which holds 48.69% equity interest in Dormeo North America, LLC (“Dormeo”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As a substantial shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company, Studio Moderna is a connected person of the Company.
Each subsidiary of Studio Moderna is an associate of Studio Moderna and hence a

connected person of the Company.

(i)
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On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Trading entered into a renewed procurement
agreement (the “2017 Renewal Procurement Agreement”) with Studio Moderna to
govern the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Sinomax Trading and
Studio Moderna after the expiry of the procurement agreement entered into with
Studio Moderna in 2016 (the "Procurement Agreement”). Parties to the Procurement
Agreement would, from time to time, agree to a price list setting out the price,
specifications and delivery schedule in respect of each type of foam products, which the

purchase orders must adhere to.

On 19 December 2017, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2018 Renewal Procurement Agreement”) in relation
to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna and its

subsidiaries for a term commencing from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

Details of the terms of the 2017 Renewal Procurement Agreement and the 2018
Renewal Procurement Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 30 December 2016, 6 January

2017 and 19 December 2017 respectively.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transactions under the 2017 Renewal
Procurement Agreement and the 2018 Renewal Procurement Agreement for each
of the year ended 3| December 2017 and ended 31 December 2018 were USD30
million. The total amount of sales to Studio Moderna pursuant to the 2018 Renewal
Procurement Agreement for the year ended 3| December 2018 was approximately

USD7.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$56.6 million).
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(i)

Sale of foams by the Company to Gu Jia Household Co., Limited* ( BZ Z ER 5 E
R A &) (“Gu Jia Household”)

Sinomax Kuka is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is
owned as to 40% by Gu Jia Household. As a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, Gu Jia Household is a connected person of the Company. As such,
each subsidiary of Gu Jia Household is an associate of Gu Jia Household and hence a

connected person of the Company.

On 30 December 2016, Haining Sinomax Trading Co. Limited (“Haining Sinomax”)
and Sinomax Kuka entered into a procurement agreement (the “Original Haining
Procurement Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries to govern
the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Haining Sinomax, Sinomax
Kuka and Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries, after the expiry of the procurement
agreement between, among others, Haining Sinomax and Gu Jia Household entered
into in 2015. On | November 2017, the Original Haining Procurement Agreement was
superseded by a revised procurement agreement (the “Revised Haining Procurement

Agreement”).

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Zhejiang Polyurethane Household Products Limited
(“Sinomax Zhejiang"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a renewed procurement agreement (the “2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement
Agreement”) with Hangzhou Gu Jia Bedding Co., Limited* (“Gu Jia Bedding”) (#7118
KEEBRAT]), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Gu Jia Household, to govern
the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Sinomax Zhejiang and Gu Jia
Bedding, after the expiry of the procurement agreement between Sinomax Zhejiang

and Gu Jia Bedding entered into in 2016.

(i)
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On 19 December 2017, in view of the prospective expiry of the Original Haining
Procurement Agreement (as superseded by the Revised Haining Procurement
Agreement) and the 2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement on 3|
December 2017, the Company as supplier entered into a new procurement agreement
(the "2018-2020 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household as
purchaser for the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams for the three financial years

commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 3| December 2020.

Details of the terms of the 2018-2020 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcement of the

Company dated |19 December 2017.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transaction under the 2018-2020 Gu Jia

Procurement Agreement as follows:

R17FNRAIE ERREERE
i (BEETBERBERZEDNR) &
017FEEAMNTIRE HEANHR2017
FI2A3IBER AAR (ERHE
ERELE®A (ﬁEAEJJI%P
B ([2018FE E2020F ER IR B 1
&) KR 20I8F1 A1 BRI ZE2020
FRRANBERN=-EVREEEE
BaEERR-

BE0ISFER200FBERRE = IF
ANBHRETR G ZHFBERAR
BIHEA0I7ENRAISER A

EENIBFEFR200FERFEG
TEREERERINEERS LA
BEMEELROTHR:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 For the year ending 31 December 2019 For the year ending 31 December 2020
BE2018F12A31ALFE BE2019F 128318 LFE BE2020F12A31HLFE
RMB305.8 million RMB376.2 million RMB437.8 million

AR#3058EET ARE37628E T ARE4378HET

Pursuant to rule [4A55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions for the Reporting Period and
confirmed that the transactions had been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

() inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued the unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected

transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter had been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Connected Transaction

Compensation Agreement between Modern Time Industrial Limited* ( FF{CE# B R4 )
(“Modern Time") and Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd.* ( L /S#BA B4 HR A &)
(“Shanghai Luen Tai")

Shanghai Luen Tai is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Modern Time is
owned as to 50% by Ms. Lin Lu Lin (“Ms. Lin"), the sister of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director, and as to 50% by Mr. Kwok Tat Kwong (“Mr. Kwok™), the
husband of Ms. Lin and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lam Chi Fan. Each of Ms. Lin, Mr. Kwok and
Modern Time is an associate of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, being an executive Director, and is therefore

a connected person of the Company.

Modern Time as landlord and Shanghai Luen Tai entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement’) in relation to the leasing of a parcel of land with a total site area of 37,357
sq.m. located in Songjiang District, Shanghai, the PRC (the “Land") and Building Nos. | to 22,
No. 609 Zhongku Road, Maogang Town (Wuku), Songjiang District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
a total gross floor area of 15,829 sqm. erected on the Land (the “Premises”). Pursuant to
the relevant urban renewal plan of the government of Songjiang District, Shanghai, the PRC
(the “Local Government”), the Land and the Premises have been included in the scope of

demolition and redevelopment.
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On | November 2018, Modern Time and Shanghai Luen Tai entered into a compensation
agreement (the “Compensation Agreement”), pursuant to which Modern Time agreed to
compensate Shanghai Luen Tai for costs and loss arising from the demolition of the Premises
and the surrender of the Land to the Local Government in the amount of RMB6 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$6.74 million).

Details of the terms of the Compensation Agreement and the transactions contemplated

thereunder were set out in the announcement of the Company dated | November 2018.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules in respect of all the continuing connected transactions and
connected transaction entered into by the Group during the Reporting Period and all of the
above continuing connected transactions and connected transaction were entered into in the

manners stated above.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the Group financial performance
for the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators can be found in the
“Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections on pages 6 to 7 and

pages 10 to |7 of this annual report respectively.

Environmental Policy and Performance

In conducting the business, the Group's objective is to minimize the adverse effects of
its operations on the environment. In addition, in order to comply with the applicable
environmental protection laws, the Group has established an environmental management
system in its operations in accordance with ISO 14001:2004 international standards and
obtained ISO 14001 certification. The environmental management system will be reviewed
from time to time in order to reduce risks related to environmental issues. The Group has
complied with a number of PRC environmental protection laws in connection with water
pollutants, air pollutants, solid waste pollutants, as well as noise pollution generated from its
manufacturing operations. During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable PRC laws and regulations on environmental laws and was not subject to any fines or
legal action resulting from incidents of non-compliance with any applicable PRC environmental
regulations, nor was there any threatened or pending action by any PRC environmental

regulatory authority.
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Other green initiatives and measures have been adopted by the Group to control the use of
energy and resources in the production, business operation and management activities so as to
achieve economic benefit. Such initiatives include reducing manufacturing wastes by using scrap
foams to produce pillows and mattresses, reducing electricity consumption by using the LED
lightings and by using the diesel hot water system operated by solar energy, recycling of used

papers, creating a paperless work environment and promoting water saving practices.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant

impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers, Customers, and other Stakeholders

Details of the Group's relationship with employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholder

are set out in Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 80 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

() Risk of customer concentration

Sales to the Group's top five customers accounted for approximately 35.8% (2017:
36.3%) of the Group's total revenue, with one customer in the Group's export sales
segment accounted for approximately 13.8% (2017 15.2%) of the Group's total

revenue.

The Group does not enter into any long-term agreements with these top five
customers. Their purchases are on an order-by-order basis. The Group cannot assure
that it will be able to maintain stable relationships with its key customers. A substantial
decrease of purchases could adversely affect product sales, financial condition and

results of operations of the Group.
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The Group will continue to diversify the customer's portfolio by actively searching
for new customers and seeking for strategic acquisition in order to capture more

customers in different markets.

Risk of changing in the economic conditions

To manage the risk of economic fluctuation in the world, the Group is trying to
diversify its investment geographically. In particular; the US factory started operation
that is expected to generate profit in the future. The management of the Group

expects the total revenue from the US will increase in the coming years.

Risk of deterioration in the value of the Group brands

The Group is dependent on the goodwill in its brands for the continued success and
growth of its business. In particular; the Group relies on sales of its “Sinomax” branded
products in Hong Kong and in the PRC, and products under other brands owned by
or licensed to it in other territories. Adverse publicity or regulatory or legal action
against the Group could damage the reputation, the brand images and reduce long-

term demand for the Group's products.

The Group continues its strategy to promote its brand names through different
marketing schemes. The Group also uses multi brands strategy to promote more
brands like “Zeopedic”, "PureLUX", “Dream Serenity”, “ComforZen", “Customizer’,
“Spa Supreme” and “Tung Ah” so as to reduce the risk and deterioration in a particular

brand.
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Risk of volatility in the pricing of raw materials

The Group is exposed to commodity price risks resulting from fluctuation of prices
of chemicals including polypropylene glycol and toluene diisocyanate, the principal raw
materials for the production of polyurethane foams. The Group has not entered into
any long-term agreement with any of its raw materials suppliers, nor has it entered into
any hedging arrangements or transactions to reduce the exposure to fluctuations in

raw materials costs.

The Group implements a cost-plus pricing policy in the segments of export sales and
polyurethane foam sales. Price quotations for orders are negotiated in an order-by-
order basis. In determining the product prices, the Group usually takes into account of
various factors such as production costs (including costs of raw materials), production
cycle, transportation costs, product types and specification, market price and global

economic conditions.

Risk of legal, regulatory and compliance

The Group's business is subject to Hong Kong, China and US laws and regulations.
Any failure to comply with laws and regulations could result in legal proceedings and
expose us the civil and/or criminal liabilities. The long term development of our business
is largely depend on a steady legal environment. Unanticipated changes in policies and
regulatory practices may adversely affect our business. The Group will continue to
manage and ensure the highest compliance standard with first-rate independent legal

services.
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PROSPECTS

A description of the likely future development in the Group's business is provided in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 15 to 16 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which complies with the
requirements of Chapter |7 of the Listing Rules was adopted by the Shareholders.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants under the

scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the Directors, will contribute or have

contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$| to the Company by

way of consideration for the grant.
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On 13 December 2013, the Company was authorised to grant share options to 40
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,918,000 Shares under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company granted share options to
|37 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,903,000 Shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular share option offered
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be a price representing 30% discount to
the Offer Price (as defined in the Prospectus).

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be vested equally in five tranches commencing on the Listing Date and on each of
the first, second, third and fourth anniversary of the Listing Date. The grantees to whom
a share option has been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be
entitled to exercise the share option any time after the share option has been vested
but in any event on or before the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing
Date. The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are not
transferable and share options not exercised within the exercise period will lapse and

cease to be of further effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014 and ceased to have
effect after 10 July 2014. Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall continue to be valid and

exercisable in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEWES

R2013F 128138 KRB EF#E
MEXAREEBRENEIET
402G B2 HERNAEHTRE
34,918,000/% B 17 #) B AR 4 < 720145
2H'$ ARI3VEEERBEER
H A H AT 2 E34,903,0008% A% 17 #) B A%
B

BEERARBEESNERETEEE
ZEMNBFEBERES R 2RO 2RE
EREENEEE (TERBRER)
FiE30% 2 B -

REERLAEENBERETSET
BRARANBRESS L™ H
o RETRBEEABFR F_ER
FH - F=EBFERENEESHA
TP IREE - REERARAEE
il 5 PBUHEE =T B JE X BB IR R R
BRENEREERBKR (EEEME
ATERETHHBEREBFAER
%281 BERF T BB AR - RIBE XA
7% & BT R AT B B R
AEE LRITERERRITENE
BEGRUETBABEMURS -

BALAAEEABREEE 12014
F7RI08 Em- RR201457H10A8
BTBEARN -RERRAFAEEN
BEIRFERT 2 M AT 1B E R RTT
FRERESEEEIRBEERR
FAEERBRETER TITE-

BREEEAERDLFA 2018FEFE#RS

49



50

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEWES

The following tables disclose details of movements of share options granted under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

TERBBERBEAERARESAERE
AEARNMBREZHHE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat
price | Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018
R2018% #2018%
533 I8 128318
ARA BRE RS GRY fixid THEE EHATE REREL REAXN RERGTE  BRAE
LAM Chi Fan (Chairman) 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10 ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - - 1,330,000
WER(EER) WHERI08 014E28108- W47 108~
0144678108 2019%7R108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10 ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - - 1,330,000
W4F28108 2014528108 - WI557R108 -
015%7R108 2019678108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10 ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - - 1,330,000
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI6E7A108 -
W16%F7R108 019%7R108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10 ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - - 1,330,000
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI757R108 -
017478108 2019678108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - - 1,330,000
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI857R108 -
018%7R108 2019678108
CHEUNG Tung (Presicent) 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10 ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1275240 - - - 1275240
RiR(£H) W4ELRI0B 2014528108 - WI457R108 -
0144678108 019678108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10 ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1275240 - - - 1275240
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI557R108 -
01578108 2019678108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10 ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1275240 - - - 1275240
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI6E7RI08 -
W016%57R108 019%7R108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10 ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1275240 - - - 1275240
W4F2R8108 014528108 - WI7E7R108 -
2017478108 019%7R108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 1275240 - - - 1275240
W0I4528108 014528108 - WI8%F7R108 -
018%7R108 019%7R108

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report



DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEWES

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat
price [ Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018
0185 o185
Bk IBIA 12A31R
ARA REAH FEH fixid THEE EHRTE RMEAEL REAXN RERTE  HRAER
CHEN Feng 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10 ]ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - - 610,000
i W4FLR108 014528108 - WI457R108 -
2014467R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10]ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - - 610,000
W4FLR108 014528108 - WI557A108 -
2015%7R108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10 ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - - 610,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - W1657A108 -
016%67R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10]ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - - 610,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI757R108 -
01747R108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - - 610000
W4FLR108 014528108 - WI8%57A108 -
018%7A108 201967A108
LAM Kam Cheung 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10]ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - - 400,000
R WHER108 2014E28108- WI4ETRI08 -
2014467R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10]ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - - 400,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI557A108 -
2015%7R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10]ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - - 400,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI657A108 -
W16%67R108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10]ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - - 400,000
W4F2R108 014528108 - WI757R108 -
017474108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 400000 - - - 400,000
W4F2R108 014528108 - WI8%57A108 -
018%7A108 201967A108
BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE
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Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat
price [ Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018
0185 o185
Bk IBIA 12A31R
ARA RABH REH fixid THEE EHRTE RMEAEL REAXN RERTE  HRAER
LAM Fei Man 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10 ]ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - - 430,000
hEE W4ELRI0B 2014528108 - WI457R108 -
2014467R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10]ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - - 430,000
W4FLR108 014528108 - WI557A108 -
2015%7R108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10 ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - - 430,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - W1657A108 -
016%67R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10]ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - - 430,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI757R108 -
01747R108 201967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 430000 - - - 430,000
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI8%57A108 -
2018%7A108 201967A108
Other employees 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2014 10ul 2014 - 10 Jul 2019 074 2,645,860 - (206,000) - 2439860
(in aggregate) WHELRI0B 2014F28108 - WI4ETA108 -
EwEE (A4) 20145778108 201974108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2015 10ul 2015 - 10 Jul 2019 074 2647860 - (206,000) - 2439860
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI557A108 -
015%7R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2016 10 ul 2016 - 10 Jul 2019 074 2647860 - (206,000) - 2439860
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI657A108 -
2016%67R108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2017 10]ul 2017 - 10 Jul 2019 074 2647860 - (206,000) - 2439860
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI757R108 -
017474108 01967A108
10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 10Jul 2018 10 ul 2018 - 10 Jul 2019 074 2647860 - (206,000) - 2439860
W4FLR10B 014528108 - WI8%57A108 -
018%7A10 019%7A108
Total 33463500 - (1,030000) - 3433500
L
Number of share options 32433500

exercisable at

31 December 2018
R0I18F 128318

iR EREHA
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Notes:

(@) |7 eligible participants (FY2017: 10), who have been granted share options have
ceased to become eligible participants upon termination of employment during the

Reporting Period and the said share options have automatically lapsed.

(b)  Other details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme™).

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity interests in the
Company, for their contributions to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest of
the Group or for such other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may
approve from time to time, linking their interests with the interests of the Group and
thereby attracting and encouraging those parties to work better for the interests of the

Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the directors of the Company, will

contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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20171 H268 (BB ARB]) &
NAIASSEEERSEAERL A H
30,800,00017 B AR # - (G A B E 8%
71,750,002,0008% B% 1 #71.76% ° FT &
30,800,00017 fE A i B AR S 55 B H HA R
BRESF - S ERARBERBIRE
BT AR AERITE 1T (0 52 8 AR s 1A
FRBRM0OBTHREERE R

1/'\ .

On 26 January 2017 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company granted a total of
30,800,000 share options to 58 eligible participants, representing approximately |.76%
of the 1,750,002,000 shares in issue as at the Date of Grant. All 30,800,000 share
options are valid for a period of 5 years commencing from the relevant vesting date.
Each option granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall entitle the grantee
to subscribe for one share upon exercise of such option at a subscription price of
HK$0.69 per share.

TREBREERONBERBRIE
HEE N REE B

The following tables disclose details of movements of share options granted under the

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat

price per | Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercisable period Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018

R2018% #2018%

I8 128318

ARA REAH FRE fikid BRITEE  HATR REARE RERXY REBRTE  HROE

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman) 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 750,000 - - 750,000
WER(ZE) WITEIFWE  017FIf1B- W0I8F1A27A -
2018%1 A26H 202261 R26H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 750,000 - - 750,000
WI7FEIR2WA 01781 R26A~ 01951 A278 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 R26H

CHEUNG Tung (Presicent) 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 750,000 - - 750,000
Rk (##) WIEIRWA  WITEIAWE- 01851 278 -
2018%1 A26H 202261 R26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 = 26 Jan 2022 069 - 750,000 - - 750,000
WI7FEIR2WA 0178 1R26A~ 01951 A278 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26H

CHEN Feng 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 — 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
i) WIEIRWA  WITEIAWA- 01851 278 -
2018%1 A26A 202261 R26H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
WI7FEIR2%A 017 1R26A- 01951 A278 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 R26H

LAM Kam Cheung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
iRE WITEIFWE  W0I7FEI A1 - 01851 A27A -
2018%1 A26H 202261 R26H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
W0I7FI1A268 20171 AR~ 01951 A278 -
2019%1 A26A 20261 A26H

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat

price per [ Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercisable period Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018

0185 o185

IAIA 128318

ARA REAH FEH fixid SROFE  HATE RMERAEL REAXN RERGTE  HRAHR

LAM Fei Man 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
hEE WITEIAWE  017F1 A28 - WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26H 202261 A26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 500,000 - - 500,000
WIEIRWA  WI7EIA6E- W19 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26R

WONG Chi Keung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
TER WITEIAWE  017F1 A28 - WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26A 202261 A268

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
WIEIRWA  W0I7EIA6E- W95 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A268

LAM Sing Kwong Simon 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
Ep WITEIAWE  017F1 A28 - WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26H 202261 A26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
WITEIRWA  WI7EIA6E- W95 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26R

FAN Chun Wah, Andrew,JP 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
BRELATHT WITEIAWE  017F1 A28 - WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26H 202261 A26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
WITEIRWA  WI7EIA6E- W95 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26R

ZHANG HWO Jie 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
B3 WITEIRWA  W0I7EIA6E- WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26H 202261 A26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
WITEIRWA  WI7EIA6E- W19 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26R

WU Tak Lung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
REEE WITEIAWE  017F1 A28 - WI8%1A27H -
2018%1 A26H 202261 A26R

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 150,000 - - 150,000
WITEIRWA  W0I75EIA16E- W19 1A2778 -
2019%1 A26A 202261 A26R

BHREBERALAF

2018 F E R &
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Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised asat
price per [ Jan during the during the during the 31 Dec
Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercisable period Share 2018 Period Period Period 2018
R20185 R018%F
AR 12A31R
ERA R BH BEH TEH BRTEE HATE REARYE REAAR RERTE  HAGE
Other employees 26Jan 2017 26Jan 201726 Jan 2018 27 Jan 2018 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 11,650,000 (2,050,00) - 9,600,000
(in aggregate) WITEIFWE  017F1A1A - WI8FIAE -
AfER (A4) 201851 A26H W0FIR%E
26Jan 2017 26Jan 201726 Jan 2019 27 Jan 2019 - 26 Jan 2022 069 - 11,650,000 (2,050,000) - 9,600,000
WITEIABE  W0I7FIA%E- 0I9F1 A278 -
019F1 A26H 02251 A26H
Total - 30800000 (4,100,000) - 26700000
&t
Number of share options 13,350,000
exercisable at 31
December 2018
R0I8E12A318
ATEREREHE
Note: i

Other details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to the condensed

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands do not entitle any Shareholder to any pre-emptive right or other similar rights

to subscribe for the Shares.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. Other than
those transactions disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above, these related party transactions either did not constitute connected transaction/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected transaction/continuing connected
transactions that were exempted from all disclosure and independent Shareholders' approval

requirement under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
was approximately 41.2% of the Group's total purchases. The Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 21.0% of the Group's total purchases. The average length of

relationship with the Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 6.6 years.

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate sales to the Group's five largest customers was
approximately 35.8% of the Group's total revenue. The Group's largest customer accounted
for approximately 13.8% of the Group's total revenue. The average length of relationship with

the Group's five largest customers was approximately 5.9 years.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares) had a beneficial interest

in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting Period.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If any Shareholders has any doubt about the taxation implication of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or exercise of any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised to

consult their own professional advisers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 59 to 77 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, are held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this

report.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire and offer itself for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Messrs.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have been reviewed by

the audit committee of the Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

RO DBRER

fim

BREARARRAABSENRRBEESMA AR
A BT AR R D 25% (BB AT AR TE I
IHRAAFOREARIFRE) NREHLE
EAREABEARE —ERARALRA

B
AEBREMBHRRCHEMETEED « @
BERSeMTERR AEHENEERRE
FAGRMER URTREEEET RER
BEXBRRBFRGAENEGREY « BER
IR RSP RAYNCIE S - (I

HANEERE M HHRREAART

RREZERELARE -

EFR
HENL

&% 201993278



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to
safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Board believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management and healthy corporate culture, thereby earning the confidence of the

Shareholders and the public.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance. The Company had met the applicable code provisions set out in the

CG Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's corporate governance

practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Directors and relevant employees, who
are likely to possess inside information of the Company, in their dealings in the Company's
securities. The code of conduct are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set

out in the Model Code.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting

Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, with five executive Directors and five
Independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the Reporting Period 2018 and up

to the date of this report were as follows:
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Executive Directors Lam Chi Fan (Chairman)
Cheung Tung (President)
Chen Feng

Lam Kam Cheung

Lam Fei Man

Independent
Non-executive
Directors Wong Chi Keung

Lam Sing Kwong, Simon

Fan Chun Wah, Andrew

Zhang Hwo Jie

WuTak Lung

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the Company's business.
The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors. Independent Non-executive
Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Company requests the Directors to disclose annually to the Company the number and
nature of office held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments

with an indication of time involved.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
concerning the diversity of Board members. The board diversity policy outlines the factors to
consider when deciding on the appointments of members to the Board and the continuation
of those appointments. These factors include but are not limited to gender; age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service

and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time.
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Relationship between Board members

- Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman and an executive Director; is the uncle of Mr. Cheung
Tung, the President and an executive Director and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director;

- Mr. Cheung Tung, is a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei Man;

- Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director; is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director; and

- Ms. Lam Fei Man is a cousin of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director;

and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director:

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships

among members of the Board.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board and management

The Board is responsible and has general power for the management and conduct of the
business of the Group. The Board oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board also makes decisions on matters relating to
strategies and budgets, financial information, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
dividend, adoption of accounting policies and other matters of operational significance to the

Company.

The Board delegates day-to-day management and operations functions of the Company
to Board committees and senior management of the Company with clear directions and
authority framework. The Board will review periodically the delegation given to management

to ensure that they are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

The Board has delegated specific roles and responsibilities to the Company's audit committee,

corporate governance committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Details of these committees are set out on pages 59 to 71 of this report.
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Chairman and President

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the Chairman of the Board. Mr: Lam is responsible for the formulation of

the overall business strategies and business planning of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Tung is the President (equivalent to the role of a chief executive) of the Company.
Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall management of the day-to-day operations of the

Group.

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung. However, there is a clear distinction between

the Chairman'’s responsibility and the President’s responsibility.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company currently has five independent non-executive Directors, more than one-third
of the members of the Board, and are persons of high caliber with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The independent non-
executive Directors bring a diversified range of expertise and provide checks and balances of

safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and the Group as a whole.

Each of Mr.Wong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew,
JP, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak Lung has entered into a service contract with the

Company for a term of three years commenced from || July 2017, respectively.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive Directors their confirmation
of independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors met the

independence guidelines and are independent.
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Board meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and a tentative schedule for regular Board meetings
for each year is provided to Directors prior to the beginning of each calendar year. Between
scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve various matters by way of passing
written resolutions. Additional Board meetings may be arranged if required. At least 14 days’

notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the Company aims at sending the agenda

and the accompanying board papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended

date of a Board meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held four meetings and the Company held one

general meeting.

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open for

inspection by the Directors.

The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings held during the Reporting

Period are set out as follows:
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Meetings attended

Name of Directors EEnE HEERRE
Executive Directors HITES

Lam Chi Fan HER 414
Cheung Tung RAR 4/4
Chen Feng il 4/4
Lam Kam Cheung RERHF 4/4
Lam Fei Man R 414
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Wong Chi Keung Fotc 4/4
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon ¥ 414
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P eRER ST 4/4
Zhang Hwo Jie L 4/4
Wu Tak Lung RiEEE 4/4
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of financial statements
of the Group to ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results of its operation and its cashflows. In preparing the
financial statements for the Reporting Period the Board had prepared the Group's financial
statements on a going-concern basis and in accordance with relevant accounting standards
and regulations. Board members are provided with monthly updates on the Group's financial
position, which give the Directors a clear assessment of the performance, position and

prospect of the Group.

A statement from the external auditor relating to their reporting responsibilities is set out in

the independent auditor's report on pages 120 to 130 of this annual report.

Continuous training and professional development for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their responsibilities and duties and are committed to
participate in continuous professional development to develop their knowledge and skills. This

is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company provides regular updates on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board
meetings. In addition, the Company also organises briefing sessions to the Directors which
place emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director; as well as the

latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Individual training record of each Director during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:
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W (5 3
ExEBR®RE

SEERBEHANBEAEIREHNT :

Reading materials

regarding regulatory Attending seminars
updates and corporate and/or conferences
governance matters and/or briefings

AREEEMREE HEHRNER,/
Name of Directors EEps ERBEMMEME HEERIER
Executive Directors HITES
Lam Chi Fan HEN 4 v/
Cheung Tung SRR v v
Chen Feng PR v/ v/
Lam Kam Cheung ERHE 4 v
Lam Fei Man HER v v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Wong Chi Keung TR v/ v
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon PRA v/ v/
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew ek &= v v
Zhang Hwo Jie SR v/ v/
Wu Tak Lung RiERE 4 4
BOARD COMMITTEES ExzEg
The Company has set up four committees, namely, the audit committee, the remuneration ARBRIHMEZE S BEREZES  HFM
committee, the nomination committee and the corporate governance committee, for ZEe RREATEeNTEERTEE I
overseeing the particular aspects of the Company. The terms of reference of these committees EEARRNEEER ZEZEQRESD
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. AR AN A AR UG R B X BT AR B A
Audit Committee EREES
The audit committee comprises five independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong EREZECeMANBIENTESAN
Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P, Mr. Zhang Hwo Bl FE Hg & MBI R KT 4

Jie and MrWu Tak Lung. Mr.Wong Chi Keung is the chairman of the audit committee. He has

professional qualifications in accounting and financial management.

T REFERREELELE -TERELER
EZZBeXR WMAGSHRMBEESR
EHRBZEXER-
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The primary duties of the audit committee include, among other things:

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity;

recommending to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor and

approve its remuneration;

reviewing the Group's consolidated financial statements, annual reports and interim

reports before submitting them to the Board;

overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, internal control and risk management

procedures and audit process;

reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group; and

meeting with the external auditor to discuss issues regarding audit at least once a year

in the absence of the management.

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee held three meetings and reviewed and

discussed with the external auditor the interim and annual results of the Group and the

relevant financial reports. It also discussed matters with respect to the risk management and

internal controls and re-appointment of external auditor.

A summary of the work of the audit committee during the Reporting Period is as follows:

@)

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the annual results for the year ended

31 December 2017 and interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018;

discussed and reviewed the risk management system of the Group, reviewed the
internal control review plan and the internal controls report of the Group prepared
by the internal control advisor relating to the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the interim financial statements for the six months

ended 30 June 2018;
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(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function; and

(d)  approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The attendance record of each member of the audit committee at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

AN e s 34
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(d) BEREREZ20I8F2A3IBLEF
EHFEEZE -

RERZBEREHENBREHARTLE
FEERCERESIT

Meetings attended

Name of members of audit committee EREEERENS HEERRE
Wong Chi Keung FTE# 313
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R 33
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P SBEER T 33
Zhang Hwo Jie R 33
Wu Tak Lung REEE 33

Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee comprises five Independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr.Wong Chi Keung, the chairman of the corporate governance committee, Professor
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak
Lung.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee include, among other things:

= developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on corporate

governance and making recommendation to the Board with regard to any change;

= reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management on corporate governance;

= reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements on corporate governance and making

recommendation to the Board with regard to any change;

= developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and corporate governance

manual applicable to Directors and employees; and
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- reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the corporate governance committee held one meeting to
review the Company's corporate governance policies and practices and the compliance with

the CG Code.

The attendance record of each member of the corporate governance committee at the

meeting held during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

- BREARAREEERTRIRERE
BMETHRENSREN

N REMAN ERELRZBEEER—REE
NEHARANERERRRRER IE
TEEERTAZER

M &1

\—l |

BEREERZBEENBHENRS
SHRMCEFIMT

Meeting attended

Name of members of corporate governance committee CEEREEENERS HESBERE
Wong Chi Keung FER /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon PRA 1/
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, |.P SEEREATHLT /1
Zhang Hwo Jie aRfE /1
Wu Tak Lung REH 171
Remuneration Committee FMEES

The remuneration committee consists of one executive Director and two independent non- YL EeRE A TEE MBI
executive Directors. The remuneration committee is chaired by Professor Lam Sing Kwong, HITEE -HWEZESETRABIYIIENTE
Simon, an Independent non-executive Director. Other members are Mr. Fan Chun Wah, EMEABE -EMKERBUIENTES

Andrew, |.P, an Independent non-executive Director and Mr. Lam Chi Fan.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, among other things:

- studying and making recommendations or proposals to the Board for its review on
the Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management, on the Company’s incentive schemes and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for formulating the remuneration policies and

incentive schemes;
= determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the

non-executive Directors; and

= reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate

objectives approved by the Board from time to time.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration committee held one meeting
to review and approve the granting of options pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and to approve Directors and senior management's performance bonus, after taking
into consideration the comparable market practice, competitive market condition position,

individual performance and contributions and the Group’s operating results.

In order to recognise and acknowledge the contributions of key employees of the Company,
the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme. These incentive schemes enable eligible persons to have a personal stake in the
Company and thus motivate them to optimize their performance efficiency for the benefit of

the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emolument for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 12 and note 36

to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee at the meeting held

during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:
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Meeting attended

Name of members of remuneration committee FHMEEEREHSE HEEBRY
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon PRA 11
Lam Chi Fan WEN 111
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew BEE /1

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members with the majority of its members being
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee is chaired by Mr Lam Chi
Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director. Other members are Mr. Wong
Chi Keung and Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, both being independent non-executive

Directors.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include, among other things:

- reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and making
recommendations regarding any proposed changes to the Board in line with the

Company's strategies;

- developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of

directors;
- identifying suitable candidates for appointment as directors; and
- assessing the independence of independent non-executive Director.

During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board. The Company and embraces the benefits of
diversity among its Board members. The nomination committee has a policy concerning the
diversity of Board members with measurable objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the

legitimate interests of the principal Shareholders.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has a Nomination Policy for the nomination of Directors. Appointment of new
Directors s first considered by the Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment
of a Director, this Committee applies criteria such as relevant experience, professional and
educational background, reputation for integrity and independence as well as the diversity in
the Board. The recommendation of this Committee is then put to the Board for consideration
and approval. Thereafter; any Director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by the

shareholders at the general meeting after his/her appointment.
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The attendance record of each member of the nomination committee at the meeting held

during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

AN e s 34
TRERHME

EREZBEREHENBEHARTCE
FEERCERESIT

Meeting attended

Name of members of nomination committee REZEEMERSR HEEBERY
Lam Chi Fan MEN [/1
Wong Chi Keung TR 1/
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R K 11

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Reporting Period, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided to

the Group by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor; are set out as follows:

REM#E

REmEHA RINEZBEEY - BERT
SEETRASBRHENEZIIFERRY

MxOBREHIMT
Fee
gA
HK$'000
FET
Audit services %R 3,999
Non-audit services: FEGRE:
Reviewing the Company's interim financial information, report on Bz 2 AR A EIBI B ER  HEFM I H WS
continuing connected transactions and review of risk management & EZ A EE KRR E R KA EIES - 5
and internal control of the Group, and conducting financial and tax WIEEEERM B ERE HE 2 EHEL
due diligence for potential acquisition 570
4,569

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 4 March
2014.The biographical details of Mr. Lam is set out in the paragraph headed “Directors and

Senior Management” on page |9 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lam took no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders and seeks to facilitate the effective exercise

of those rights by ensuring that the Company communicates effectively with its Shareholders.

The Company promotes effective communication with Shareholders and encourages effective
participation by Shareholders at general meetings of the Company. To ensure a high quality of
communication and level of clarity with all investors and other stakeholders, whilst complying
with its statutory disclosure obligations, the Company endeavours to provide Shareholders
with ready and easy access on a timely basis to matters that affect their investment in the
Company; communicate in a clear, accurate and easy to understand manner with investors
and other stakeholders. Communication with Shareholders would be mainly through the
Company's interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, general meetings and

publications on the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the board of directors of the Company shall take into
account the following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

(a)  the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition, expected working capital
requirements and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity position and future
expansions plans;

(b)  the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company;

(c)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity ratio and the relevant
financial covenant;

(d)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(e)  the Shareholders’ and the investors” expectation and industry's norm; and

(f)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

RRRHOEE

ARBEERRNEFN LT BN B BRERAD
AEERRAVEBEERBENOERT
fi£ o

ARARERRRNERER  THBBR
AUMBERDBBRRAEG - BERERER
BENEMASHEENREERRNER
BE MABETHIERBEEE AAF
BORESRRAUNER LESNEEBY
EERARANBRENEE YEREER
Hib Fzs A AT ZRER ZRABH
HRBEBRRNBERSIBEEBART
FHIRERERE A RBR RRAER
AR AR N EEETT

B2 BR

BREADRZBRERK ERTROGEEE
EREREERECEE EFENTIRNK
RERERSA AZBUTHEE:

@) AREZEEZEXE MHNRR B
MEeBEBEERRRERIHESR R
PE MR TR RIERE S

b) ARBZERBENRAEDRERZ
R

€ AEBzERELE RADHRERE
BB B R KT

(d) BEBLEIN AEEXBEHES
B 7] B ¥ 7 5 (B 3 75 3 B 7% R 3R Bk
MEEFEZEMARLIBREE:

() BMREREEZHERTERHR R

H EFER/EBIEMELEE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

General Meetings

The Board also considers that general meetings of the Company provide an useful forum
for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Company shall in each year hold a
general meeting as its annual general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general

meeting shall be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGMs").

Members of the audit committee, remuneration committee, corporate governance committee
and nomination committee and the external auditor also attend the annual general meetings
to answer questions from Shareholders. Notice of annual general meetings is sent to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the annual general meetings and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules. The voting results of annual general meetings
and EGMs are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same

day of the annual general meetings and EGMs.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the deposit of a written requisition
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an EGM to be called by

the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting, signed by the requisitionists
and deposit it with the Company Secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox Enterprise Square
Five, No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly
to convene the EGM to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of

deposit of the requisition.
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An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner; as nearly

possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for information to the Directors or
management through the ‘Contact Us' section in the Company's website at www.sinomax.com

or in writing or sent by post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no members nor Shareholders are permitted to propose
new resolutions at general meetings if the intention to propose the new resolutions is not
specified in the notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures for proposing
candidate(s) for election as Directors at a Shareholder's meeting are set out in the Corporate

Governance section of the Company's website at irsinomax.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an efficient way of
distributing information in a timely and convenient manner. The Company's website at www.

sinomax.com/group provides the following information:
- member of the Board, terms of reference of the Board committees, key corporate

governance policies and the Company's constitutional documents;

- latest news, announcements, financials including interim and annual reports and all

material information submitted to the Stock Exchange; and

= other information relating to the Group and its business.
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Shareholders can make any query in respect of the Group or to make request for the

Company's financial reports. The designated contact details are as follows:

By post: Sinomax Group Limited

Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |,

MegaBox Enterprise Square Five,

No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
By emalil: in@sinomax.com

Shareholders who have any matters relating to change of name or address, transfer of shares
and loss of share certificates, may contact the Company's share registrar, Tricor Investor

Services Limited. The contact detalils are as follows:

Address: Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. A review of the implemented systems and
procedures, including areas covering financial, operational, legal compliance controls and risk
management functions, is carried out annually. The risk management and internal control
systems are implemented to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed and used as a

management tool for the day-to-day operation of business.

The Board has, through the audit committee, reviewed and considered the Group's risk
management and internal control systems to be effective and adequate for the Reporting

Period.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational, legal compliance

controls and risk management functions of the Group were identified.
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels of responsibility
and reporting procedures. The group internal audit department assist the Board and the audit
committee in the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Company has established Enterprise Risk Management Procedures to ensure safeguard of
assets and to identify, evaluate, quantify and manage existing and potential risks. Relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group's performance are appropriately

identified and addressed.

The internal audit department is responsible for the operation and coordination of enterprise
risk management mechanism, which includes examining, reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management processes and systems, assessing whether risk is properly identified, assessing
significant risk reporting, and reviewing significant risk management. The internal audit
department provides risk management and internal control assessment reports to the
management on a regular or ad hoc basis. The internal audit department also regularly reviews
and reports to the audit committee and the Board on risk management and internal control

affairs. The Group will appoint external internal control consultant when necessary.

The task group on risk management is responsible for establishing the risk management
register and defining responsibilities, procedures and system of risk management, formulating
the annual risk management work plan, carrying out risk assessment, proposing the risk
management strategy, assisting the relevant departments and the enterprises in significant risk
management. It also prepares risk management performance appraisal program and conducts

annual performance appraisal and arranges risk management training.

The departmental managements execute risk management strategies, solutions and crisis
management plans for significant risks, dynamically monitor significant risk associated indicators
and execute the procedures and policies of the risk management and internal controls of the

Group.
In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken within the

Group, the external auditor also assessed the effectiveness of certain key risks and internal

controls as part of their statutory audits.
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To help ensure all risks which are relevant to the Group are considered, a systematic approach

to risk identification is followed. Identifiable risk areas which are considered include:

. maintaining a safe work environment for the Group's employees;
. safeguarding and efficient use of assets;

. management of human resources;

. ensuring the Group complies with legal and regulatory obligations;
. achieving established objectives and goals;

. reliability and integrity of financial and operational information; and
. compliance with internal policies and procedures.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information, the Group:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the SFO, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of inside
information, announcements and financial disclosures and authorises their publication as

required;

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information Disclosure Policy; and

(if)  has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the securities transactions
of those employees who, because of their positions, are likely to have access to

confidential or inside information.
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COMPANY REVIEW

Established in 2001, Sinomax Group Limited (“Sinomax” or the “Company", together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) (Stock Code: 1418) is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sales of health and household products. Over the years, Sinomax has continuously adhered
to its core value of “Love Supports Beloved” and has produced products ranging from visco-
elastic pillows, mattress toppers, mattresses to polyurethane foam.To upkeep with the market
needs and fulfil households” needs, the Group has constantly researched, designed, developed
and produced high-quality and healthy products through dedication in steering innovation and
quality assurance. With its affection in development and producing healthy-living products, this
has led to the success of being listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 2014.

CORPORATE VISION AND MISSION

The Group visualizes to become a world-leading health and householder products provider:
Through the continuous investments in the enhancement of research and development, testing
equipment and talents cultivation, the Group has been continuously providing innovative and

quality household products to promote healthy living and increase quality of life.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting theme

The year's Reporting Theme is “creating healthy living and quality products with innovation”.
In support of the Group's core value “Love Supports Beloved”, Sinomax believes “Love” can
be delivered through its high-quality and innovative products that are designed to promote
healthy living to the “Beloved” families. In addition, Sinomax recognizes promoting healthy living
is not only limited to its products, but is also referred to the minimization of environmental
impacts caused by the manufacturing process. In this Report, the Group’s efforts on managing
and strategizing its sustainability development that supports its core value will be discussed

more in depth.

Reporting period and scope

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”) covers the
financial reporting period from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the "Reporting Year”).
All ESG-related activities during the Reporting Year are presented in this Report.

The scope of the Report covers the Group's headquarter in Hong Kong, office in Shenzhen
and factories in Shanghai, Guangdong, Zhejiang, Shandong and Sichuan Provinces, the People’s

Republic of China (the "PRC").
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Reporting framework

This Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board Listing Rules issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group adhered to the principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency to report on the measures and performances in the
Reporting Year: Information regarding corporate governance is addressed under Corporate
Governance Report in this Annual Report in pursuance of Appendix 14 of the Main Board

Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and Environmental Consultants Group Limited

(stock code: 8320) as an independent consultant to prepare the Report.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group recognized the importance of effective communication with stakeholders in order
to achieve long term sustainable development. Through establishing various communication
channels, the Group has enabled itself to openly listen to stakeholders' feedbacks and thoughts
to formulate business strategies. In the Reporting Year, Sinomax has engaged different groups of

stakeholders via the communication channels:
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Materiality assessment

In support of business expansion in the PRC market and e-commerce sales channels, the
Group recognized the importance of sustainable development in assistance of managing

associated environmental and social risks, and optimize overall business operations.

Under the assistance of an engaged independent consultant, the Group conducted a
stakeholder engagement towards employees at Dongguan premise. The exercise aimed
to educate employees the importance of sustainability management and understand their
related thoughts. This had helped the Group's Board of Directors (“the Board”) to review
and confirm ESG material topics associated with its business operations. The following

environmental and social topics would be discussed more in-depth throughout the Report:
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Contact detail

The Group values any enquires and suggestions for not only the Report but also the Group's
sustainability strategies. If you have any questions or feedbacks regarding the Report, please

contact the Group and its contact details are set out as below:

Email: ir@sinomax.com

Telephone: (852) 2754 7798

Address: Sinomax Group Limited
Units 2005-2007
Level 20 Tower |
MegaBox Enterprise Square Five
38 Wang Chiu Road
Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

CREATE HEALTHY LIVING AND QUALITY PRODUCTS

Sinomax has been dedicated to spreading its love through creating healthy living products
with sustaining innovative products” quality. In view of this, the Group has constantly applied
advanced technology, and considered environmental and social requirements when creating
new or improving existing products. The Group has placed efforts to manage its procurement,

quality assurance, brand building and after-sales services related practices.
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Prudent procurement

The Group placed high standards on the procurement process that involved assessing

suppliers and sourcing qualified materials.

In view of having a sustainable supply chain, the Group appointed Procurement Department
to evaluate suppliers based on compliance of relevant environmental and social laws and
regulations, track records on business ethics and product health and safety performance. The
Procurement Department was responsible to oversee the process and communicate the

latest associated requirements.

For potential suppliers, the Group conducted their assessment under a rating system that
consisted of categories including manufacturing and supply capacity, quality, time management,
packaging, price and aftersales service. Suppliers who failed to fulfil any of the requirements
would be provided with feedbacks and allowed to be re-assessed in the following year once

improved.

For existing suppliers, the Group conducted yearly inspection to constantly monitor suppliers’
performance with a rewarding scheme. Existing suppliers’ communication effectiveness was
also reviewed as an additional element to ensure the efficiency of the manufacturing process.
As they were graded, the Group might consider increasing order of the outstanding suppliers
as a reward, while underperformed suppliers would be notified and proposed with an
improvement plan. Sinomax shall communicate and supervise them to implement the plan. If

they failed to improve within a set timeframe, they would be removed from the supplier list.

Through the stringent supply chain management framework, the Group became able to
facilitate suppliers moving towards sustainable development and operations. With a reliable
source of supply, the framework guaranteed products to be produced with quality materials at

maximum efficiency.
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RE -#HEBRERRE

To minimize the environmental footprints at the source of manufacturing, the Group strived to ARAERVEERBENRERT  A£8

opt local suppliers to lower emissions brought by transporting materials. During the Reporting BEEAR it ER AR KEESMEM

Year, 94% of the suppliers were from the PRC and the rests were overseas suppliers. EENHR -RBREFEN 94%NHER
RETE MEASKREIIMERS-

Local suppliers Overseas suppliers

it fLrERS EIMILFER

424 @ 2463

The packaging materials that the Group used were paper, cardboard and plastic. For packaging KEBFERER KRMBH AEBREME -

material, the Group used renewable paper packaging materials in Dongguan premise to reduce REBEREMEFRAITBERBENBEN
its impacts on environment and natural resources. The Group worked closely with vendors BURLERERRAEROTZE - K&
and suppliers to innovate ways to strengthen the reduction of environmental footprints B EEAME R RS EIFTH 7?
of packaging materials that were catered to customers demands. On the other hand, to ENREEEEMENRERTRBIAE

present final products in a professional manner, the Group has formulated different packaging PFRER - S—FR BTUEENHFARE
guidelines according to customers' requests and industrial standards for employees to follow, in TREEL REEREREPHNER N TE

order to maximize customers' satisfactions. CSEHETRMNBERES BREAREH
MEBP -

nnnnnn

Renewable pacgaging materials
- . REaRnHE
Total packaging materials used

HERVHAE
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Quality assurance process

Apart from the efforts placed on procurement, another fundamental factor of healthy and
high-quality product delivery was thorough monitoring of the quality assurance process. To
ensure the quality, health and safety requirements and reliability of all products, the Group has
adopted ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management System as the standards of its operation. Under
such system, the Group has formulated quality control mechanism for employees to follow to

maximize the output quality.

To guarantee the quality of the final products, Sinomax was aware of the importance of
handling and storing raw materials to ensure its outputs were at its maximum quality. The
Group has assigned areas to categorize and store raw materials safely. The Group has also
provided relevant guidelines and required responsible staff to monitor and record the storage

areas’ temperature and humidity.

Manufacturing environmentally friendly and healthy products has been one of the core
objectives of the Group's operation. The visco-elastic foams, conventional polyurethane
foams and high resilience foams manufactured by Sinomax have all received the CertiPUR-
US certificate. The certificate has proven all product materials to have low volatile organic
compound (VOC) emission and to have no ozone-depleting chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs), a
testament to products safe for adults and children. To further enhance the quality and ensure
industrial compliance, the Group has invested advanced testing instruments, independent
laboratory and testing centre to conduct quality tests prior to product shipment and
distribution. All products have gone through a series of environmental and safety tests, such as

testing on product VOC contents and fire resistance.

Through its unremitting efforts of delivering quality and healthy products, the Group has
earned the "Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards” from Hong Kong Brand Development

Council and the “D-Awards” from Design Council Hong Kong.
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Sinomax attended DCHK 50th Anniversary D-Awards

Presentation Ceremony

AR R BT EE 508 F ED-Awards FE 3 5218

As well as Hong Kong's great achievements, the PRC operations have also put in collective BTREEEEHNE KK AR ERS
efforts in contributing to a healthier community. Their dedication on product development and NEMNE N BHENEBEELEE M
quality assurance was recognized by local government and the industry. The awards received in EELHAZNEERBZFEANERNEEEMH

the Reporting Year are listed as below:

Award
1815

“Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards”
[&BBIRIE A

“D-Awards”
[D-Awards J

Jiashan industrial economic contribution award
BERIELCERREME

Jiashan county top10 Internet + intelligent manufacturing
(machine replacement) demonstration enterprises

REGTEERA+ S80S (BRIAN) TER%

Jiashan country to carry out “double love”
activities outstanding enterprises
EERRRE 8F TEHESSE

Top ten advanced teams of scientific and technological innovation
T ABHR A R B

Top Ten Enterprise Awards for development Quality

BRME T ERREE

Top Ten Enterprises in Plastic Industry (Polyurethane)
of Light Industry in China
RERTRERTE (BEE) tad¥

BRI RORT - s a8 FEEN T
mF -

Awarding institution

AR

Hong Kong Brand Development Council

BBREBRE

Council Hong Kong
HEAE
Jiashan County Government
EEBRBAT

Jiashan County Government
EEBBT

Jiashan County Government
EERBA

Jiashan County Government
EERBN

Haining Chang'an Town People's Government/
High-tech Zone Management Committee
BERZEBEARBAN/GHEEZS

China Light Industry Federation/China Plastic

Processing Industry Association

PEETEHSS/FREBMI TGS
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Brand awareness enhancement

To outreach market and engage different range of customers, the Group has established
various platforms for customers to easily learn about the products. The Group has kept the
customers up-to-date with the latest information through various platforms, such as retails and
E-Shop.The Group also provided adequate product trainings to frontline sales employees and
account managers across all retail outlets to uphold product knowledge and professionalism

when dealing with customers’ enquires.

Case Study: Sinomax Mobile Application

With its commitment of raising people’s awareness on healthy living, the Group has launched
its Sinomax Mobile Application (the “app”) allowing customers to effectively manage their
health and lifestyle, including sleeping quality, sports and diet habits. The app engaged users to
accomplish challenges and tasks. Users could set out health targets and keep track on health
performance, adding friends and optionally complete challenges together. Besides, the app
provided health tips and suggestions over time to inform the customers with latest health

knowledge.

Membership program
and benefits
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The app also served as a convenient platform that enabled customers to browse and make
purchase via the e-shop. Users could join the loyalty program and enjoy benefits including
birthday discounts, and accumulate points through making purchase and referral rewards
to exchange cash when checkout. Through the establishment of this app, Sinomax has
enhanced and extended its connection with more customers through providing a brand-new

shopping experience, and spreading healthy living messages in a wider community.

Aftersales services

As a responsible and customer-oriented company, the Group treasured any feedback from
the customers and treated it as an opportunity to improve existing practice. Customers
could provide feedback and arrange relevant service needed in the sales outlets, or through
the mobile application, customer service hotline and email according to their preferences.
Customer Service Department was responsible to follow-up any customer enquiries and
conduct reviews according to the formulated after sales policy and compliant handling policy in

an effort to give satisfactory responses to customers.

During the Reporting Year, there was no product recall due to safety or health problems. The
Group has received 128 complaints from customers about its products and services. All cases
were handled following the Group's product recall manual and customer compliant handling

procedures respectively.

Once a compliant is received, the Customer Service Department shall review the order details
and report to Quality Assurance Department immediately. The Quality Assurance Department
is responsible to investigate the issue and communicate with relative department to seek for a
solution which meets customer’s satisfaction. After all, the relative department should generate
a report for customers” and company's record, which summarizes the cause, measures and
duration of the case. All filed cases will be used as training materials for product and service
quality improvement and reflection. The Group is keen to resolve any issue with customers in

an open manner.
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RIR - HERERERE

In accordance with the information management standards set out in the Group's Corporate
Culture Handbook and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Group handled customers’
personal information obtained from sales activities cautiously. Customer information shall be
properly stored and only used for promotional purposes under their prior consent. The Group
has also assigned an external information technology company to monitor customer data

storage system on a regular basis to secure the information safety.

The Group respected intellectual property rights (IPRs) and complied with all relevant
international rules. In case of any discovered IPR related issues, the Group shall resolve in a
proactive and open manner. The Group paid attention to protecting IPR when signing the
cooperation agreement with suppliers or partners in the research and development phase by

including it as one of the terms.

THE TEAM BEHIND THE QUALITY PRODUCT

The creation of quality products was originating from the efforts placed by the Group's
dedicated and innovative employees. Therefore, Sinomax endeavored to support employees
through creating a fair and open working culture, providing an ideal working environment
and proper trainings to boost their talents and skills, in assistance to the Group's sustainable

development.

Talents attraction

The Group believed attracting talents with different personal qualities contributed to the
formation of a diverse and innovative team. Consequently, the Group has provided equal
employment opportunities to all job applicants regardless of race, sex, age, family status,
religion and politics background. In addition, the Group has provided fair competitive
compensation packages with reference to market conditions to attract and retain talents.
Sinomax also respected employees' personal development and offered an internal transfer

program to excel their skills.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

REASE (BEXCFMH) K (EAER
(RLBR)IRBI) FREMEMEREN AKE
EREECHERDMEGNELBAAR
F-BEPEHEZZERTFRALETEFZ
ERFE TMEHREER - AEEFE RIRI
BEANRARTHEREPEMTERE
B NERERL 2

AEEESENAEELETHEREBNER
R -MBRETMENZEEEHERENS
o AEESATHMAFRMN T AR K
SEEMERREHERRAFBHEES
e &R B REHNBERE LHED

B

BEEREANER

=
=

S

EEBEERARNARBEHELALLEMN
TITHREHNE N -Hit BHEHHI/ET
EENF MRS TEXE REUZEN T
ERIG KRB E MBI ABRTHE P80 BE A
Bl RESAKENARHEER -

\

AN

AREREEERIIAETRABATEN
AT REPARS T RAFOERK B
b AREHRAAERKBERBTSIE
we TwERK M- Fi KERR
RYMBOAE R U ARELEMEE
o REEBFNOFMEE Rl RRE
AT - BmTEEETHNEAZR WRHE
AR S ROMEERR-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In order to give employees a workplace which felt like home, entertainment amenities such
as library, recreational center, fitness rooms, KTV rooms and game rooms were equipped in
the Guangdong premise. These amenities allowed them to relax after work. The Group also

encouraged them to enrich their spare time to promote work-life balance.

The Group praised employees’ hard work in making Sinomax a well-recognized brand. For
instance, the Group had held staff activities including birthday parties and annual dinners at

different premises to increase their interactions and reinforce their sense of belongings.

Safeguarding talents

Sinomax has been committed to creating a workplace that protects its people, and strived
to achieve the goal of zero work-related accident. In view of this, the Group has established
safety management policies and manual to guide the employees throughout the manufacturing

process.

The Group has assigned designated safety managers to oversee the implementation of the
protective measures and monitor safety performance. On top of that, regular inspections
were conducted on manufacturing equipment, safety facilities and electric appliances to lower
workplace hazards. The Group has also arranged periodic incident drills and safety trainings to

strengthen employees’ safety awareness and ability on emergency response.

The manufacturing of memory foams required the use of hazardous substances and
therefore, the Group implemented health and safety measures to lower the associated risks
of employees exposed to these substances. The Group provided suitable personal protective
equipment, such as safety helmets and dust masks. The equipment was checked regularly in
case of any damages. Additionally, the Group organized annual physical examinations for these
relevant employees and established health records to examine their health status, and follow
up any problematic cases. For example, offering reasonable sick leaves to ensure staff member

has sufficient time to recover from the diagnosis of any impacted health condition.
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RIR - HERERERE

In case if any work injury happened, it shall be reported to the Administration Department.
The Group shall also contact injured staff's family members and send the staff to hospital
depending on the seriousness. As a follow-up procedure, the department which the injured
staff belonged to shall conduct an investigation on identifying the cause and suggest preventive

measures to avoid repeated incidents within 2 working days.

As a result of a comprehensive occupational health and safety mechanism that the Group
has applied, the injury rate in this reporting year decreased by 9.2% compare to the previous
reporting year, and had not noticed any material non-compliance with any applicable laws
and regulations relating to workplace hazard prevention, occupational health and safety during

production.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

MBEEMTE BRTERARE -AKHE
THEBEXBEINRE TRFEEMR
EREERMEEER -FARERF X5
ETIMBENIDFIEMEIERNETHE
WERRE YR EEAER B KRS
ERBEMS-

ARARERAZENBRBENL 2H
Bl AREFENEERE FREFEAL
B NE9.2% - TNRBEREMREEBET
ERERTBRELEE BRERENZ2M
BB AT o) B R AR DR F 4



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Talents cultivation

Through a planned, systematic and ongoing training scheme formulated to boost employees’
skills and knowledge, this shall facilitate the Group to achieve business targets. The Group

assigned Human Resources (“HR") Department to devote training resources and design

mandatory training programs according to the employees' rank and role, and business needs.

As a company that strived for progression, the Group created a culture where employees
encouraged each other to build on their skills actively. After the completion of assigned
trainings, employees underwent a performance review to assess if their certain skills required

extra training or they have become eligible to receive promotion opportunity.

Employees undertook on-site trainings to
enhance working skills
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RIR - HERERERE

Besides mandatory training needed for a safe business operation, the Group has offered
training opportunities to enhance employees’ skills and career growth while keeping them in
line with the Group's business development. The Group encouraged employees to participate
in internal and external trainings and programs to help their professional competency and

career development.

Business integrity

The Group has been devoted to upholding ethical business practices by strictly forbidding any

illegal labor practices and corrupted behaviors.

Sinomax has strictly complied with all laws and regulations relating to child and forced labor
and has upheld a zero-tolerance principle towards such practices. The Group has maintained
the principle of impartiality and voluntariness, and prohibits any coercion or deception in the
course of recruitment. The Group has appointed the HR Department to thoroughly check
the identity and verified the age of all candidates. In case if any forced labor case is discovered,
the HR Department would intervene to stop the infringement actions and offer reasonable
compensation. If the misuse of child labor was discovered, the Group shall immediately

terminate the contract and help the individual to re-enroll in school.

To prevent any corrupt behavior, guidance for employees on avoiding bribery, extortion, fraud,
money laundering and other acts in serious breach of business ethics were stipulated in the
Code of Conduct. The Group has signed an Integrity Agreement with its suppliers and has
required its employees to follow the Letter of Commitment to Honest and Clean Business
Practices. The Group has set out the chairman’s mailbox as a whistle-blowing channel for
stakeholders to report on any suspected violations. In case of any reported case, the HR
Department shall report to the Board, investigate involved parties and take disciplinary actions
as needed. During the Reporting Year, the Group had zero concluded case relating to corrupt
practices, and complied with all relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,

fraud, and money laundering.
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PROMOTE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To promote a healthy living environment to families and the surroundings, Sinomax took
different initiatives to manage its impacts on environment and natural resources. Based on the
ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System, the Group has formulated respective
measures to oversee and manage emissions and resource consumptions. In this regard, the
HR Department and Logistics Department were appointed to monitor the consumption
of different resources and materials. In case of any identified abnormal consumptions or
emissions, necessary measures would be implemented for mitigation purposes. Additionally,
the Group formulated environmental topic specific policies and guidelines for office and
manufacturing sites in compliance with the national and local government laws and regulations.
In the Reporting Year, the Group complied with all relevant local environmental laws and

regulations.

As the environmental data collected in the previous reporting year was solely from Dongguan
manufacturing site and hence, the environmental data in this Reporting Year was unable to be
finely compared. The Group had improved its data collection system to firmly compare results

and achievements in the future.

Energy usage and air emissions

The business operation requires the use of various energy sources for office operations,

cooking, production, and logistics and transportations:
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RIR - HERERERE

In order to maintain effective use of energy, lower associated emissions and avoid wastage of
resources, the Group identified items associated with energy consumption and implemented
various policies to control the usage. These include:

1 Switch off devices, equipment and lightings when not in use

2) Maximize the use of natural light

3) Apply power saving mode in devices when possible

4) Prevent equipment malfunction through daily maintenance procedures for the upkeep
of equipment

5)  Assess electricity consumption patterns to identify abnormality that required correction

6) Replace logistics transports with high emission standard model where possible
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Foreseeing the importance of monitoring energy consumption and operation cost, the Group
has continuously replaced lightings by LED fixtures to lower electricity consumption. It was
estimated the replacement of energy saving lightings has brought at least 80% electricity
saving at Dongguan and Zhejiang premises. Furthermore, the Group has installed solar panels
on the roof-top of the factories in Dongguan and Zhejiang to compensate for the energy
consumption. During the Reporting Year, 2,279,482 kWh of electricity was generated from the
solar panels and carbon emission was reduced by 1,433 tons CO», equivalent to about 62,308

trees planted.
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RIR - HERERERE

The consumption of energy sources contributed to greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) emissions EHERMEESNENAERE ([BE
respectively: K&

GHG emissions Source

BERBIER R SR

Scope |: Direct emissions Diesel, natural gas and gas used at production sites

#HE | BRER AREERMNSH RARKER

LPG, diesel and gasoline used in logistics and transportations
ARYIRME S AR AR - 508 )T

Gas used for cooking at premises

RYEZEEMAHER
Scope 2: Indirect emissions Electricity used at premises
EED : RN MEFERNE

As the Group implemented measures to reduce energy consumption, the emission of GHG ARAREEEIERRLERER  Fitb2
was reduced consequently. ERBHHEREBEZRD -
In addition, the production process had also contributed air pollutant emissions including AN EEBRBMEKRTERS 2R 8
dichloromethane, toluene and carbon tetraoxide. In order to lower the impacts on the air BEZ@F R FEMME iR BRIELEE
quality, the Group has sought out solutions. For instance, the Group installed spray towers REENFE KEBECHNISKERE
at the exhaust outlets to remove at least 80% of gaseous pollutants before entering into the Rl REEEHGOLTEBEZE  NUE
atmosphere. Moreover;, the Group also installed activated carbon adsorption devices in the FEARXDEZAEREDSOS = RIG AL
Guangdong premise to collect and treat waste gas emitted during the manufacturing process, Mo BN REBMEBRNMERAB S M
to meet regulatory requirements. In purpose of ensuring relevant compliance, air emissions WHTEE A EREEEEBETATHER
audit was carried out at least once per year to regulate the air emissions level. WER URAEERTE BEREHESRE
- BEHETEL - RERFERET A
REZERIEPUKF -
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The Group's factory in Dongguan has started using natural gas as a cleaner fuel source to
lower air emissions since May, 2018. The Group endeavored to promote clean and green

production and strived to continuously seek possibilities to achieve the goal.

Although there was an air emission enquiry at Shandong premise during the Reporting
Year regarding exceed regulatory limited of VOC emissions prior to its commencement in
production, the Group had immediately taken necessary actions including remained close
communication with local government and ordered VOC removal equipment. With the
efficient response, there was minimal impact on its operations throughout the settled case. The
Group will closely monitor air pollutant emissions and remain effective communication with

local government to ensure emissions are at least amount possible.

Water and wastewater management

The manufacturing process required water for chemical mixing procedures. Apart from this,
water was also used for daily operation and toiletry needs. Sinomax acknowledged water as
a precious natural resource and thus, the Group has implemented water saving measures and
encouraged employees to conserve water: These include:

)] Turn off water appliances when not in use

2) Monitor water usage pattern to detect any abnormality

3) Conduct daily maintenance to prevent water leakage of water appliances

4) Post water saving educational posters on bulletin board to educate employees to

reduce water consumption

5) Reuse water at spray towers

6) Use recycled water, rainwater or groundwater at most and when possible
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RIR - HERERERE

In Chengdu and Dongguan premises, the Group has installed water tower to recycle water for

usage.

As the manufacturing process involved chemical mixing procedures that would lead to the
discharge of wastewater containing chemicals. Sinomax was aware of the consequences
brought by discharging untreated wastewater directly, such as land contamination and water
pollution. For this instance, the Group has established a policy and implemented related

measures to manage wastewater discharge. These include:
1 Install separate draining for staff canteen which separates cooking oil from water

2) Discharge wastewater from spray tower and sites cleaning to specified drainage that

connects to local water treatment plant for proper treatment as a legal practice

The Group has set up rainwater and sewage diffluence facility at Zhejiang premise to
treat wastewater prior to discharge at any case. Besides, wastewater sampling and auditing
was conducted on a yearly basis at all sites to ensure quality of water discharged meets

compliance. In the Reporting year, there were no particular issues in sourcing water.
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Waste management

The Group emphasized good waste management policies and procedures in order to utilize
resources effectively and avoid associated environmental issues. The HR Department was
responsible to label, handle, store and recycle waste according to the guidelines set in the solid

waste handling manual to encourage recycling and reuse, and minimize waste generation.

In general, wastes were categorized into non-hazardous waste, hazardous waste, recyclable
waste and non-recyclable waste. The Group required all employees to sort waste by type
in the assigned waste storage area. The HR Department assigned qualified contractors and
waste recycling and handling companies for waste handling over a certain period of time.
Furthermore, regular trainings are provided to the employees to enhance their know-how on

adequate waste sorting and management.

To avoid amount of packaging material generated from raw materials procurement, the Group
purchase refillable-packaged instead of barreled-packaged raw materials at most to reduce

waste.

In the process of manufacturing, the Group generated a significant amount of wasted foam.
To maximize resources efficiency, Sinomax has set up a recycling facility at all sites to recycle
the wasted foam into useful material. This has helped to minimize waste generated from

production.
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BE HEREREWE

As a daily waste reduction practice, the Group encouraged employees to bring their own
drinking bottles for refill and prevent the use of bottled or barreled water to minimize plastic

waste generated as a result.

The Group has endeavored to enhance its waste management system and incorporate
records for all waste disposed. Throughout the Reporting Year, the Group had achieved an
overall non-hazardous waste recycling rate of 83%. The Group will continue its good waste

management practices and seek ways to reduce and recycle waste.
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280
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Non-hazardous waste
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Noise management

Sinomax realized the potential impact on the surroundings brought by noise generated from
the production process. Therefore, the Group has formulated a noise pollution control policy

to monitor noise level and avoid causing nuisance. The policy states:

) Repair equipment that generates abnormally loud noise immediately

2)  Appoint third party consultancy company to conduct noise auditing at least once per

year to ensure production operates under compliance

3) Evaluate implemented measures and adopt additional measures if necessary

The factories were installed with noise barriers such as soundproof rooms and sound
insulation windows to prevent the noise level from exceeding the compliance level and
distract the surroundings. In the Reporting Year, all factories complied with the relevant local

noise emission standards.
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R HERERAWRE

Green office

The Group endeavors to promote a green office culture. To echo carbon reduction and
environment sustainability, the Group has established “Sinomax green office plan”. The HR
Department took charge to implement the plan and review the performances monthly. Under

the plan, employees were encouraged to:

Maintain indoor temperature between

24 to 26 degrees Celsius
REERBEE24F26BKREZE

Switch off all electronic devices or
lights when leaving a room

AR R RN - FEFAEFRIESER

Automatically shut down
computers at 10pm

8% £+ 0% B EHEARA R

Print or photocopy on both sides of

paper as possible

B RETEAR SR TSI EDSZED

Recycle used papers where possible

BT RE B REAR

Maximize use of e-mails and organize

work electronically

BRERLE

AEBRNREEZCHRE L  REE
RIBERARIRM AR EERE AEEDH
TIREZCRAEE] - ANBERBEE
BTt 8N G AR — Ik o kT &
T FHEEI:

A

RXREMEREFBHRETEEASTIE

Bringing own drinking cups

B e

In addition, energy saving signs were posted at visible areas to raise employees’ awareness.
In return of employees’ driving force, the office has significantly reduced electricity and paper

consumption. This has reflected Sinomax's success in cultivating a green office cufture.

:
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DELIVER LOVE TO COMMUNITY

Being the first enterprise to receive the 1SO 26000 certification on corporate social
responsibility, Sinomax also intended to uphold its core value by contributing the betterment
of the community beyond delivering its love through the products. In order to continue driving
employees to participate in the society, the Group has established staff volunteer teams at

premises and participated in various voluntary events to deliver its care to the “Beloved".

In Hong Kong, the team had participated events focus on children and elderlies. For instance,
the Group had participated in Wish Carnival @ SummerFest 2018 organized by Make-A-Wish
Hong Kong. This themed-event was aimed to encourage society's care for and support on
children with serious health condition to pursue their dreams bravely. Sinomax had also joined
a Young Men’s Christian Association organized activity which was to make donut and snacks
with children and encourage them to share with family and friends to achieve “Love Supports
Beloved”. Other than these, the team made visits to the elderly care centers to express

Sinomax's care to the elderly population.
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BE HEREREWE

Sinomax Hong Kong volunteer team participated in
Wlsh Carnlval

ummerFest 2018 in Hong Kong
SINERBRNN2018FE

The Sinomax volunteer team from Hong Kong had brought

their families along and joined the event,

“JOYPixels x

VOLUNTEER SPACE EMOJIONE Walkathon” to show
their care and support towards the vulnerable groups in
Hong Kong, and poor children in Africa and PR
EBBINEAE TREEMMNRASm [

EmojiONEER

BEREAT | TEE o LAREM

HEURFENNDHER BRI

Sinomax Volunteer Team from Hong Kong partnered with
Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association Sham Shui
Po Integrated Home Care Services and hold a day trip with
solitary elders. Throughout the event, they visited Noah'’s Life
Education House to participate a range of edutainment
activities and review the importance of happiness in life.
E?éﬂ’]““‘%ﬂ%‘@i? E’S BEERKSGES %EB@EE
BRBHEE - B2F E HiR - b FAHE
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In recognition of Sinomax's dedicated efforts to give back to the community, the Group
has been a World-Wide Fund (“WWF")-Hong Kong silver membership. In addition to the
implementation of green office practices, the Group has continued to advocate the message
of protecting earth’s resources and encourage citizen to support through donation at WWF

donation boxes placed within the office.
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In the PRC, teams from different premises joined events organized by local governments
that aimed to deliver care to the vulnerable groups and promote green-living community
throughout the Reporting Year. In addition to making visits to elderly care centers and children
day care centers, the Group had participated in numerous environmental protection events,
such as the 2018 Arbor Day and Riding event co-organized by Sichuan Green Foundation and
local governments. This event aimed to promote low-carbon and green city which composed
of a range of activities including bike riding, planting trees and more. The participation of
a range of environmental protection promoting events had shown Sinomax's devotion to
contribute to a greener society along with government initiatives. Furthermore, the PRC
volunteer teams had donated daily necessities, and participated in post-disaster clean-up and

blood donation that contributed to build up a caring society.

A (a peunnennes ! . q

Sinomax volunteer team from Shenzhen gathered and
participated post-disaster clean up activity held at
Zhulin Community. k
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Employees were volunteering to clean up damaged
public area to encourage caring of public property.
STITEERBRNALES - USBREDY -

The volunteer team in the PRC organized a clothing recycling
activity that collected unwanted clothes in good condition and
dona!ed the clothes to the vulnerable group
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RE - HERERAWE

Through the Group's dedication in contributing community well-being, Sinomax has built up a BRAEEB N ALREWLIEL TR &B#

culture that spreads love and care to vulnerable group, and promotes greener atmosphere for BEEV—BRBELEEREE LMBIERNX
b YRAFENEERREEFZEHNR

=

7\ °

a sustainable living environment.

828,930

HKD #JT

3,608
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LOOKING FORWARD

As one of the business strategies, the Group will continuously seek ways to refine its
sustainability management through engaging different stakeholders and reviewing the
management approaches periodically. Being part of the manufacturing industry, the Group is
committed to promote healthy living through producing high quality products in a responsible
manner: Sinomax believes this to be achieved by adopting green operations, safeguarding
employees and delivering care to the “beloved” in contribution to continuous business

development and overall community well-being.
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RIR - HERERERE

PERFORMANCE TABLE gV

Environmental Performance Unit 2018
RERE B 20185 ()
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions & Z . 88 HE ik

Scope |: Direct emission @ Tons of COz equivalent (tCOqe) 2,480
#HE | BERERY M_ftHEE

Scope 2: Indirect emission © tCOse 7,294
#ED : ERARO M_ftHEE

Total emissions tCOae 9,775
BErmE M_ftHEE

GHG emissions intensity tCO2/M' Revenue 229
BERBHREE M_EtREE/ BERA

Energy Usage ) BEIRME A

Solar energy © MWh JK FLEs 4074
NC LR

Electricity MWh JK FLEs 11,554
ES

Natural gas © MWh JK FLEs 420
RARO

Diesel MWh JK FL I 494,768
i

Gasoline MWh JK FL I 1978
B

Liquefied petroleum gas ("LPG") i/t BB A ([ BHER]) MWh JK FL B 25
Gas B3R, MWh JK EL B I
Energy intensity 8215 % /8 MWHh/M' Revenue JKELEF,/ B & IA 120.29
Water Consumption 7K

Total 28 m’ ILJ5 K 315254
Water consumption intensity F3 7K 2 & mYM' Revenue S 5K,/ B BHRA 7395
Hazardous Waste B EBEEY)

Total 85T tons M8 185
Non-Hazardous Waste &&= BEEY)

Total #5T tons i 1179
Total waste recycled BEZE VB B = tons [ 977
Waste recycling rate & % ) [B] 4 & % 83
Packaging Material 4% #1 £

Total #5t tons i 7,158

110 Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report



Note (1):

Note (2):

Note (3):

Note (4):

Note (5):

Note (6):

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Gaseous emissions are insignificant to Sinomax's operations.

Scope | GHG emissions refer to direct emission of GHG from sources owned or

controlled by the Group, which include (i) transportation and (i) machinery usage.

Scope 2 GHG emissions refer to indirect GHG emissions resulting from the generation of

the electricity which the Group purchased.

The retail shops' energy consumptions were excluded.

The reported data involved the electricity generated from solar panel in Dongguan

premise only.

Natural gas was used in the Shanghai and Dongguan factories only. The Dongguan factory

has started using natural gas since May, 2018.
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RIR - HERERERE

Social Performance Unit 2018
HERE B 2018%F
Workforce Profile & T#ER
Total workforce #{& & No. of people A I 2,864
By gender Male S5 1% No. of people AZX 1476
RIERIE S Female ZC 14 No. of people A I 1,388
By age Group Under 30 years old No. of people AZX 652
REERERIE D 30584 T
30 to 50 years old No. of people AZX 1,866
305% £505%
Over 50 years old No. of people AZX 288
50 BRbA £
By employment type Management & 12 [E No. of people A £ 20
REBFEES Senior MR BT No. of people A I 52
Junior AR E T No. of people A #X 2,792
By geographical region Hong Kong &8 No. of people A I 112
ZiRE 5 PRC No. of people A 2,752
Occupational Health and Safety B £ @R Z 2
Injury rate per 1,000 employees & T % E T T 5% % 1240
Lost days due to work injury B {5 Bk TIEA 81 Day B # 1202.5
Number of fatalities 5t T-#{ 5 No. of people A £ 0
Rate of fatalities £ Tt % % 0

Note (1):  Employees information of the United States premises are excluded.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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RE -#HEBRERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX ESGRARS|
Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
e BMREEAMER ML B EH B
A. Environment }R31%
Aspect Al: EMISSIONS
EBEAI - 5B
Al General disclosure  Information on:
—RIKE
(a) the policies; and Promote environmental protection;
(@) B &% HEBRERE:
(b) compliance There was one non-compliance case
(b) & regarding air emissions reported during the 95-104
B E KL Reporting Year which had been resolved
as disclosed under section promote
environmental protection
BREFENAERER -FERAZRE
BE R HERBRIL N EERRR
EEHTRE
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Promote environmental protection 95. 104
BB R BB B A B o HEBRGRE
Al2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where  Performance Table
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, &
per facility). 10
BERBAIRE (VAR E) X (@A) ZE (I
NEEESM SRERMITE) -
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, ~ EEZE Y& 12
per facility). 102
PREEESREEYHES (UEE) R (NER)ZE
(MABEEEN BERMTE) -
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Waste management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production BEENERE
volume, per facility). 102
FrEERESEEYES (UEE) R (NER)ZE
(MABEBEN BERMTE) -
AlLS Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results ~ Promote environmental protection
achieved. HEIRGEIRE 95-104
fi AR BE IR OFE M RS AR
Al6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes ~ Waste management; Green office
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. BEDER GEPRE 104

HiREAEREZEZRNNTE REELENT

MR PTG RCR °
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RIR - HERERERE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
B & HRERES fHd B EH B
Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
BEA2 - BiRER
A2 General disclosure Policies Promote environmental protection 05. 104
—RIKE B EBRGIRE
A2l Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Performance Table
electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity &2
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). m
RENEADNERRSEEER (NE - fsh) 2
HE(NTETREHE) REE (MASEEEN -
BERME)
A22 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of  Performance Table
production volume, per facility). BRIk 10
BEKEREE (WMABEEEN BEARBHE)
A23 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and resufts ~ Energy usage and GHG emissions; Green 96.99,
achieved. office 104
R R AR ERAEKR ERERREEREHI RERRE
A24 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Water and wastewater management
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and resutts 7K 2 BE /K & 12
achieved. 99-100
1 3 SR ERSE A 7KOR £ °T A AT TR - DA R BR TR KK
s ERFBRR
A25 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Prudent procurement
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit EERE
produced. 85
AXMAMAREMEMNEE (UHEEE) R (ER)
BEEEUHE-
Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
BEA3 RERRARER
A3 General disclosure Policies Promote environmental protection 05. |04
—RIKE BR HERERE
A3l Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Promote environmental protection
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to  fB)IRIZ(RE
manage them. 95-104

HARBEEDEIRERRAERNEATE NE KR

ERARTENTE-
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RE -#HEBRERRE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
[& [ BERERER MHA B EH B
B. Society L&
Aspect Bl: EMPLOYMENT
BB : E R
Bl General disclosure  Information on:
—RIKE
(a) the policies; and Talent attraction
@ BR: & WA AT 50|
(b) compliance There was no relevant material non-
b) & # compliance during the Reporting Year
iof s BEFENRERBNEREREMN
BI.I Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Performance Table
geographical region. Bk 12
mItR BEER FREN R DWESEHN-
BI.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and The Group shall improve data collection

geographical region.

BRI FRARN RS DMEERKL K-

system for future disclosure.
AEERIUERBRE R AERR
&
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RIR - HERERERE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.

fEH HRERES fHd B EH B

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EmER - BEHEZ2E

B2 General disclosure  Information on:
—RIEE
(a) the policies; and Safeguarding talents
(@ B&E: & REAT
92
(b) compliance There was no relevant material non-
(b) B compliance during the Reporting Year
&K BEFENRERBANEREREN
B2 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Performance Table "
BT EBEMETHABRL K- B
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Table "
RIGEAIIERR- RIS
B23 Description of occupational health and safety measures Safeguarding talents
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. REAT 9
R FTERR B ERRELT 255 BB R
ERTE
Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
B3 : R R
B3 General disclosure Policies Talents cultivation 93.94
—REE BR BEAL
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and The Group shall improve data collection
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle system for future disclosure.
management). REBEIGE B E RS AERE -

RUBIREEER (WSREEE TREEES)E KE-
ARXIEEENL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by The Group shall improve data collection
gender and employee category. system for future disclosure.
BURREBENE D BREEXRZINTHE ARERIBCERBUERGR  UERR
e WE-
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Aspect KPI Description
B & HRERES fHd

RE -#HEBRERRE

Statement/Section Page No.

B EH B

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
fETEB4 : 8 TR
B4 General disclosure Information on:
—RKE
(a) the policies; and

@) BX: &

(b) compliance
b) B #
H)E
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
R RIS E P E AR RET RoEHIST -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered.

HAEERERBEREERABERRERO S

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
EmEBS : fiEHER

B5 General disclosure Policies
—RIKE B
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
iR E DR HEREE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
Wil EREREERNES MERTEREN MM
FBASE ARAREMNRITRERE -

Business integrity
GELAH

94
There was no relevant material non-
compliance during the Reporting Year
BEFENRERBANEREREN
Business integrity

EELAS 94

Business integrity

GEEAH 94

Prudent procurement
EERE
Prudent procurement
EHERE
Prudent procurement

EERE

84

84

84
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RIR - HERERERE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
B & HRERES fHd B EH B
Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
EEBe - EMER
B6 General disclosure  Information on:
—RIKE
(a) the policies; and Quality assurance process; Aftersales
() BUK: & services
EERERF  ERRH 89-90
(b) compliance There was no relevant material non-
b) & # compliance during the Reporting Year
MR BEFENRERBNEREREMN
Bé. Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Aftersales services
recalls for safety and health reasons. BRI 89-90
EEXCEREREHTRL 2 BERIEMMALK
MBS -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Aftersales services
received and how they are dealt with. & 1% RS 89-90
REANER RGO FEE A REY A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Aftersales services
intellectual property rights. EERS 89-90
MG E R RENZERFANED
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Quality assurance process
procedures. BEERBREFT 89-90
it mEREBREREMERIER
B6.S5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Aftersales services
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. E8 R 89.90

HEEEBRRERALBEE  AREERTRE
Bhke
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RE -#HEBRERRE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
B & BREEXESR #HA B EH B
Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EBEB7 : RES
B7 General disclosure  Information on:
—RIEE
(a) the policies; and Business integrity
(@ B R [SEAE
94
(b) compliance There was no relevant material non-
(b) B compliance during the Reporting Year
&K BEFENRERBANEREREN
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Business integrity
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during 7 3% # {5
the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases. 94
RBEHAHETARERERIICERENETH
REMEOEE RFRER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Business integrity
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. EELAR 94
iy b R R WEN - U RBERITRER %
Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
[EEBS : HBIRE
B8 General disclosure Policies Deliver love to community 105.108
—REE BR HEEELE
B8. Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental  Deliver love to community
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). HEEEMHRE 105-108
EIEREE (NHE REEE SIFR BE
Xft-87) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Deliver love to community
area. BEEEME 108

EEIEBMPAER (M HELERH) -

BHREBERALAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZRENRE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
BHEEEERAT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinomax Group Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
I31 to 291, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 AR

BREEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most HMRETEEEREESNBEAL YA
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These MG EBRRNBHEREENEE-
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements BELEER Eﬁﬁﬂrﬁﬁfﬁé\ﬁﬁfy#ﬁﬁﬁ

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on HEAERNETREN BETGHELS

these matters.

Key audit matter

BRELTSH

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

BERABHEREHFH 2 EREEZHE

We identified the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life arising from the acquisition of Dormeo North
America, LLC (the “Dormeo”) in 2016 as a key audit matter due to
the significant management judgments and estimations are required
to estimate the value in use of cash-generating units (“CGUs") of the

Dormeo.

B0 # A R2016F W B Dormeo North America, LLC
([Dormeo | ) EXZBAEKERERGCAFH 2BV EEZR
BEABRETEER  REAMF Dormeo HEEEEM ([HE
EEBN]) 2 EREBREELEREEE KRG

IETE{/\i?%E"JE\E °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEFTHRARENSENRESN

Our procedures in relation to impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

with indefinite useful life included:

BEUNBENARERERFH EVAENRECEFERE:

. Understanding the key controls in relation to the impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life, including the
process of preparation of the discounted cash flow model, CGUs

allocation and key assumptions used in the estimation;

Tﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁé‘;&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬂZﬂ%ﬁFE’ﬂWﬁE’ﬂ@%@%
Ei ARERERREMRRERERE ReEL BN
nﬁE&ﬂEﬁﬁrﬁﬁﬁE’]F%fMP‘“

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions, including growth
rates, gross margin, discount rate and expected sales from customers, in
the discounted cash flow model prepared and endorsed by the board
and reviewed by an independent professional valuer and discussing with

the management on their expectation for future market development;

SEEESRURAT LAY S EENEY 2 RS R
R HRER (REMER ERNR BRXRRAESH
BEHE) 2 EEY  TREEENRREERATSEENH

=zl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BE R

Key audit matter

HRELTSEH

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

BERAEHEREFFHHEBEEZBE

As at 3| December 2018, the carrying values of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life of the Dormeo were
HK$36,463,000 and HK$85,483,000. Determining whether the
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are impaired
requires the management judgments and estimations to estimate the
value in use of the CGUs related to business of which the goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful life have been allocated
using discounted cash flow model. In estimating the value in use of
the CGUs, key assumptions used by the management include growth
rates, gross margin, discount rate, expected sales from customers and

management’s expectation for future market development.

2018 12A31H 'Dormeo HEN EBERFAFH  EF
B E 7 BRE (B 536,463,000/ 7T 854830008 L - BEEAE R A
EERCAFH EREERTDRNBEELENEEEHE
st UERMRASRERAGHROEIEFERAS
ERCAFHCENEEZEBEB ReELEN L FRE
BE-REReEFEL EREER EREMACBRER
FEEERE ENE BREX REFFPHNERHEREEE
HARRTIZER AL
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEFTHBARENSENERESN

. Evaluating the reasonableness of, and recalculating, the sensitivity
analysis prepared by management and assessing the impact on the

value in use of the CGUs;

AHEEEBRENGRESMNAEY WETEHFE UK
AEHREELBUEREENFE:



Key audit matter

HRELTSEH

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

BERAEHEREFFHHEBEEZBE

Management of the Group determined that there was no impairment
in these CGUs containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life for the year ended 31 December 2018. Details relating
to the management assessment on the impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SEEERETERAENARERERFH I ENEEL
FREELBMURBEWIFNLAINALFRELERE-F
EEEHRENARERERAFH BV EE RENEF
BNRAMBHRRIEL -
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B2 AR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEFTHBARENSENERESN

Comparing the actual results for the current year with management's
cash flows projections prepared in the previous year to evaluate the

accuracy of management's budgeting process;

BAFE ERXEHREEENEAFRENESREEAEL
5 BEMIBE R ERIZE

psin
e
EI”:—T
ﬁ?
i
pr
18]
ﬁ
EE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent qualified professional valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the valuer's scope of work and their terms of

engagement; and

AHEEVAERERMEMOBERE 5
BLERN TESEREENRBET: X

ENREBME ART

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assess the appropriateness

of valuation methodology and discount rate adopted.

BEEEFFEARAGEDNEREREOEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BE R

Key audit matter

HRELTSEH

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

BB EZ AT

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables to the Group's
consolidated financial position and the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating the expected
credit losses (“ECL") of the Group's trade receivables at the end of

the reporting period.

BEEHANESREFRCRENEABRETETE RER
BHREFRY BESBGAMBMRCERZMULFG &
SEESREFERBEPRCBREEFE ((ARFES
B REBHELEEE GG -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEFTHBARENSENERESN

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade receivables

included:

BEERESRUGRREMM CEFEE:

. Understanding key controls on how the management estimates the loss

allowance for trade receivables;

TREREMHEIREZAZ BREEz T2

. Testing the integrity of information used by management to develop
the provision matrix, including trade receivables ageing analysis and
individual customers' internal credit rating as at 3| December 2018,
on a sample basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis and the
internal credit rating with the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices

and other supporting documents;

BHEEL FRE T RABEEFHRFT 2ERIEE 2BRH
HERS HEEEREMIE XHELER AR ERER U
ERERRE BN TR BER018F12A3IB 28 SR
REBEERAMRERNEP 2N EETR



Key audit matter

HRELTSEH

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

BB EZ AT

As at 3| December 2018, the Group's net trade receivables
amounted to HK$692,747,000, which represented approximately
24% of total assets of the Group and out of these trade receivables
of HK$269,620,000 were past due. In the current year, as explained
in notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
adopted Hong Kong Financial Reporting 9 “Financial Instruments”
and the management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL of trade receivables based on provision matrix through grouping
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing repayment history and
past due status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates
are based on historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of the credit impaired
trade receivables is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

with the consideration of expected future losses.

R20I85E12A31H - BEE & 5 EWGRIET 5 /692,747,000
B HER BESEEERBER14% MRZEESHERK
THH -+ 269,620,000/ TTE B Bl - RAGEE - kR & B i m &k M
kAR EEEEHEABBMBMSEINE 2/
TE]-B BESEEEELERESHEBALABEETR
RREERLRZEFIEREFIB2OMMKN BREEFEMU
BEEX 2 SEBADEMRBEEEREMGGE HENGIEL
SHEREEERSE A BERDENEBARETFH
MELBEEAE  WIRBAIEEERHELRE LN FER
EESRNZBLENFEEAEESE - EEREE SER
B BERBSBDEERRRAREEE REEREE
BEFARRRERECRBELEHEHNE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEFTHBARENSENERESN

Challenging management's basis and judgement in determining
credit loss allowance on trade receivables as at 3| December 2018,
including their identification of credit impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management's grouping of the remaining trade
debtors into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical default rates and forward-looking

information); and

EREEEBTR0ISFNANBZEREEFEZZERR
BECEERYE RERESHAEEREE HENKE B2
EX#TESRERBEIEERBEBRATREN 2B
DRBEBEBNTRERFER A BRE  EE (K2%
FELEHNERAEEER) Rk
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HREITER EEHEENTHRRETSENERLRK

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

ESERSEZREFE

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, — * Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment of
the Group recognised an additional amount of HK$5,923,000 trade receivables in notes 4, 26 and 38 to the consolidated financial
of impairment of trade receivables for the year and the Group's statements.

allowance for lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31 December

2018 amounted to HK$24,913,000. FEGAVERRM T4 26 038N E B E 5 N IEFE TG
2B

MR ATHRERMAHEE BSEENTFERRABINE
SN T IERES 592300087 M EEER2018F 1283
BB SRWFE2BEBEEFIER249130008 T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resutting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BE R

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Gladys

Fung Suet Ngan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBEmREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M EE FERT THETT
Revenue YA 5 4,263,322 4,183,786
Cost of sales HE KA (3,491,279) (3,354,589)
Gross profit ES 772,043 829,197
Other income H A YA 7 66,931 51,739
Impairment losses, net of reversal AEEE (MR ) (5,923) -
Other gains and losses H iz K Eia 9 356 (6,548)
Selling and distribution costs SHE &y sHA AR (453,362) (472,796)
Administrative expenses TR (217,491) (216,950)
Finance costs B TS RAR 10 (40,096) (26,158)
Other expenses HipAx (94.872) (100,242)
Profit before taxation ¥ 55 B s 7 [l 27,586 58,242
Income tax expense PSR X 14 (22,744) (7,457)
Profit for the year F N g A 4,842 50,785
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hib2E (BX) KA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently ~ HRA A JREEFN 7 BER=HEE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation MEBINEBELNERZR
of foreign operations (59,937) 73,483
Reclassification of translation reserve to HE R — B AR
profit or loss upon disposal/dissolution SO EEERNELHE
of a subsidiary 42 (67) (1,364)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREME2E (FAX) WA
for the year (60,004) 72,119
Total comprehensive (expense) income FAZHE (Fx) WAL
for the year (55,162) 122,904
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: THATREMEFA (EIR)EM
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE SN (5,801) 39,674
Non-controlling interests SRR HE = 10,643 RN
4,842 50,785
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBRmRkHMEEKER

For the year ended 3| December 2018

BEWIBFANALFE

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
LS FET FHET
Total comprehensive (expense) income TAALEMEEARZE
for the year attributable to: (AX) A4
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZSUN (58,777) 107,652
Non-controlling interests E 3,615 15252
(55,162) 122,904
(Loss) earning per share B (E18) B A l6
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (B) (0.33) 227
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI ER
At 31 December 2018
R2018F12/318

2018 2017
20184 20174
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FER FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EmENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE R 17 682,084 713,031
Investment properties WEYE 18 90,224 99,389
Prepaid lease payments B EERIE 19 62,479 67,631
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FUEEME BB R
plant and equipment IR 13,182 20,806
Goodwil EES 20 61,409 62,764
Intangible assets mREE 21 122,399 137,268
Rental deposits ek 23 23,365 24,470
Deferred tax assets REHRIBEE 24 25,451 19,710
1,080,593 1,145,069
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Prepaid lease payments TENHEENIE 19 1,638 1727
Inventories PENTY 25 531,071 679,473
Trade and other receivables E 5 K E b UG IE 26 843,359 847121
Bills receivables JE W R 5 27 91,960 16,814
Trade receivables at fair value through FRAEMEEKRIRATE
other comprehensive income P8R 2 B 5 FE W FRIE 29 87,769 -
Tax recoverable GRS qEIE e — 1,719
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 30 - 2912
Fixed bank deposits EHRITER 30 32,394 32,852
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 30 234,435 155,485
1,822,626 1,738,103
CURRENT LIABILITIES mRENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RH A FER IR 31 600,258 623,192
Bills payables JE T =I5 32 86,181 91474
Contract liabilities aHaE 33 893 -
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRITIER 34 584,369 614990
Taxation payable JE T 1518 19,825 20,022
1,291,526 1,349,678
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFRE 531,100 388,425
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B EERRE & & 1,611,693 1,533,494
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2018

M20185 12A31H

2018 2017
20185 20174
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
M FET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBAE
Unsecured bank borrowings EARIRITIER 34 289,388 121,064
Deferred tax liabilities REFIRAE 24 96,462 102,964
385,850 224,028
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,225,843 1,309,466
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARN
Share capital A% A% 35 175,000 |75,000
Reserves s 904,429 980,030
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Bl #E B A FE{G HES 1,079,429 1,155,030
Non-controlling interests eI i 146,414 154,436
TOTAL EQUITY ] 1,225,843 1,309,466

The consolidated financial statements on pages |31 to 291 were approved and authorised for FI3IEWIBFEGE I BRERN20I9F3

issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: RUBEEESHERKENZ L H T
EERRER:
Mr. Cheung Tung SRR £ & Mr. Lam Kam Cheung k88 % 56 &
DIRECTOR B# DIRECTOR £ %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEWI8F 2AIHIEFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RARHENEERE
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital options  Translation Retained Sub- controling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits total interests Total

BA  ROEE AGEE AERE ALRE BRERE EARE RLET hat FEERER st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKPOO0  HKS000  HK$000  HKO0O  HK$O000
Far  Tr  TEr TAr  Tex FTHxr TAr TAr TEr TET TEx
(Note () (Note (i)  (Note (i)
(WgEqy  (Bekgy) (KRG

At | January 2017 201741 A1 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 12621 1510 13575 (35238) 891,137 1,059,290 154806 121409
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - S e 39674 I 50785
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEN

translation of foreign operations EHER - - - - - - 69342 - 69,342 4141 73483

Reclassification of translation reserve
to profit or loss upon dissolution

BH-RANBLAR
BHHBRERED

of a subsidiary iR - - - - - - (1364) - (1364) - (1,364)
Total comprehensive income FREABANEE

for the year - - - - - - 67978 39,674 107,652 15252 122,904
Dividend recognised as distribution B A D RAIR &

(note 15) (MizE15) - - - - - - - (175000 (17500) - (17500)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 3R AR & FAT R 15 69

Interests 8 - - - - - - - - - (1562) (1562

Recognition of share based

BARANRER

payment expense - - - - - 5588 - - 5588 - 5588
Transfers B3 - - - 2908 - - - (2908) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017F128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 15529 1510 19,163 32,740 910403 1,155,030 154436 1309466
Adjustments (see note 2) AR (AME) - - - - - - - (464) (464) - (464)
At 1 Janvary 2018 (restated) KISEIAIE (BFF]) 175000 404520  (403g835) 1559 1510 19063 32740 909939 IIS4566 154436 1,309,002
(Loss) profit for the year EM (FR) 5 - - - - - - - (5,801) (5,801) 10,643 484
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEN

translation of foreign operations EHER - - - - - - (52915) - (52915) (7022 (59937)
Reclassification of translation reserve & — B 1\ ] f&

to profit or loss upon disposal BENHEERRN

of a subsidiary B = - - - - - 1) . 6) ®) ©7)
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2E (AX)BA

income for the year bk - - - - - - (52,976) (5.801) (58,777) 3615 (55,162)
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ BB A DR Z K &

(note 15) (Hizx15) - - - - - - - (175000 (17.500) - (17.500)
Dividend paid to non-controlling I FEFR AR &% PR 14 69

interests ) = - - - - - - - %) (11903)
Recognition of share based BRRHERER

payment expense - - - - - 1,140 - - 1,140 - 1,140
Lapse of share options BRERN = = = = = (876) = 876 - - -
Derecognition of non-controling R HE—FIKBARE

interests upon disposal BURRER IR

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 266 266
Transfers E% - - = 2473 = = = (2473) = = =
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 18,002 1,510 19,427 (20,236) 885,041 1,079,429 146,414 1,225,843
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERBREHR

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

Notes:

0

(i)

The merger reserve represented the difference between the total equity of those subsidiaries
attributable to the owners of the Company which were transferred from the shareholders of
Sinomax Enterprises Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company; (“Individual
Shareholders”) to Treasure Range Holdings Limited (“Treasure Range"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the aggregated share capital of the relevant subsidiaries
pursuant to the group reorganisation where the transfer of the relevant subsidiaries to
Treasure Range as satisfied by issue of new shares from Treasure Range to the Company and

from the Company to Sinomax Enterprises Limited.

According to the relevant requirements in the memorandum of association of the subsidiaries
of the Company established in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), a portion of their
profits after taxation has to be transferred to the statutory reserve and allocation to the
statutory reserve which shall be approved by the board of directors of the entity. The transfer
had been made before the distribution of a dividend to equity owners. The appropriation to
statutory reserve may cease if the balance of the statutory reserve has reached 50% of the
registered capital of the entity. The reserve can be applied either to set off accumulated losses,
if any, or to increase registered capital. The statutory reserve is non-distributable other than

upon liquidation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in Macau is required to transfer a minimum of 25% of annual net
profit to statutory reserve until the accumulated amount equals half of its quota capital. This

reserve is not distributable to the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Individual Shareholders acquired an additional
34% interest in Trade Sincere Limited (“Trade Sincere”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, from a non-controlling shareholder for a consideration of United States dollars
("US$") 998,012 (equivalent to HK$7,755,000) and the Group's interest in Trade Sincere was
then increased from 51% to 85%. Simultaneously, Trade Sincere disposed of its 40% equity
interest in Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited (“Sinomax Kuka"), a then wholly-
owned subsidiary of Trade Sincere, to a non-controlling shareholder for a consideration of
US$ 1,174,132 (equivalent to HK$8,855,000). Sinomax Kuka became a 60% owned subsidiary
of Trade Sincere after this partial disposal. The Group's effective interest in Sinomax Kuka
remained unchanged. The difference between the consideration received by the Group and
the increase in non-controlling interests after these transactions amounting to approximately
HK$ 1,510,000 is recorded in capital reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFI2AIALFE

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE
Profit before taxation [ B B a1 27,586 58242
Adjustments for: KBTI :
Allowance of doubtful debts, net of reversal REREAS - 1% 5D - (2.767)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T SR IEH 8 1,647 1,659
Amortisation of intangible assets L E Y 6,772 6,277
Depreciation of investment properties REMEFE 4,002 2,420
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BWERZEITE 73,572 57,986
Finance costs B 7% AR AR 40,096 26,158
(Gain) loss on disposal/dissolution of a subsidiary HE/SBR—EE ARz
(Yezs) 18 (5,285) 1,364
Impairment losses, net of reversal on trade receivables EEE KR E SRR EE[D 5,923 -
Impairment losses on intangible assets BZEERERRE 8,097 -
Interest income FEWA (487) (316)
Interest income on trade receivables at fair value FiREMEE KRR N TESR
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (BREME2EWRENTEE
IR 2 B S RKIEZ FI M A (2,263) -
Loss on initial recognition of trade receivables ML REBEMDEERRIERTE
at FV10CI S8R 2 B 5 e YR IR 2 B 1R 1910 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERBENEER 1,894 572
Provision for onerous leases FIEHERE 2,935 -
(Reversal of) provision for inventories Fa (BE)#E (5,670) 6,338
Share based payment expense B R 1,140 5,588
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital & B &E S EBFTNLEH S RE 161,869 163,521
Decrease (increase) in rental deposits HeEar > (Em) 800 (2,864)
Decrease (increase) in inventories &R (3En) 139,217 (174,352)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWKEIE (45 0) w2 (112,892) 72,630
Increase in trade receivables at FVTOCI FREMEEWEIZ A FEIRS
& 5 WK IE L AN (1,222) -
Increase in bills receivables JFE Wi =4 38 0 (8,413) (4,152)
Decrease in trade and other payables H 5 N H e IR (90,004) (47,748)
Decrease in contract liabilities SREBERD (362) -
Decrease in bills payables e R (597) (360)
Cash generated from operations KREEFRS 88,396 6,675
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH (4,177) (5713)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") paid B B EPTIS T
(TE#mBHl) (24,307) (24,363)
PRC withholding tax paid B T (1,418) (1,734)
The United States of America (the “US") Income (B REIZEMNEERE ([XEH])
Tax (paid) refunded Fris i (810) 127
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & )EBES (FTA) HEFH 57,684 (25,008)

BHREBERALAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERENER
For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Payment for property, plant and equipment M BRE KRB R (46,021) (135,400)
Placement of fixed bank deposits 7 HUE ERITIF 3K (33,246) (13952)
Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits REUE BRI TF K 31,979 1,734
Placement of pledged bank deposits FE ERRITER (732) (7,362)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B EFRITEFER 3,567 9,762
Interest received B U F B 487 316
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥1 %  BiE K& & @ B FT 1S 5008 2,360 469
Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMBAR RSN L F5E (2,175) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHHARFHE (43,781) (144/433)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Dividends paid ERARE (29,403) (33,122)
Interest paid [EENEES) (40,371) (25955)
New unsecured bank borrowings raised MESENEIEFRITER 896,887 548,778
Repayments of unsecured bank borrowings B R EEPRITIER (748,289) (302,269)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EBELRESFE 78,824 187,432
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBELFEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EnFEE 92,727 17,991
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURELREEED
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 155,485 131,848
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREEHHTE (13,777) 5,646
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRBAGLRREEED
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented by NIRTTERRIRE 27
Bank balances and cash 234,435 155,485
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate holding company is
Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”), a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY|-1104, Cayman Islands
and Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),

which is also the functional currency of the Company.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

—REE

BHEEBERAA ([RATF])REM
ERERNREENE (19%IFFE=5%
ER R ER A RIERT) RH S SEM
KUTERAE—HEREBRAFR
REBRHREBBERFHAERL A
(B ERET - EEERRER
ERAGAEFRBLEERAR ([
HEANE|) ZARA-BREBRER
TS ((RBRELZHE]) MR IH

NGIE

ARAWEMRERERTELEN
B2 ik 2 Bl APO. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI[-1104,
Cayman IslandsR BB NEEERRE
385% (b % & 5 L HIMegaBox | FE20%2
2005-2007 % ©

ARBRBREERAR HE B E
DR EBEBHNM S

FARBBHRRAETL ([BT]) 275
BILTMAARBNNEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments
HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year HKFRS
I5 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the

related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 1[5 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial application, |
January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at | January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources which arise

from contracts with customers:

. Manufacturing and sales of health and household products

. Manufacturing and sales of polyurethane foam

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3,

respectively.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2 ERFRTERANBREED ([FBME
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) BEEA]) REBRTAR (F)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) 2.1

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at | January 2018. Line items that

were not affected by the changes have not been included.

BERUKBERURISREFEY
Wzs (%)

EXEREBHBHEEREISH
Bz BB

THAER0I8FEIAIBZEA
BN R PR £ BATED
MAR RZEHFEMNHE T
AR

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS I5 at
31 December | January
2017 Reclassification 2018
BREER
MB|EER
KRR 155
20175128318 R20I8FIAIR
ERNIREE ENDE i AR 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b R IR 623,192 (1,255) 621937
Contract liabilities (Note) ataE (M) - 1,255 1,255

Note: At the date of initial application, non-refundable deposits received from
customers in relation to sales of health and household products of
approximately HK$1,255,000 previously included in trade and other payables

were reclassified to contract liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018
and its consolidated statement of cash flows for the current year for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

2 ERHIIEEMBRERER ((FE0%

e

2.1

|
R ]) REAERT A (&)

ERMBRERARISHELEH
Wiz (1)

EXEREBHBHEEREISH
Bz 2Bt (&)

TR ERE VSRS ER
EISTHEAEBMN2018F 1283
AZGEMBHRRREEAEEZ
RABSRERSIYEEBY
FE-AXBHTEZIBE T
AER-

HEEMBERRRNZE

Amounts without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REA
BERUBRE
R 155%
mEH AE Hem
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 25 REMENTIE 600,258 893 601,151
Contract liabilities ANEE 893 (893) -

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

HEARERERZXE

Amounts without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

TEEREB

BB EHEER

WEH #E  BISHKZEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET TR

Operating activities ReEES

Decrease in trade and other payables & 5) J H ftb & 1< X 183, /> (90,004) (362) (90,366)
Decrease in contract liabilities AREERD (362) 362 -

BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for |) the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and

3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at | January 2018 (date of initial recognition)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at | January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at | January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resutting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2 ERFRTERNBREED ([FEME

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

22

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial assets
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, |

January 2018.

Trade receivables
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

WEEA ) REBITA ()

22 BEUBREENFESELHETA

(%)

EXEREBUBHREERFIRE
Eoged 7Lt

TREYRERERBH (2018
FIRIR)REBEEANBRELE
AR R BB &R F39%
XEMEEFEARNSREE
MoBERTE-

Trade and other
receivables at
amortised

cost (previously

income  classified as loans Retained
(“FVTOCI”) and receivables) profits
ERHEM2E
WREATLE REHERATE
SR (TR ZESRHM
Hth2mEkz EUWRE (LA
BEATEMR]) PERERR
2B 5 EWRE FEWRIER) R & F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBTE Fi87 FiB7
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 20176 12A318 2
— HKAS 39 HIRE R
- BB ERER - 847,121 (910,403)
Effect arising from initial application B XEREBMBERE
of HKFRS 9: ZRIBIRMEENTE:
Reclassification ENSE
From loans and receivables (Note) BERRENIE (M) 87,122 (87,122) -
Remeasurement BN E
From amortised cost to fair value BEENAZERTE
(Note) (F&E) (464) - 464
Opening balance at | January 2018 #2018 | B | B 2 #A ¥ & 4% 86,658 759,999 (909,939)

BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Note: As part of the Group's cash flow management, the Group has the practice of
factoring some of the trade receivables to financial institutions before the trade
receivables are due for repayment and derecognises factored trade receivables
on the basis that the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
to the relevant counterparties. Accordingly, the Group's trade receivables of
approximately HK$87,122,000 were considered as within the hold to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell business model, and therefore reclassified
to trade receivables at FVTOCI. The related fair value losses of approximately
HK$464,000 was adjusted to trade receivables at FVTOCI and retained profits

as at | January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

23

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position arising

from the application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies above, the opening

consolidated statement of financial position had to be restated. The following

table shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected. Line

items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZEWI8F2AINHIEFE

FEFFTE] BRR M AR ([FEME
WEEA ) REBITA ()

23 RERMAEHENHRIGSBHE
RRREL R

AR ERAEB SRR E
B Bz EaMBIRRKRELE
BY TRBIBXFERBELZ
ERRAB - AXEHFELE

B ARGt AR
31 December | January
2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
BRRH BERHK
20175 BEER WEER 2018%
12A31H 155 9% IAI8
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET FTHET FET
(Audited) (Restated)
(&&= %) (#E5)
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H Mt Y RIA 847,121 - (87,122) 759,999
Trade receivables at FVTOCI BRI EEREE
NTEFER
EL - - 86,658 86,658
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFIE (623,192) 1,255 - (621,937)
Contract liabilities EHEE - (1,255) - (1,255)
Equity &
Retained profits RE & T (910,403) - 464 (909,939)

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under

indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018, movements in

working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated

statement of financial position as at | January 2018 as disclosed above.

Pitst: BIRIEME T EREEZ2018
FRANBILEEEZREES
RengMs €844 %Y
ThiR EX PR EE 2 FR20185F | A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases!

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!
Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 202 |

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | January

2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will

supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS I5 as
to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16

also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting,
and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low

value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for own use. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion

which will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result
in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the

corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance

lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 6.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$295,537,000 as disclosed in note 39. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of

all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$28,158,000 and refundable rental deposits received of HK$1,022,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be considered

as advance lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains
a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior
to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained profits without restating

comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including
additional guidance and explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective
for the Group's annual period beginning on | January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical basis except
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share Based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS |7 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS

2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed

above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to

bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

Al intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to

transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders to a

proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the

date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGU") (or group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an

operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount

of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion

of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if

one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by

the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control

of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar

allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific

criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Goods and interests

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles

have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, the transfer is made at the

carrying amount and the cost of the property remained unchanged.

When an investment property becomes an owner-occupied property because its use
has changed as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the transfer is

made at the carrying amount and the cost of the property remained unchanged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or for administrative purposes (other than construction in progress as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost

less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than construction
in progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and

intangible assets).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it

is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Obperating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under operating
leases, are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised

as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease

at the initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position and is

amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
are determined on weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as
provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since | January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, o, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect

contractual cash flows; and
. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:
O the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by

both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

O the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

FTESTBR (&)

SRTE (&)

THEE (&)

TREESBRAK;E (RREA 2
ZBRLHER TR S ERE IR
%) (%)

B R T B BA

HRRBERAGENEREE
FAREREMEEBSIRAF
1B 51 Bkt & 10 U TRIR ) B UK
AT E BB AR AHER - FIE
BAEBHeBEERTAE
FERERANEFESL  EXR
HREERENEREE (BT
) BIBRSN e LER REER
ENEREENS FERAR
—EREHEERLEREE
HOBE SH PR JE B IR AR T A RE
ReMEERESBRIANEE
ﬁﬁ%&%'ﬁiﬂ§§$ﬁ
REERE ANEMAEE
%§E$Eﬁ%fﬁﬁéﬁﬁi
%Wtﬁﬁﬂﬁ?%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁ
SRR T ARERR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Trade receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for trade receivables classified as
at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these trade receivables are
recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI") and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in profit
or loss with corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these trade receivables. The amounts that are recognised in profit
or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been recognised in
profit or loss if these trade receivables had been measured at amortised cost.
When these trade receivables are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses

previously recognised in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance
with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, bills receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is

updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on these

assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to |2m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance

with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular; the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

g an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s

external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for

the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance

with note 2) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;
. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial
instrument has a low risk of default (i.e. no default history), i) the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its

contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance

with note 2) (continued)

(

)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance

with note 2) (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance
with note 2) (continued)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficutty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined

with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance
with note 2) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the risk type (i.e. credit-impaired, high risk, normal

risk and low risk) by considering:

. Past-due status; and

. Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of

each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income s calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for trade receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For trade receivables that are measured at FVTOC], the loss allowance
is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without reducing

the carrying amount of these receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of

HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills receivables, pledged
bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate, except for short-term

receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

(continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of loans and receivables could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit period, observable changes in

national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

(continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire or, when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company

are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, bills payables and unsecured
bank borrowings, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest

method.

Decognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangble and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of

CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or (a CGU) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.
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e P BHmRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants that are received for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that

are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, government-managed
retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires

or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised

estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to retained

profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs
from “profit before taxation” because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

TESTEE (8)
BREEEURDXAZXS (8)
ISR L RRE R HE (&)

NEBMAFMERB G RRLE
AETHREFEURN SN ZAT
BENERTREHKERREBAOE
HTANMG REREREEHX
o e (RERUERG) RIMEREIE Mo
REFEHR AREREHAEIED
SREB RO HERAKE
B TEBBELERT BIIR
AR E (MB)RNEENER
LTEMAXRBRGET G UHE
R HE o e F AR PR S R

W

ERBEREITEE BERBRER
Rz BEHERERD G (E W
BREN R E R BEEOLMERNER
AEIDARBEITER  ALEE R B RERE
BER L CERERERBEN -

BE

FIT S 150 79 S 15 BB JB A9 A 0B B FE 7%
TR H) AN

BV B 1 B TR T AR 18 4F P B AR T ) )
AT 8 o RS A [BR B AR A
/- o R B E R BRI A LA
HARFS - RBARRATFHHR
TR B o AN S B BN HA R IR AT R 5
AEERIERCERNHRFE

BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE

183



184

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of their assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next

financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

Determining whether the goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are
impaired requires the management judgments and estimations to estimate the value
in use of the CGUs related to business of which the goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life have been allocated using discounted cash flow model. In
estimating the value in use of the CGUs, key assumptions used by the management
include growth rates, gross margin, discount rate, expected sales from customers and
management's expectation for future market development. When the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in

downward revision of future cash, a material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life were HK$61,409,000 (2017: HK$62,764,000) and HK$85,483,000
(2017: HK$85,483,000), respectively. Details of the Group's goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful life are set out in notes 20 and 21, respectively.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018, management regularly reviews the
recoverability of trade receivables which requires management's judgement in making
an assessment of the adequacy of the allowances for doubtful debts. When there is
an objective evidence of allowance for doubtful debts, the management determines
the allowance based on the aging analysis, business relationship with customers and
settlement records for each transaction. Where the actual recoverability of the debts
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and allowance for the periods in which such estimate has been

changed.

e BHRRME
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivable is HK$708,489,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$19,209,000). Details of the Group's trade

receivables are set out in note 26.

In the current year, as explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group adopted HKFRS 9 and the management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering internal credit ratings of trade
debtors, ageing repayment history and past due status of respective trade receivables.
Estimated loss rates are based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information. In addition, trade
receivables that are credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The loss allowance
amount of the credit impaired trade receivables is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future losses. The assessment of credit risk of trade

receivables involves high degree of estimation uncertainty.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade receivable is HK$692,747,000
(net of allowance for credit losses of HK$24,913,000). The information about the ECL

and the Group's trade receivables are disclosed in notes 26 and 38, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Deferred tax assets

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
assessable profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual future assessable profits generated are less or more than
expected, a material reversal or additional recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income in the future.

Details of the Group's deferred tax assets are set out in note 24.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group regularly
reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
When the Group identifies items of inventories which have a net realisable value that
is lower than its carrying amount, the Group estimates the amount of write-down of
inventories as allowance for inventories. If the net realisable value of inventories of the
Group becomes lower than its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may

be required.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$531,071,000
(2017: HK$679,473,000). Details of the Group's inventories are set out in note 25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

5. REVENUE A
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers () ZEF&HWEDF

Type of goods EmER

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Sales of health and household products HEREMKEER 2,509,206 2,478,265

Sales of polyurethane foam HE R B BIR 1,754,116 1,705,521

Total #Et 4,263,322 4,183,786
Geographical markets HETH

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TATT

The US xHE 1,533,580 1,626,152

The PRC & 2,077,427 2,006,126

Hong Kong BB 467,826 324,275

Others Hith 184,489 227233

Total At 4,263,322 4,183,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group sells health and household products, including quality visco-elastic
pillows, mattress toppers and mattresses, to wholesalers and retailers and also
directly to customers both through its retail network comprising self-operated
stand-alone retail shops and concession counters in department stores and
through internet sales. The Group also sells polyurethane foam to furniture
manufacturers. The Group recognised product sales at the sales value of goods

less estimated discounts, rebates and sales related taxes.

For sales of health and household products to the wholesalers and retailers and
sales of polyurethane foam to furniture manufacturers, revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have
been delivered to and received by the wholesaler's, retailers’ and furniture
manufacturers’ specific location. Following delivery, the wholesalers, retailers and
furniture manufacturers have full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, have the primary responsibility when selling the goods
and bear the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. These
customers have neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid payment for
the goods once the goods are accepted by the customers. The Group generally

allows a credit period ranging from 7 days to 120 days upon delivery.

For sales of health and household products to end customers through its retail
network comprising self-operated stand-alone retail shops and concession
counters in department stores, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases and receives
the goods at the retail shops and concession counters in department stores.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the point when the

customer purchases the goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

5.

REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers (continued)

For internet sales of health and household products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to the customers, being at the point the
goods are delivered to and received by the customers. Delivery occurs when
the goods have been delivered to the customer's specific location. When the
customers initially purchase the goods online, the transaction price received
by the Group is recognised as a contract liability until the goods have been

delivered to the customers.

Under the Group's standard contract terms of sales of health and household
products to the end customers, they have no rights for refund but have a right
to exchange for dissimilar products ranging from 7 days to 60 days. The Group
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of exchange
on a portfolio level using the expected value method. Revenue is recognised
for sales which are considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur: A contract liability is recognised
for sales in which revenue has yet been recognised. The Group's right to recover
the product when customers exercise their right is recognised as a right to

returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales.

Sales-related warranties associated with sales of health and household products
and polyurethane foam cannot be purchased separately and they serve as
an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.
Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with its

previous accounting treatment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (continued)

(iii)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation for

contracts with customers

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations as at 31 December 2018 are HK$893,000 and the expected timing

of recognising revenue is within one year

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focused on the location of customers and
the Group is currently organised into the following three operating and reportable

segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

China market — manufacture and sale of health and household products
and polyurethane foam for customers located in the PRC,

Hong Kong and Macau

North American — manufacture and sale of health and household products
market for customers located in the US, Canada and other North

American countries

Europe and other -~ manufacture and sale of health and household products
overseas for customers located in overseas except for those
markets customers located in North American market

e BHRRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The CODM makes decisions based on the revenue of each segment and reviews

reports on the financial performance of the Group as a whole. No information of

segment results, segment assets and liabilities are reviewed by the CODM for the

assessment of performance of operating segments. Therefore, only the segment

revenue is presented and this is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same as the

Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

&
ok
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K53
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BEEERARERBES D IR EIE
RENEVNEBAEERBVBRA
MG -BREERKEEMERTM
REDBEREBNHEE HHE
ERBEER - AULEZHmH Bl
tt)ﬁ?%éfﬁ@ﬂa& G RN EEEN
EEAREERNTE

BERTRESB2 @HBERM i
3T 2 A B2 R A EORAAR -

Segment revenue D EBUA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by operating and reportable NTRAEERLERAIRED B
segments: aN:o L ORI
For the year ended 3| December 2018 BZE2018F12A3BLEE
Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets  Consolidated
BN R H At
HETHS LETE ‘I E )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
TR FHET THET TR
SEGMENT REVENUE 2ERBA
External sales INEBSHE 2,554,284 1,658,133 50,905 4,263,322
Cost of sales SHE AR (3,491,279)
Other income H AU A 66,931
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEERE (MERED) (5,923)
Other gains and losses Hfth Y a8 K2 B 18 356
Selling and distribution costs HERDHKA (453,362)
Administrative expenses ABRAX (217,491)
Finance costs BTSN (40,09)
Other expenses HifA % (94,872)
Profit before taxation BR B¢ A A 27,586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

DHEH

¥
i

DEBUIA (4&)
BZE2017£1283IBLLEE

Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets  Consolidated
B &% H A
hEm 5 b EM5 BINTTIS ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET THET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2 EHUA
External sales SMNERE & 2,336,373 1,754,104 93,309 4,183,786
Cost of sales HE AR (3,354,589)
Other income HaA 51,739
Other gains and losses Hib s M EE (6,548)
Selling and distribution costs HE R D KA (472,796)
Administrative expenses THR (216950)
Finance costs BRI A AR (26,158)
Other expenses Hipp % (100,242)
Profit before taxation BB A& A 58,242

There were no inter-segment sales during both years.

RMEFER L&D PREAHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major products:

DRVER (80

it

TEERBBA

TXIHEAEEREETBEMOK
AR :

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Health and household products REAR/EEmMR 2,509,206 2,478,265
Polyurethane foam BRbsRK 1,754,116 1,705,521
4,263,322 4,183,786

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the US, the PRC, Hong Kong and Europe.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented based on
the location of the retail shops and concession counters for retail sales and location of

customers for wholesales and internet sales.

AR

AEETERER P EH - B REN
EES R

REBRENBEPRANERTIE
ETTEHENTERRTEEHEM
ERETHEREBBHENTP
PR T IAZ 1

2018 2017

201845 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHETT

The US EE 1,533,580 1,626,152
The PRC H 2,077,427 2,006,126
Hong Kong BB 467,826 324,275
Europe M 32,457 72,605
Other Asian countries EAhTm MR 21,085 20,784
Other American countries = YIETER 124,553 127,952
Others Hth 6,394 5,892
4,263,322 4,183,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIWER

¥
i

AR ()

Geographical information (continued)

AEEFRDEE (TRERETHE
BE)NEMNREENELE TN

Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) is

presented based on the geographic location of the assets:

25

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
The US e 496,977 528,152
The PRC + 542,477 578,538
Hong Kong aE 15,673 18,643
Macau P 15 26
1,055,142 [,125359

Information about major customers TEEFNER

Revenue from a customer in the North American market contributing over 10% of the

total revenue to the Group during the years are as follows:

RERNRBILETHHN—LEFE K
AEBAREBE R AEI0%A E)m

T
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHETT
Customer A BEA 589,939 637,600

BHREBERALAF

2018 F E R &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

7.  OTHER INCOME HAWA
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Interest income F 28U A 487 316
Rental income RPN 14,833 10,833
Scrap sales (Note a) THYRHEE (Fista) 44,326 33,801
Government subsidy (Note b) BT B (P sEb ) 3,597 4,798
Interest income on trade receivables at F'VTOCI & EM 2 E KR F IR A FE
IRz E FREWGRIEZ
B U A 2,263 -
Others Hth 1,425 1991
66,931 51,739
Notes: BisE:

(@)  The corresponding cost of scrap inventories is inseparable from cost of sales.

(b)  The amount represented subsidies for development on export sales and advanced
technology. Full amounts are recognised as income in profit or loss as there were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to the grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants to profit or loss upon receipt. The subsidies were granted on a

discretionary basis to the Group during the reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 8

e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

BERE - MREE

Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables Bt 5 FEUGAIBER 2 B EEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
5923 -

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 38 (b).

HEW0IBFILAINBILFE 2 RET
i 2 FEIEF PP FE38(b) ©

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HittWzERER
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE = (1,543)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RER B E M) - 4310
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « HE KR ENE B (1,894) (572)
Gain (loss) on disposal/dissolution of a subsidiary &/ #2 Bk — &I Bt BB A &) &9
Wz (E1E) 5,285 (1,364)
Net exchange gains (losses) bE 5 U s (B548) H 3 5,062 (7,379)
Impairment losses on intangible assets mEEEREEBRE (8,097) -
356 (6,548)
FINANCE COSTS 0. MBEA
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interests on bank borrowings RITIEENE 40,096 26,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

Il.  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BRDLATERA]
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Profit before taxation has been arrived MR T EIBREAER
at after charging: R 5 A A1
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) BEEH (F3EI12) 11,710 13,297
Other staff costs Hih 8 TARA 419,785 387,825
Retirement benefit scheme contributions Hh 8 THYRRE TSIt
for other staff 38,220 39,119
Share based payment expenses, excluding BOEZRHRAZ (TEEES)
those of directors 480 3,784
Total staff costs =B N 470,195 444025
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE <0 & R IE 8 1,647 1,659
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE 6,772 6277
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 4,002 2420
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W WMERBRERTE 73,572 57,986
Total depreciation and amortisation mEREHEE 85,993 68,342
Operating lease rentals in respect of THEENKCEHERS
— rented premises —THEWE 74,012 62,771
— retail shops €5 28,414 27,638
102,426 90,409
Concessionaire commission for department BEARIEE
store counters (Note a) Firggma (MiZa) 56,328 56,846
158,754 147,255
Auditor’'s remuneration e & 4,569 4,300
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses HRAERINFENAE (B
including reversal of provision for inventories of 17 & 8 &% 215,670,000/ 7T
HK$5,670,000 (2017: provision for inventories of (20174 : 77 & #
HK$6,338,000) 6,338,000/ 7T) )
3,491,279 3,354,589
Research and development expenses MEMX (GFAEMRX)
(included in other expenses) (Note b) (Kt3EDb) 70,410 77447
Provision for onerous leases E R HE R 2,935 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Notes:

Concessionaire commission for department store counters is generally calculated
by applying pre-determined percentages to actual sales made through respective

counters.

Research and development expenses mainly comprise staff salaries and raw materials
costs of HK$16,338,000 (2017: HK$21,674,000) and HK$45,896,000 (2017:
HK$43,673,000), respectively. The staff salaries related to research and development

are also included in the staff costs disclosed above.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

BRBLATER ()

P et -

@) HBERAFFERFLEME-KRUZ
&

ERNERHEERELETEO

b)) MERIFEREEIFHSLEM
BHRK R 5 Bl £ 16,338,000 7T (2017
4 :21,674,0007% 7T ) 145,896,000/ 7T
(20175 : 43,673 000/ 70) « BH B H
BeEIMANGALXBEENE
IRA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

12.  DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EBRESTBRAEME
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the EERERTTBRABRFANMSE
applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BEBERN LR REER G

WEMT:

Performance Share  Retirement

Salaries related based benefit

and incentive payment scheme

Fees  allowances payments expenses contributions Total

ek AERE R BHKEF
ik =41 MRE XMAExX  FEHR st
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

(Note (i)
(KizEq))
For the year ended BE18F
31 December 2018 NA3IBLEEE
Executive directors BITESE
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) MENEE (EER) - 2,020 80 162 8 2,280
Mr. Cheung Tung (President and ~ SRIRJC A (431 R
the chief executive) RETHAR) - 2,091 130 159 8 2,398
Mr. Chen Feng BRim % & - 2,247 150 92 - 2,489
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung ML L - 1,576 250 80 8 1,924
Ms, Lam Fei Man MEZR/ME - 1,106 128 82 18 1,334
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FEREE 240 - - 17 - 257
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon  #R & £ 23 240 = = 17 - 257
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew BRELE 240 - - 17 = 257
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie REESEE 240 = = 17 = 257
Mr.Wu Tak Lung REELE 240 - - 17 = 257
1,200 9,040 738 660 72 11,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

12. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 2 EERESTHAEME (&)
Performance Share  Retirement
Salaries related based benefit
and incentive payment scheme
Fees  allowances payments expenses  contributions Total

ek AERERE  ROXE  RAEER
ik e ol FX B b
HK$000  HKFOOO  HK$000  HKFOOO  HK$000  HK$O00
THBT TET TET TET TET TET

(Note (i))
(PR EEG))
For the year ended BZ20178
31 December 2017 2A3IBLLEE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) MENEE (EER) - 2021 160 457 18 2,656
Mr. Cheung Tung (President and RIS (#3 R
the chief executive) RETHALR) - 2,092 180 447 8 2737
Mr. Chen Feng BRiE & - 2510 200 254 - 2,964
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MEBHEEE - 1,589 200 215 8 2022
Ms, Lam Fei Man WEZ/NME - 1,109 160 pyl 18 1508
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FEREE 240 - - 2l - 282
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon  #R & X 3% 240 - - 42 - 282
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew BHRELE 240 - - ) - 282
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie RS E 240 - - 4 - 282
Mr.Wu Tak Lung REELE 240 - - 9 - 282
1,200 9,321 900 1,804 72 13,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

12.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

Performance related incentive payments is recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company and is approved by the board of directors, with reference
to the Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

No directors nor the chief executive waived any emoluments during the years ended

31 December 2018 and 2017.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings arrangement in favour of the
directors of the Company, controlled bodies corporate of the directors of the
Company and connected entities with such directors of the Company in respect of

the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017.

The executive directors shown above were for their service in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their

services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 3.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included three directors
(2017: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: two) highest

paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

LfusEHMES

FRAEEANERHNRERE=
ZEBEE(NIFZHER) FEZ
FMFEEEN EXHER2 - TWA
(017F - MB)AFARAEETHR

follows: STHA BB &% M iE S F M5
BT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Salaries and allowances Fre KOEA 4,625 3711
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARE FIET B4 50 84 121
Performance related incentive payments (Note) ~ BRKRIBHEE (KI5E) - 365
4,709 4197

Note: Performance related incentive payments are reference to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The number of the highest paid employee who are not the directors of the Company

whose remuneration fells within the following band is as follows:

Wit BRBAENEDRENSZAEE
ZRERE BARARTELED

=] =

oL S

HFEBTIERNEARAEEZRS
FMEEHBNT:

2018 2017

2018%F 20174

No. of employees No. of employees

EEAE BE A

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 22,000,000/ 7T - I
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 2 I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

I4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE Pri&HiBix
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current tax: BIEARRIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax (Note i) EBMEH (5T 2,613 3,426
PRC EIT (Note ii) R TS A (BT T 30,568 20,643
PRC withholding tax on distributed profits from 2K B # B fff & A 71 7] 9k
PRC subsidiaries 8 M 2 B FEHT 1,418 1,734
US income tax (Note iii) EBPFEH (P L) 419 535
35,018 26,338
(Over)underprovision in prior years: MEFE (BE) N2 B8E:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBEFER (184) 565
PRC EIT PRI EMET (2,500) (2,631)
US income tax EBMER = 11
(2,684) (1955)
Deferred taxation (note 24) BIER IR (M95E24) (9,590) (16,926)
22,744 7,457
Notes: feE:

(i) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bll") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-

tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

(i)

(i)

(continued)

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on

the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, PRC EIT is calculated based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profit of those subsidiaries established in
the PRC for both years, except for certain PRC subsidiaries being approved as High
and New Technology Enterprise by the relevant government authorities which are

subject to a preferential tax rate of 15%.

The US corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 3| December 2018 in
accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The US income tax includes (a) federal
income tax calculated at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017:a progressive rate of 15% to 35%) on the estimated US federal taxable income
and (b) state income tax calculated at various state income tax rates for both periods
on the estimated state taxable income for the respective states. The income subject
to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated based on the federal
taxable income with state tax adjustments, which is then allocated or apportioned to
the respective states (i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned or
specially allocated to the respective states in which the Group operates) based on the

apportionment factors provided from the state tax returns in previous year.

Under Decree-Law No. 58/99/M, the Group's Macau subsidiary incorporated under
the Decree-Law, is exempted from Macau Complementary tax as it satisfies the
relevant conditions as specified in the Decree-Law, one of which being that it does not

sell its products to any Macau resident company during the reporting periods.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

14 FrSBiRx ()

GESNE)

0]

(i

(ii)

BHREBERALAF

(%)

At BAFEE BENEREE
DEEB T hEERTUR M 2825%
AE-mMEBBEET 0 RIRG
AERBENZ 165%5F

BEREARLMECZRERE
([¥MEHE) REEREIEE
HEB MEFESRECEMREH
DERIRPBER I ZZEMB AR ZIE
RERF2205%2 FERETE - Emd
HRRGRELEASTRTEEZ
ETHREREARRZX %8 ERH
BERTEEEER BE0I8F2
A3IBILFE 2 RBECERER2 %
ERFEROEQRGEEE A
SRUAREZ018FNA3IBILEF
BZBEFERE2% (2017F : 15%E35%
ZRERE)TEZHBHMEHKO)
7 {8 56 ) P ot 5 M O e M PR B K
A BRRMFAEHETENMAG
B o R E M7 B FEERTEUL A (DM R
BB REEEMNHFIBRAE (KK
AEFIZRL IS RE NG ) A E
RBWA (BMZ 15 R k55 59 B
EAEELEMTHEBMNGHERT
WABSLL) - R ATEE M 8RR
ERENIEERZMAESL

BIEFES89IMEES  AEEREZ
ELHEMA MR AR g
BEHMRAFIEHAR DaRE
REZERFATAMNEBEY K+
—I8 RE AR B A ) DR P
AMARHEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018

BE0I8FNANBIEEE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14 FREHEX% (&)

FEBmRAMEEKERORBA
A RERRFREHRAERNT

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

Bt 3

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit before taxation I F5 A Yo ) 27,586 58,242
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% REBEHE65%
(2017: 165%) (20174F : 165% ) & #E’ﬁﬁilﬁ 4,552 9,610
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TRAIMBHOR X ERBH T E
tax purposes 11,664 3,758
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes T 78 S F #Y LA 1 7 75 1) 52 & (1,321) (918)
Overprovision in prior years WA FEBERE (2,684) (1,955)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised ATHBNTEERORGETE 8811 15,385
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised BRATAERANGKERE (1,076) (7,925)
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference R T RERR & AT HO R G R
not recognised EHENBBEE = 218
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference AN BEER TR AR
previously not recognised P s =28 (646) -
Deferred tax on withholding tax on A B B B8 A Rl R 9 Ik & Y
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries TR 8 R E AR I8 1,081 2,114
Change in opening deferred tax assets and BRABETAMEEZ
liabilities resulting from a decrease in BRI SR 18
applicable tax rate (note 24) BEIBEZE (MiT24) - (15,194)
Income tax on concessionary rate REBEHREXFTENMER (165) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEERERLEDN
operating in other jurisdictions B AR TR ETE 2,528 2,364
Income tax expense FrisBim X 22,744 7457
Note: The income tax rate (which is the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate) in the jurisdiction Wizt PGB (AEBNERTE) DR
where one of the major operations of the Group is substantially based is used. AASEHFz—EFE2L=EmE
AEER K-

208

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

I5. DIVIDENDS 15 KRR
2018 2017
20185 20175
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FRERBD IR ZART]
the Company recognised as distribution TR IR BB
during the year:
2017 Final — HK1.0 cent per share 2017F REAR B
(2017:2016 Final — HK1.0 cent per share) — AR 1.0 Il
(20174 : 201 6F R AR B
— G AR 1.07 Il ) 17,500 17,500
No dividend has been proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company subsequent REZE20I8F12A3IHILFEER I
to the year ended 3| December 2018. ERENALALARRKEIRER

B o
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

6. (LOSS) EARNING PER SHARE 6.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earning per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Bk (BR) B2F

ARRIEEANEIEEREAREE (&
B)BATRBIAT BB E -

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
(Loss) earning for the purpose of basic and FTEGIREARREE (EE)
diluted (loss) earning per share: B (ER)&BF
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners — ZNA &l #E B A (L A
of the Company (E518) % 7 (5,801) 39,674
2018 2017
20185 20174
’000 ‘000
TR F iz
Number of shares for the purpose of basic and &t B B E KR 4% (E15)
diluted (loss) earning per share: B ZREEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FTEERERNREE (BE)
for the purpose of basic and diluted (loss) B 8 5 AR hn e T 19 B
1,750,002 1,750,002

earning per share

The computation of diluted (loss) earning per share for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 does not assume the exercise of the share options as the exercise
prices of those share options are higher than the average market price of shares during

the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YE -BERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture Construction
Plant and and Motor in
Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
BE
£ X4
BF RERHS R&E RE  EERIR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TBT TBT TBTT TBT TBT

cosT A
At | January 2017 R2017E 1 A1B 201,019 192810 97,208 13908 222,260 727,205
Exchange adjustments ERHE 16,580 13,265 2517 1,000 1501 34,863
Additions NE 938 75492 2234 1,988 90,529 191,181
Disposals HE - (2618) (752) (867) - (4237)
Transfer from construction in progress E&RAEE T2 26092 150441 109,353 - (285,886) -
Transfer from investment BRERENE (MiTis)

properties (note 18) 12,623 - - - - 12,623
Transfer to investment BRERENE (Miis)

properties (note 18) (24.241) - - - - (24241)
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 233011 429,390 230,560 16,029 28404 937,3%
Exchange adjustments RS (5,260) (16268) (5707) (1,205) 1,830 (26610)
Additions NE - 4,807 8443 2273 49,142 64,665
Disposals HE (4,867) (8357) (3869) (1,529) - (18622)
Disposals through disposal of FRLE—RNERT

a subsidiary (note 42) & (MEF42) - - (24) - - (24)
Transfer from construction in progress BB EE T2 - 26436 2458 - (28,894) -
At 31 December 2018 R018E12A31R 222,884 436,008 231,861 15,568 50482 956,803
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

I7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. Y% BERZRE(E)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture Construction
Plant and and Motor in
Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
Be
£ %A
BT HERKSE R%E RE  HEIR @zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
DEPRECIATION il
At | January 2017 201741 A1H 41,288 56,079 49,770 7151 - 154,288
Exchange adjustments B HE 5924 5321 1067 625 - 12,937
Provided for the year EREE 7482 31,703 16,224 2577 - 57,986
Elimination on disposals HERKE - 2017) (518) (661) - (3196)
Transfer from investment BREREME (HiE18)
properties (note 18) 2,348 - - - - 2,348
At 31 December 2017 201712831 57,042 91,086 66,543 9,692 - 24363
Exchange adjustments RS (1987) (3,664) (2852) (344) - (8847)
Provided for the year FEER 8883 42730 1948 2478 - 73572
Elimination on disposals HE R 8 (4867) (4324) (3833) (1,344) - (14,368)
Bliminated on disposal of HE—HIB LA
a subsidiary (note 42) B (M34) - - (1 - - ()
At 31 December 2018 RR2018 124318 59,071 125,828 79338 10,482 - 274719
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 #20I8E12A31H 163813 310,180 152,523 5086 50,482 682,084
At 31 December 2017 ®20I7€12A318 175,969 338,304 164017 6337 28404 713,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group's buildings are erected on land in the PRC.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction in progress,
are depreciated, net of residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 35 years

10% —20%

10% — 33'/5% or over the term of the lease,

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements,

furniture and fixtures whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 20%

On 10 August 2017, the Group leased out certain properties located in the PRC to a
third party and transferred owner-occupied properties to investment properties. The
total carrying amount of the properties at the date of transfer, which was being the

carrying value of investment properties, was approximately HK$24,241,000.

On 22 August 2017, certain investment properties which have been previously
leased to a third party were transferred to property, plant and equipment upon the
commencement of owner occupation. The total carrying amount of the properties
at the date of transfer, which was being the carrying value of property, plant and

equipment, was approximately HK$10,275,000.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ME - BERRE (&)
AKENEFHRENTE LB E

L% BB RREERE (ERTR
BRON) TR T O FE R R A B R B E
(MERER1E)

BF B FEH35F
(AM &
BEERE)
WE RS 10%—20%
AEEE  10%—33'1%%
RARKE RENFH
(AmEH
BEEABE)
= 20%

R2017F8A 108 - AE BB AL+ E
METHELERTE=AREERAD
FEREREME -ZEWEREDR
ERE B 55 4924241,0008 7T 1
ABIEEMENEREEDE-

R2017F8ANH  ZAIEATFE=R
METREVMECLENETERESE
BEME BEREE MERBEA
HnRELE (B - BEREED
BRI E) £9/510,275,0007 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. HREWE

HK$'000

T
cosT (DS
At | January 2017 R2017%F 1A 1H 88,420
Exchange adjustments ME WS EE 6218
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 17) EEEYE BEIERE (HE17) 24,241
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 17) HEEYE BERRE (H5E17) (12,623)
At 3| December 2017 R2017412A31H 106,256
Exchange adjustments bE 54, 3 & (5,715)
At 3| December 2018 20185 12H31H 100,541
DEPRECIATION e
At | January 2017 201761 A 1A 6,146
Exchange adjustments ME WA EE 649
Provided for the year FREEE 2,420
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 17) EEEYE BERRE (HE17) (2,348)
At 3| December 2017 R2017412A31H 6,867
Exchange adjustments bE 5, 38 & (552)
Provided for the year FERE 4,002
At 31 December 2018 2018512431 H 10,317
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2018 720184512431 H 90,224
At 31 December 2017 20174 12H318 99,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties are erected on land in the PRC and are

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of lease.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of the Group’s investment properties were
HK$205,032,000 (2017: HK$216,166,000). The fair values have been arrived at based
on a valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer not

connected with the Group.

The fair values of the investment properties located in Zhejiang Province and Sichuan
Province in the PRC were determined based on the market comparable approach
which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The inputs used in the fair
value measurements mainly include the market unit sale rate of comparable properties
of similar size, nature and location. There has been no change from the valuation

technique used in the prior year

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

the year.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

REME (&)

ASENREVEDERNPE L
E NERERENFRNE-

R20I18F 128318 REBNKEY
¥ N F{E £205,032,0008 7T (20174 :
216,166,000/ 7T ) ° 2 FETh iR ¥ i 2
AEEMERENE (B EMDBE
BEFEBERERARETHNHEE

=

T

R BT E R IEREDED
AYEDRETSLEE (DERA
FEERZFPIET Rt ERF
ER BAEBTIEEEEE HERI
EREMNALBRNE MG EMHEE
ER-HERNEAEFEMBEL

REFRENRZAVER NEZ
BERARERERERKAE -FR
BEEAFZ=-QIBETEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

19.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FENBEERE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land interests in the PRC. AEENENEEREREERBEN
ME TR
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEENMANTE:
Non-current asset EmEEE 62,479 67,631
Current asset MENE E 1,638 1,727
64,117 69,358
20. GOODWILL 0. BE
HK$'000
T
COST R
At | January 2017 201741 A1 H 60926
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 38 B [,838
At 31 December 2017 720175128318 62,764
Exchange adjustments ME W S (1,355)
At 31 December 2018 20185 12H31H 61,409
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 22. BEZRERFHF BN T8 E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

21.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. EBREE
Brand Customer
name relationship Total
b 5F
g ke et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET
COST 29N
At | January 2017, 31 December 01751 A 1H -
2017 and 31 December 2018 2017F12A31H X
2018512831 H 85,483 62,769 148,252
AMORTISATION BN E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At | January 2017 R2017%F1 A1 B - 4707 4707
Charge for the year FAXE - 6,277 6,277
At 31 December 2017 HR2017% 128318 - 10,984 10,984
Charge for the year FREZH - 6,772 6,772
Impairment losses recognised R REEE - 8,097 8,097
At 31 December 2018 P2018F 12A31H - 25,853 25,853
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12H31H 85,483 36,916 122,399
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 85,483 51,785 137,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The brand name and customer relationship was acquired upon acquisition of Dormeo
North America, LLC (“Dormeo”) in 2016.

The customer relationship has finite useful lives ranging from 7 years to 10 years (2017:
|0 years) and is amortised on a straight-line basis. Its useful life was determined with
reference to a number of factors, including historical customer data and management's
experience and industry knowledge. Useful lives of customer relationship are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period by considering the changes in above factors. Based
on the assessment made by the directors of the Company, the directors determined
that the useful lives of certain customer relationship have reduced from 10 years to
7 years and their amortisation have been accelerated and an additional amortisation
amounting to HK$495,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018 has been

recognised.

The brand name has indefinite useful life. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the brand name is developed through years of advertising, promotional

campaigns and customer satisfaction.

As a result, the brand name is considered by the directors of the Company as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The brand name will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing on intangible assets are

disclosed in note 22.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company conducted
a review of the Group’s customer relationship and determined that no future
economic benefits flowing from certain of customer relationships and accordingly,
impairment losses of HK$8,097,000 have been recognised in respect of these customer
relationships included in the North American market segment. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant customer relationships have been determined on the basis of
their value in use. The pre-tax discount rate in measuring the amount of value in use

was 18.88% in relation to customer relationships.
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mMEREREEPEETIN20I6F
W Dormeo North America, LLC
([Dormeo J ) B I BE ©

EFBENERAFERAFHENTIEE
10 (20175 : 10%F)  WREREE
BE-HUEAFHN2EZHAR
(BRELRFHEBEUREEEMNLR
REANB)ET TFBEMAFER
FHRERERREBZEELIRE
ZEEMmM TR -BREARAES
EHz T ESETETEPHAR
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2.
WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life set out in notes 20 and 21, respectively, have been allocated to two individual
CGUs, comprising Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co, Ltd. (“Chengdu Xingang") which
engaged in manufacturing and sales of polyurethane foam and Dormeo which engaged
in wholesaling of health and household products. The carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 allocated

to these units are as follows:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

HENEREREAFHZEIEEZ
BE R

RETHENR &BHMRHF20R
ANHEREEERFERAFH ER
EECHEEZMEMBAIMNBRSEL
B HeEXBHMAEREERAH
([ #FE] AR EBREREE
N3HE ) MDormeo (Bt ERFE MK
BERILE) - R20I18F K2017F12A
IR AEREZEZEENNEERAE
ERCAFH - BEFEENREAED
T

Goodwill Brand name
mE mhEATE

2018 2017 2018 2017
20184 201745 20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FExT FET
Chengdu Xingang B ER T 24,946 26,301 = -
Dormeo Dormeo 36,463 36,463 85,483 85,483

BEEEERART 208FEFRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

22.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE (continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their major underlying

assumptions are summarised below:

Chengdu Xingang

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flows projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and a pre-tax discount rate of
10.67% (2017: 10.67%). Chengdu Xingang's cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 4% (2017: 4%) growth rate. The management of the
Group believes that a 4% (2017: 4%) growth rate is reasonable after considering the
recent inflation rate in Chengdu and the management expectation on future market
development. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows, including budgeted sales and gross margin, are
estimated based on the Chengdu Xingang's past performance and management's
expectations for the future market development. During the years ended 3|
December 2018 and 2017, the management of the Group determines that there is
no impairment of Chengdu Xingang containing goodwill for both years. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of Chengdu Xingang to exceed the recoverable amount of

Chengdu Xingang.
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE (continued)

Dormeo

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flows projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and a pre-tax discount rate
of 18.88% (2017: 17.90%). Dormeo's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2017: 2%) growth rate. The management of the
Group believes that a 2% (2017: 2%) growth rate is reasonable after considering the
US Federal Reserve long term inflation rate. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows, including budgeted
sales and gross margin, are estimated based on the Dormeo’s past performance and
management's expectations for future market development. During the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, the management of the Group determines that there
is no impairment of Dormeo containing goodwill and brand name for both years.
Management believes that reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of Dormeo to exceed the recoverable amount

of Dormeo.

RENTAL DEPOSITS

The balances represent rental deposits placed by the Group in connection with its
rented premises, retail shops and concession counters in department stores. An
amount of HK$23,365,000 (2017: HK$24,470,000) represents the relevant leases
which will either expire after one year from the end of the reporting period, or if
the remaining lease term is less than one year, the Group has the positive intention
to renew the leases upon expiry and classified as non-current. An amount of
HK$4,793,000 (2017: HK$5,826,000) represents the relevant leases which will expire
within one year from the reporting period and the Group has no intention to renew

the leases upon expiry are classified as current and included in note 26.

2

2.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

BERABEREAFHZETEEZ
FERE (&)
Dormeo

WEMHTRESEHREEREE
FEET -ZBHENREEREM
HENREVBRBEFERRESRE
78 8 12 B4 A B4 38 % 18.88% (20174
17.90% )5t &> Dormeo L F1EHIR &
TEF2% (2017F 2% ) BT R
RHE - AEETEEMRE KEEX
HRBEERNREBENIRE®R
2% (017FE2%)2EEETIBA
B fAEEFENEMESRZMER
RN/ RERGE A EBEEE
$HE REFE TR Dormeof) B 1 &
AUREEBHRRMGERENESR
il &t o 8 £2018F %2017 12831
HIEFE REBEEEETDormeo
(BEBERREERE) NMEFES
ﬁﬁﬂ&iﬁﬂﬁa*ﬁ*f@lﬁmﬁai M A
AJREEH BT EH Dormeot R E
ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬂ@%ﬁﬁo

HekE

EHREERASEREEENE T
EERBERARRTCEEREND
e & e o 187 H & 50I823,365,000/%8
7T (20174 1 24,470,000% 7T ) B 72 A 3R
EHREEB—FIER e TR
HEFHIN—F AEEBBEEER
BETHE MESRENERIERD -
TR & 784,793,000 7T (20174 -

5,826,000/ 7T ) 78 B S BB AT — &
NEm BEASBEEEEREER]
HE MO EATYRHEANE2L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 4. EEBIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, REAMBRARNEZNME & T

BRERBEERABD THREH N
T AR BRE (FHOBETHIBLH

certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of

the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

ki
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 25,451 19710
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAEE (96,462) (102,964)
(71,011) (83,254)

T ARAEE RIBHE F SRR
TBETHE (AR EERASE:

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised and movements

thereon during the current and prior years:

p

Allowance
for Fair value
Undistributed inventories  Fair value  adjustment
profits of  Unrealised and doubtful  adjustment on
PRC profit in Tax  debts/credit on intangible
subsidiaries  inventories losses losses  properties assets Others Total
H BER n%x BREE
WEARH HERE RE/FE  2AF® A
RO BT RER WEERE HEER 0 E8R ERR Hit )
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TETL TET TBT TRET TR TET TR TBTL
At | January 2017 RWI7TEIAIR (1,722) 145 6372 13,566 (56302) (50,288) 1,575 (96,654)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (171 - 294 474 (4,187) - 64 (3526)
(Charged) credited to profit or loss ~ FMB3 (F1B) st A (3848) 2 = 719 865 2134 126 Q)
Release to profit or loss upon TNRERBEZER
payment of dividends 1,734 - - - - - - 1734
Effect of change in tax rate HEEHyE = = = (3845) - 19,228 (189) 15,194
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 (14,007) 147 6,666 10914 (59,624) (28926) 1,576 (83,254)
Exchange adjustments I X 3% 494 - @17 (472) 3,050 (187) (15) 2,653
(Charged) credited to profitorloss K82 (1) 5 A (2499) (35) 7984 (2007) 820 3409 500 8172
Release to profit or loss upon XRRERBZEER
payment of dividends 1418 - - - - - - 1418
At 31 December 2018 2018F 124318 (145%4) 12 14433 8435 (55.754) (25,704) 206! (71.011)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$219,195,000 (2017: HK$139,637,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$68,948,000 (2017:
HK$31,720,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$150,247,000 (2017: HK$107,917,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$28,555,000 (2017: HK$16,847,000) and HK$56,039,000 (2017: HK$23,516,000)
that will be expired from 2019 to 2023 and from 2037 to 2038, respectively. Other

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deductible temporary differences mainly
arising from allowance for inventories and credit losses (2017: doubtful debts) and
unrealised profits on inventories of HK$44,370,000 (2017: HK$57,627,000). Deferred
tax assets have been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary differences
of HK$43,340,000 (2017: HK$53,365,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the remaining deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can

be utilised.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed profit of certain PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 amounting to HK$589,380,000 (2017: HK$437,916,000), as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities of HK$14,594,000 (2017:
HK$14,007,000) has been provided for in respect of the temporary difference arising
from the undistributed profits of the remaining PRC subsidiaries.

24

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ESERIE (/)

RBEBRR  AEBBRDAFIEEE
219,195,000/ 7 (20174 : 139,637,000
BT ATHEEAR KRR BB EE
1868,948,0007% 7T (20174F : 31,720,000
B EREEREEE - AR AR E
FZELATEA] - R0 A& L8R T 150,247,000
BT (20175 107,917,000/ 7T ) #
RECEHBEE-HPBEHFBE
2019 £20234F & B20374F £2038
F JE W 2 &5 1828,555,0007 7T (2017
F 1 16,847,000/% 7T ) 556,039,000/ 7T
(20174 : 23,516,000/ 7T ) 5t AR HER
HEBE HMBBEERALE-

R20I18F12A3IH AEBEBRE
EREEEEE Q07F RE)EBEE
Rz E KRB % A i E 4 o] 106 Be
B 14 2 %844,370,0007 7T (20174 :
57,627,000/ 7T) ° E 3t B B 7] {18 E5
B 14 2 5843,340,0007 7T (20174 :
53,365,000/ L) ERIEERIBE E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 24, EERIE ()
During the year ended 31 December 2017, US corporate tax rate was reduced HE017F12A3IB EFE RER
from 35% to 21% with effective on | January 2018 in accordance to the Tax Cuts MEELR EBRCEHEF0I8
and Jobs Act. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised for the year FIA B FEB35% 8 A21% Bt
ended 3| December 2017 were re-measured at the amount expected to be paid to REAR2017F12A31BE Bl EOHF
or recovered from the relevant taxation authorities using the tax rates that had been Kt B BN T HEREEES
enacted as at 31 December 2017. An amount of HK$ 15,194,000 was credited to profit ERMEEBRONGBENIEES
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result of the above reduction of 017 12A3 B EFEBRABNELTH
tax rates. HEERBE -EZE217F12A31H
L0 15,194,00078 7T R OB E Lt
PR SER T At A B
The Group s liable to withholding tax on dividends distributed from Sinomax USA, £ BB 3t Sinomax USA, Inc. 72 K B A%
Inc.. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had temporary differences relating to the EHMAEHNB-R20I8F12A318 -
undistributed profits of Sinomax USA, Inc. of HK$83,654,000 (2017: HK$95,100,000). & B Bt Sinomax USA, Inc. R 2 K 4 F1
Deferred taxation has not been provided for such temporary differences as the Group H) B B 1 2£ B8 283,654,000 7T (2017
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is £ 195,100,000/ 7T) - HRAEE§EE
probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. BB EGEREEOER B RAA
RARDRA g BOEREZRE &
3 48 3 5% W B M Z R AR LR IE R IR
B
25. INVENTORIES pLIE 3~
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Raw materials R 1% 198,908 214921
Work in progress FEITRE 111,730 103,894
Finished goods BIPRK mn 220,433 360,658
531,071 679,473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 R EMEKRIE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHEL
Trade receivables E Al & 717,660 727,698
Less: allowance for credit losses/doubtful debts wEE }Eﬁ@/%gﬁﬁ (24,913) (19,209)
692,747 708,489
Other receivables H b Y FT
Prepayments for purchasing of raw materials BERM ﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ RIE RS EFX
and operating expenses 84513 74,104
Other taxes recoverable H Ao AT Ut [ 71 18 37,149 45204
Rental deposits (note 23) Heke (HE23) 4,793 5826
Advance to staff B EIFE 2,467 2,643
Consideration receivable from HE—RINBARZERRE
disposal of a subsidiary 8,601 -
Others Hith 13,089 10,855
150,612 138,632
Total trade and other receivables Hib ey FUB AR 843,359 847,121

As at 31 December 2018 and | January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$692,747,000 and HK$62 1,367,000, respectively.

The Group's retail sales are made both through its retail network comprising stand-
alone retail shops and concession counters in department stores and through internet
sales. The Group also sells health and household products directly to overseas
wholesalers and retailers and the polyurethane foam to furniture manufacturers in
the PRC. Sales at self-operated retail shops and sales through retailers in the PRC
and internet sales are transacted either by cash or credit cards. For sales made at
concession counters, the department stores collect cash from the end customers and
then repay the balance after deducting the concessionaire commission to the Group.
The credit period granted to department stores ranges from 30 days to 120 days. For
sales to wholesalers, retailers and furniture manufacturers, the Group generally allows a

credit period ranging from 7 days to 90 days.

2018 12831 H &20|8¢|ﬂ =K
RERFELMNEZFRWFIES R A
692,747,000 7T 5262 | ,367,000,%%575 °

$¢@Uﬂ$¢@m2%%u (Ila%
VZEERUNBERANGE

%)&EH&%%@%%&ET TEHE - Ni
ETmEIMERRTERERZHEE
BEMREEDR UERFENREE
Eﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@‘éi@ﬁ D= AT%E .
ERTFETERREBABESETH
HEH wﬁ@%a%fum% 0 /TM\\

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%’%ﬁﬁ?mﬁié@
ARHEAREPWERER S RMBRET
rEfeE AAEEEERE BT
BERAFANEESNTI0HEI208-
FRMEN TERALRRALEERN
HEMS AEE-RETHEEN
NFE7BE0H »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit

losses/doubtful debts, presented based on the dates of delivery of goods.

26.

BZ R EmERRE (&)

m]
< AR

AT RENREEBR/RERED
EHRYANKE DT (RIEE
RfTEHMZS) -

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within 30 days 30H AN 448,714 406,96 |
31 to 60 days 31E260H 149,877 179,487
61 to 90 days 61 E90H 56,832 82,170
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 34,030 36,474
[81 to 365 days 181 2365H 3,294 3,388
Over 365 days tBiA365H - 9
692,747 708,489

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate net carrying amount of HK$269,620,000 which are past due as
at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$19,705,000 has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default by considering the background of
the trade receivables and historical payment arrangement of these trade receivables.

Other than bills received, the Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

For the sales to wholesalers, retailers and furniture manufacturers, before accepting
any new customers, the Group will internally assess the potential customers’ credit
quality and define the credit limits based on results from investigation of historical credit

records of these customers.

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables
and considers the debts that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit

quality and the Group maintains a good business relationship with those customers.
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, 78% of the trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired had been classified as low risk under the credit assessment made by the
directors of the Company and the directors considered that these trade receivables
had no adverse change in the credit standing of the debtor subsequent to the
reporting period. The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related

to a number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of defautt.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivable balance were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$155,264,000 which were past due as
at the reporting date for which the Group had not provided for impairment losses as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality of the trade receivable and
the amounts were still considered recoverable. Other than bills received amounting
to HK$16,814,000, the Group did not hold any collateral over these balances and no

interest was charged on overdue trade receivables.

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:

26.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

BZ R EmERRE (8)

R2017F12A318 BEARDES
EH 2 EEFE RBBATRRE
LB HEWMREFIUE D ERER
B-BEEERARSTEFIERMFIELZ
BB AEEAM NN RS H %I &R F
2E -MABATRBREZEHEW
RERZEZNHEFPHEB ZFEF
I 43 BB MRS 8%

R2017F 128318 - AEB 28 5
BUFEBELEHEREEOEG LA
155,264,000/ 7T 2 FEURIE - ER RS
AHE a8 EASETE L EER
BERE RERBEZIEUFECLEE
BEXVESAEE BZeBENEG
AATURE - B B R K 16,814,000 7T
Oh REBN BB Z T ERITE IR
B BUEpe BERKET A

UTREBHERRENE ZEUR
TRARER AT o

2017

20174

HK$'000

FET

Within 30 days 30H A 95618
31 to 60 days 31260H 39,642
61 to 90 days 61290H 8,868
91 to 180 days 91Z2180H 8,063
181 to 365 days 181 E365H 2,258
Over 365 days @365 H 815
155,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

BZ R EmERRE (&)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRRERE
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
I January DENN=! 23,363
Exchange adjustments ME T 778
Impairment losses recognised PR REEE 1,543
Impairment losses reversed 20 2 REEE (4310)
Written-offs i (2,165)
31 December 2A31H 19,209

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the directors of the Company believe that
there was no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts already provided given the settlement from trade receivables after the reporting

period and the remaining trade receivables have no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$19,209,000 which
considered as uncollectible after considering historical settlement records, aging analysis

and internal assessment performed by the management of the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year ended 3l

December 2018 are set out in note 38.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed impairment
assessment on other receivables and concluded that the probability of defaults of
the counterparties are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is

provided.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BILLS RECEIVABLES

The amount represents bills receivables which are not yet due at the end of the
reporting period. The following is the aging analysis of bills receivables based on their

time to maturities as at the end of reporting periods:

27.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

ZETER/NBERRARBAHOE
WERE- AT ARBEHRIZED
By ] 2 51 W) R MR R R Bkl D A

2018 2017

201845 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Within 30 days 308 AR 13,166 3,440
31 to 60 days 31260H 18,877 2,703
61 to 90 days 615908 17,878 1,700
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 41,578 8,850
181 to 365 days 18153650 461 121
91,960 16814

As at 31 December 2018, bills receivables amounting to HK$24,221,000 (2017
HK$16,814,000) are held by the Group for future settlement of trade payables by
endorsement of bills or held to maturities for collecting cash. All bills receivables of the

Group are with a maturity period of less than one year

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed impairment assessment
on bill receivables and concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparties

is insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

R2018F12A31B AEBHAERE
W E%24,221,0005 7T (20174
168140008 TT) LEBEREEENH
BENEHIENREXFEEZ I H
NEBRe AEB B REREE
ZEBRHRA DR —F

HEWISENAINBILEFEE A£EE
HRERZBRETHETHEERAY
FHEHZUEELTEAR ALY
EELEEBERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

28.

29.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The bills receivables amounting to HK$67,740,000 (2017: nil) as at 31 December 2018
were transferred to suppliers by endorsing these bills receivables on a full recourse
basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivables and has recognised as trade payables (see note 31).The bills receivables are

carried at amortised cost in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As part of the Group's cash flow management, the Group has the practice of factoring
some of the trade receivables to financial institutions before the trade receivables are
due for repayment and derecognises factored trade receivables on the basis that the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards to the relevant counterparties.
Accordingly, such trade receivables were considered as within the hold to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell business model, and reclassified to trade receivables

at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rates of the factored trade receivables
at FVTOCI ranged from 3.38% to 4.38% per annum (! January 2018: 2.59% to 5.50%
per annum). Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs adopted for their fair
value measurements are disclosed in note 38. As at 3|1 December 2018 and | January
2018, the fair value changes on trade receivables at FVTOCI are insignificant and

accordingly, no fair value changes are recognised in equity as FVTOCI reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/FIXED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

@)

(b)

(©

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits with original maturities more than three months carried
fixed interest rates of 3.10% per annum as at 3| December 2017. Such bank
deposits had been pledged to secure the Group's general banking facilities and
were classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits has been released

upon the settlement of relevant bills payables.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturities more than three months carry
interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.40% to 2.10% (2017: 1.40% to 2.10%) per

annum.

Bank balances

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to
0.35% (2017:0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group performed impairment assessment

on pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances and concluded that

the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no

allowance for credit losses is provided.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

0. BEMRTERERRTER BT
HHRRRE

@

CEARTER

2017128318 REIBHE A
Z AR N EMBEBRITE R
BEFEHE BFERII0% A
BRITFAREERFRAREEAE
B —RRTEBE 2EARE
BE-BHEARTEAREAREH
[EN RIR B8 #RRR -

EHRITER

FEEAAZEAN A THR
TEREETFETE N TE
F140%ZE2.10% (20175 : 1.40%
Z2.10%) °

RATHEER

RITEBABITHIERN KT8
N EFBF001%E0.35% (2017
F:001%E035%) °

BZE0I8FNANBILEFEE A&EE
HEEBRTER THRTERR
RITHBETRETG EfwmAY
FHRBTEHZIERETTAEN R
B BB EEE-

EEERAAF

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

31

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 3. BSRHMENRR
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Trade payables Z 5 e /I8 363,303 374216
Refundable securities deposits REIFEHFMNILZS 10,218 12,999
Accrued expenses T X 119,176 116,154
Other taxes payable Hfth fE TR 18 29,534 30,192
Amount due to a non-controlling JE A 45 IR IE P IR AR R
shareholder (Note) B FIE (B EE) 6,543 6,543
Payable for acquisition of property, S E - FE &
plant and equipment XA PR ) FIE 11,881 24,395
Payable for freight charges [EfTEE 32,119 28,535
Interest payable FEAT )& 500 799
Others Hity 26,984 29,359
236,955 248,976
Total trade and other payables B 5 REAMFENFHIEREE 600,258 623,192

Note: The amount was unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in the trade and other payables above amounting to HK$67,740,000 (2017:
Nil) had been settled by endorsed bills for which the maturity dates of the bills

receivables are not yet fallen due as at the end of the reporting period (note 28).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 3. EZRHEMENRE(E)

BHRNMNFBENEEHN F30E60
H- U TAEREHRREZAHZ

The credit period of trade payables is ranging from 30 to 60 days. The following is the

aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting

32.

period. 5 R)E PR FRIRRRER D AT o
2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Within 30 days 30BA 227,429 213,458
31 to 60 days 31560H 62,015 103,317
61 to 90 days 61290H 19,766 31,824
91 to 180 days 912 180H 45,399 14,712
Over 180 days i@ 180H 8,694 10,905
363,303 374216

BILLS PAYABLES

N EREE

Bills payables were secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$2,912,000 (2018: Nil) as

at 31 December 2017 and guaranteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

R2017F 12831 B 2 BN ERAFIR
HER1T1F 32,912,000 7T (20184 ¢
E)EEE YAARRREETHE
RAER- U TARERAREZERSE

The following is the aging analysis of bills payables at the end of the reporting period

presented based on bills issue date:

TRHZ2I0EMRERE DN

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHETT

Within 30 days 308 AR 15,319 10,546
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,333 1,335
61 to 90 days 612908 15,735 25,442
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 53,794 54,151
86,181 91,474

BHREBERALAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33.

The following is an analysis of the Group's contract liabilities:

BREE

AEEzZANBEIMWT:

As at As at
31 December | January
2018 2018*
20185 720185
12A31H I H1E*
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAETT
Deposits received from customers for the sales  BLIHEREMREEmMBEF
of health and household products WHR 2 =& 893 1,255

For the contract liabilities as at | January 2018, the entire balances are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss during the year ended 3| December 2018. The directors
of the Company considered that the entire balance of contract liabilities as at 31
December 2018 will be recognised as revenue in profit or loss within twelve months
subsequent to 31 December 2018.Typical payment terms which impact on the amount

of contract liabilities recognised are set out in Note 5(ii).

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application of HKFRS

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

34.  UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS M BEMRRTER
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TET
Trade borrowings BH5EN 193,582 178,445
Term borrowings JEHR R K 680,175 557,609
873,757 736,054
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TATT
The carrying amounts of the above unsecured il K IRIRTTIE R < BRTEIA
bank borrowings that are repayable*: BRI AT BRRR fE & *:
Within one year —F R 318,398 188,868
Within a period of more than one year HR#EE —F BT EAMmE
but not exceeding two years 208,591 81,456
Within a period of more than two years HARR BB E - BN BB D F
but not exceeding five years 80,797 39,608
607,786 309,932
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings that ‘8 & B1Z Z K E B G 2 IR1T
contain a repayment on demand clause BRGIERBER) ZREE
(shown under current liabilities) but repayable: ~ ZEFA LA T HAPR (E 38
Within one year —FA 256,471 355,289
Within a period of more than one year HARR B A —F - B TR A
but not exceeding two years 9,500 61,333
Within a period of more than two years HRBEMF ETHBBRF
but not exceeding five years = 9,500
265,971 426,122
873,757 736,054
Less: Amounts due within one year shown WRBAEET 25
under current liabilities —F RN E B RIE (584,369) (614,990)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FRBBEETEI 2R 289,388 121,064
e The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan * NHSRENEEREENETER

agreements.

AfAREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

34.  UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

BEERRITER (F)

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Variable-rate borrowings F B EE K 857,139 690,568
Fixed-rate borrowings TE MR AE R 16,618 45,486
873,757 736,054

Variable-rate bank borrowings carry interest with reference to Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rates and Hong Kong Prime Rate plus a

specific margin of the relevant banks.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates)

on the Group's borrowings, are as follows:

RONERGERREBROALHR

B %

RITRRIF

BRERRER

FEMABRTORENBRTE -

AEENBERERNE (ATEER
AN )BEMT :

2018
20185

2017
20174

Effective interest rates (per annum): BERFZE(Z4F)
Variable-rate borrowings TFENF B
Fixed-rate borrowings TE MG

2.46% — 6.85%
5.75% — 6.00%

2.27% — 5.32%
3.95% — 6.00%
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34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued) A

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

BEERRITER (F)

AEENEREEEREER U
MERIIENERFHIIMT

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Us$ E7T 130,979 79,666

As at 31 December 2018, a non-controlling shareholder had provided a guarantee

to a bank to secure the bank facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Group to the
extent of Renminbi (“RMB") 19,800,000, out of which RMBI 1,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$12,661,000 (2017: HK$13,349,000), were utilised.

R2018F 128318 — B IEERA R
ARITIREER URBETRASE
B-HNBRARAETFTZLERAAR
B (TAR®]) 19,800,0007T K 88 17 &t
E-Z2PEEHARYI1,0000007T
(HER#12661,000% 7T (20175 :
13,349,000/ 7T) ) °

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 35 ARAFRA
Number of
shares Amount
BHEAR o]
'000 HK$'000
T FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.! each TR0 T AR
Authorised: EE:
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 201741 BB 2017912831 H
31 December 2018 F2018F 12431 H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares
BHEAE
'000 HK$'000
T FAT
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At | January 2017, 3| December 2017 and 201741 BB 2017912831 H
31 December 2018 2018 12831 H 1,750,002 175,000

EEBERAT 208FEHE

B
B

237



238

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, a share option scheme was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants under

the scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$!| to the

Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 13 December 2013, the Company had authorised to grant to 140 eligible
participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,918,000 shares under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company granted share
options to 137 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 34,903,000

shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular share option
offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be a price representing a
30% discount to the Offer Price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall be vested equally in five tranches commencing on 10 July 2014, the
first date on which dealings in the shares of the Company commenced on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and on each of the first, second, third and
fourth anniversary of the Listing Date. The grantees to whom a share option
has been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise the share option any time after the share option has been vested but
in any event on or before the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing
Date. The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
not transferable and share options not exercised within the exercise period wil

lapse and cease to be of further effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014 and ceased to have
effect after 10 July 2014. Share options granted prior to the expiration of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36 HBRESE (F)

()  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) ) BERLFRBEABRETS (8
The following tables disclose details of movements of share options granted TREBERBERARLENE
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: BEFER N NERESEF

th
Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
at during at during at
Options Vesting period 1.1.2017 the year 31.12.2017 the year 31.12.2018
R2017%F R2017F 20185
A8 12A318 12A31R
BRE BES MARTE REREAR  EHRTE REARR  HRTE
(Note) (Note)
(BitsE) (PHEE)
Directors
EF
Tranche | 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2014 4,045,240 - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
FH 2014F2R10RE
2014%7H108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2015 4,045,240 - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
E_Ht 2014F2R10RE
2015%7H108
Tranche 3 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2016 4,045,240 - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
F=#t 2014F2R10RE
201657H108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2017 4,045,240 - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
SO 2014F2R10RE
2017%7H108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2018 4,045,240 - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
Fht 014F2R10RE
2018%7H 108
20,226,200 - 20,226,200 - 20,226,200
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

% FRIRETE (&)

) BERLFABEABRESS (R

Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
at during at during at
Options Vesting period 1.1.2017 the year 31.12.2017 the year 31.12.2018
R2017F 20175 R2018%F
IRIE 12A318 12A318
R BEH MATE REREAR HRTE REAKXR  HATRE
(Note) (Note)
(P EE) (B 3E)
Senior management
BREEE
Tranche | 10022014 - 10.07.2014 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
FHt WI4F28108E
2014%7H108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2015 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
R WI4F28108E
2015%7H108
Tranche 3 10022014 - 10.07.2016 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
=4t WI4F28108E
20165F7H108
Tranche 4 10022014 - 10.07.2017 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
Eubiis WI4F28108E
2017%7H108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2018 1,007,560 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
FHH WI4F28108E
2018%7H108
5,037,800 - 5,037,800 - 5,037,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36 HBRESE (F)
()  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (0] BRARBENBRETS (&)
Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
at during at during at
Options Vesting period 1.1.2017 the year 31.12.2017 the year 31.12.2018
R20176 R2017F 20185
IRIE 12A31H 12A31H
R BEH MATHE REREH HRTE REARR  HRTR
(Note) (Note)
(P 3E) (B 3E)
Employees
B
Tranche | 10022014 - 10.07.2014 1,660,800 (22,500) 1,638,300 (206,000) 1,432,300
FHt WI4F28108E
201457A108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2015 1,662,800 (22,500) 1,640,300 (206,000) 1,434,300
FH WI4F28108E
2015%7A108
Tranche 3 10022014 - 10.07.2016 1,662,800 (22,500) 1,640,300 (206,000) 1,434,300
F=Ht WI4F28108E
201657A108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2017 1,662,800 (22,500) 1,640,300 (206,000) 1,434,300
FIOH WI4F28108E
2017%7A108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014 - 10.07.2018 1,662,800 (22,500) 1,640,300 (206,000) 1,434,300
F0H WI4F28108E
201857/ 108

8,312,000 (112,500) 8,199,500 (1,030,000 7,169,500

33,576,000 (112,500) 33,463,500 (1,030000) 32,433,500

Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 26,770,400 32,433,500
REERRAFIIE
Note: 17 (2017: 10) eligble participants, who have been granted share options have st 1748 (0175 : 108 ) BRER
ceased to become eligible participants upon termination of employment and BNEERZEENLILER
the said share options have automatically lapsed. MEETBRAERSHEE.
MEdBRESEB AN
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

% FRIRETE (&)

) BERLFABEABRESS (R

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BEBEERAFESABRESS
are as follows: RHMBREFBNT
Number of Fair value
share options Exercise per share
Date of grant granted Exercise period price option
sHBRE
RHEBH REBREHRE TEH TEE ZAVE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Tranche | 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2014 — 10.07.2019 0.74 0.41
E—Ht 201452108 2014F7H10RE
201957 A 108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2015 - 10.07.2019 0.74 0.43
E 4t 2014427108 2015577100 E
201957108
Tranche 3 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2016 — 10.07.2019 0.74 0.45
E=4t 201452108 2016F7HI0RE
201957 A 108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2017 — 10.07.2019 0.74 0.47
St 2014427108 201757H 100 E
201957108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2018 — 10.07.2019 0.74 0.48
EnHt 201452108 2018F7HI0AE

20197 A 10H

BHREBERALAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, calculated using the

Binomial Model was approximately HK$15,662,000.

The key inputs of the model were as follows:

Grant date 10 February 2014
Number of share options 34,903,000
Share price HK$0.96
Risk-free rate 0.46%
Expected volatility 47.82%
Time-to-maturity 541 years

The risk-free rate was based on Hong Kong Dollar Sovereign Curve obtained

from Bloomberg.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using five comparable companies’
historical volatility quoted by Bloomberg. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-

transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised a total expense of HK$195,000 (2017: HK$1,265,000)
for the year ended 3| December 2018 in relation to the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted by the Company.

The Binomial Model had been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share options
were based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varied with

different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was conditionally adopted by the
shareholders of the Company (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to the eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity
interests in the Company, for their contributions to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interest of the Group or for such other purposes as the board of
directors of the Company may approve from time to time, linking their interests
with the interests of the Group and thereby attracting and encouraging those

parties to work better for the interests of the Group.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

% FRIRETE (&)

BHREBERALAF

BRARBENERESS (H)

TR IR Ty IR 18 TSI RS R
BB RIME LK I0E M ETE °
BAMANBERSHEREERE
MREGRETURAER  ARBRA
AEE TERNETAZEER
EXIEZ X

BZE2018FNA3IBILEE K
SERARARENE AR
BT B IR P R FR 4B 9 52 195,00078
¢ (20174 1,265,000 7T )

—EREBBREHBRE 2
16 - PR E B RS B2 2
FEZBERBRNEREES
Bt BRI EERETE
BER TAREMEL-

BRAMBERBRES

B2014F3 848 AR AIREAR
BHRABERETS ([ERD
RRELBERENE])-

BRARBERBRIETEEE
RAENAEEMNIHADAE
ETRENEM B HMmED
B SBES INAER2HEE
2 — B D R AR A A
S EAHBRSH BN R
ARS8 S5 0 ) 25 B A SR B A 1)
pEE—fR Kmks REBE
BEHAREENFIZENEN
Ttee
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any particular
share option granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the directors of the Company in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price shall at least be the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of the Company's share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at the listing date (without taking
into account any shares that may be issued upon the full exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme), being 165,000,000
Shares (“Option Limit"). Options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Option Limit. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company,
the Company may refresh the Option Limit at any time provided that (i) the
Option Limit as refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders of the Company;
and (i) the options previously granted (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Option Limit as refreshed. The Company may also, with the approval of the
shareholders of the Company, grant share options in respect of shares of the
Company in excess of the Option Limit (as refreshed from time to time) to
eligible participants specifically identified by the Company before such approval
is sought.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from time
to time. No share options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company
(including the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit
being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each grantee in any |2-month period up to the date of
offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1%

limit shall be subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates is required
to be approved by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is proposed to be an option holder).
If the Company proposes to grant share options to a substantial shareholder
or any independent non-executive director of the Company or their respective
associates which will result in the number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the |2-month period up to and including the date of offer of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue; and
having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of offer of each grant, such further grant of
share options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of the independent
non-executive directors, the approval of shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

% FRIRETE (&)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)

The below table discloses movement of the Company's share options held by

the Group's directors, senior management and employees:

BRARBERERESS (H)

TREBREAKBES SRE
BELEBFANARAIBEE

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘

2
Granted at
26.1.2017 and Lapse
outstanding during Outstanding
Options Vesting period at 31.12.2017 the year at 31.12.2018
20174
1 A26H
RH®
20174 20185
12A31H 12A31H
B R R BES HRITE RERXRK e RATBE
(Note)
(B &E)
Directors
EF
Tranche | 26012017 —26.01.2018 3,750,000 - 3,750,000
E—Ht 20174F 1 A26H —20184F 1 A26H
Tranche 2 26012017 —26.01.2019 3,750,000 - 3,750,000
EHt 201751 A26H —2019% | A26H
7,500,000 - 7,500,000
Senior management
EBREERE
Tranche | 26.01.2017 —26.01.2018 950,000 - 950,000
F—#t 201741 A268 —20184F | A26H
Tranche 2 26012017 —26.01.2019 950,000 - 950,000
E 4t 201741 268 —20194F 1 A26A
1,900,000 - 1,900,000

B

EEERLQF 2018FEFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

% RIRETE (&)

(i) The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @M ERDHBRERBRETE (B
Granted at
26.1.2017 and Lapse
outstanding during Outstanding
Options Vesting period at 31.12.2017 the year at 31.12.2018
20175
1A26H
RHR
20175 20185
12A318 12A31H
BB BRI ERITE RERKRK i RAT AL
(Note)
(B &E)
Employee
ER
Tranche | 26.01.2017 —26.01.2018 10,700,000 (2,050,000) 8,650,000
£t 201741 H26 8 —2018%F | H26H
Tranche 2 26.01.2017 —26.01.2019 10,700,000 (2,050,000) 8,650,000
EHt 20174F 1 B26H —20194F 1 A26H
21,400,000 (4,100,000) 17,300,000
30,800,000 (4,100,000) 26,700,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period
R EHIRA] T4 13,350,000
Note: 7 (2017: Nil) eligible participants, who have been granted share options have Bk : 78 (0175 &) EREREN
ceased to become eligible participants upon termination of employment and EERZEERRILERBE

the said share options have automatically lapsed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36 HBRESE (F)

(i) The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @M ERDHBRECBRETE (B

REBERAREERBERETS

Details of the share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

are as follows: REMBERESBET:

Number of Fair value

share options Exercise  per share

Date of grant granted Exercise period price option

=37

] B E

R B BREHBE THEH THEE <AFVE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Tranche | — Directors 26012017 3,750,000 27.01.2018 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2022
EF-H-E% 201741 A26H 20185 1 B27H —
2022 | H26H

Tranche | — Senior management 26012017 950,000 27.01.2018 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2041
F-H-SRERE 20174 1 A26H 20185 | H27H —
20226 | B26H

Tranche | — Employee 26012017 10,700,000 27.01.2018 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2041
F-#—-1EE 201741 A26H 20185 1 B27H —
2022 | H26H

Tranche 2 — Directors 26012017 3,750,000 27.01.2019 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2002
F_H-B=F 201741 A26H 201951 H278 —
20226 | B26H

Tranche 2 — Senior management 2601.2017 950,000 27.01.2019 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2027
FH-SRERE 20174 1 A26H 201951 278 —
2022 1 H26H

Tranche 2 — Employee 26012017 10,700,000 27.01.2019 —26.01.2022 0.69 0.2027
EF-_H-ESE 201741 A26H 201951 H278 —
20225 | B26H

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, calculated using the

Binomial Model was approximately HK$6,249,000.

7T

BHREBERALAF

BRENZHBERER -BEAE
R E 2 2N T1E A 476,249,000/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36.

(i)  The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The key inputs of the model were as follows:

Grant date 26 January 2017
Number of share options 30,800,000
Share price HK$0.69
Risk-free rate 1.454%
Expected volatility 46.51%
Time-to-maturity 5 years

The risk-free rate is based on Hong Kong Government bond benchmark yield.

Expected volatility was determined by using 630-day historical volatility of
the Company. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioral considerations.
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)  The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Group recognised a total expense of HK$945,000 (2017: HK$4,323,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation to the Post-IPO Share
Options granted by the Company.

The fair values of the Post-IPO Share Options at grant date had been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent
qualified professional valuer. The Binomial Model had been used to estimate
the fair value of the options and above variables and assumptions were used in

computing the fair value of the share options.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of unsecured bank borrowings disclosed
in note 34, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and

new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

36.

37.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

@)

(b)

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report

8. &®IA

Categories of financial instruments @ EBMIANIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets EEMEE
Loans and receivables ERkERGIE (BERE R
(including cash and cash equivalents) REEEY) N/A TEH 930,050
Amortised cost #SH P AR 1,163,462 N/A i
Trade receivables at FVTOCI BBEMmEEREEAFE
AR 2 B 5 FEIGIR 87,769 N/A 75 F
Financial liabilities ot =R
Amortised cost BEH AR 1,418,445 1,288,696
Financial risk management objectives and policies b HEREREENEERBER

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,

bills receivables, trade receivables at FVTOCI, pledged bank deposits, fixed

bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, bills payables

and unsecured bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are

disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with certain of these financial

instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEMIELRIABER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38.

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances and variable-rate unsecured bank borrowings (see notes 30 and
34 for details of these balances) due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The Group currently does not have a policy on hedging interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and wil

consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the trade
receivables at FVTOC, fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and
fixed rate unsecured bank borrowings (see notes 29, 30 and 34 for details of
these balances). However, the management considers the fair value interest rate

risk is insignificant as they are relatively short-term.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
or at FVTOC! is as follows:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

ERTA ()

PHEREERNERRECE ()

R 70

GELT S

REBRERITTIS MK E i ot
TR EBITEBRZE X
mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ<M$%%Mﬁ
BREHEOEM HERERE
FIERER - ANEE B A E5E
Epar e mﬁﬁQWﬁﬁ
BEeRENXER T6F
h—%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬂwo

AEENRBEREMEEKER
DNEEFEZESEKFE B
EHEBIEBBEITEFR THE
TR R EEF R EEARITE
R (ZEEHOFBRME
0K34) EEe A FEMEREE -
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7§o

REER A ESEBEMBEE
WA FENEZ 2 mEEF
BIUWABENT :

2018
20184
HK$’000
FET
Other income H A
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBEKATEZEREE 487
Trade receivables at FVTOC] FEREMEEWREEATETR
2 8 5 R RIE 2,263
Total interest income B A LBE 2,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38 SREIA(E
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b HEREREENEERBER (8)
Market risk (continued) TEEE (B)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIEm R (&)
Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at amortised cost BREHEKAGTEZ EREEN S
is as follows: WABEMT
2017
20174
HK$'000
TET
Other income E A
Loans and receivables B EWRIE
(including bank balances and cash) (BRERITERRRS) 316
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at fair value through profit WIEEBBRIRATEYERAE
or loss: JEBMBEIZMERAX:
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HHIEKAGTECERAE 40,096 26,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for variable-rate unsecured bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. 50 basis point increase or decrease represent the management’s
assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates of unsecured

bank borrowings.

The Group’s exposure to variable-rate bank balances was not included in the
below analysis as the management considers that the exposure to these risks for

bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates of unsecured bank borrowings had been increased/decreased by
50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points) respectively and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would be decreased/increased by
HK$3,597,000 (2017: HK$2,919,000).

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ERTA ()

PR EEN B ER K ()

mEEE (&)

FEERE (&)

BREDW

TXZBEEIIERAEE
RRFERRFE N EEEA
SRAT i SR i B0 ) 2 L B 7 4
o BEABOITEZHRER K
SHMRREENRBESENRESF
MIIREE - SOEER A0 IB IR K
RIEREEEHERRRITER
MEMAE A EE BT -

AL RBEAEE 75
ﬂ%ﬁﬁ EERPTE G2 B - B
EERBRRRITHERIAEERZZ
ZRRILFEK-

WREEBBITERZ M ED B
EF T RBRSOE E B (201745
SOEIEL L) - MAT B &84
BRE AAEEZRGENE
B> /18 403,597,00058 7T (2017
F:2919,00087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38.

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 8 EMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b HEREREENEERBER (8)
Market risk (continued) H5/EER ()
Foreign currency risk S S
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales and purchases, RRAETHEBARAUINEE
bank balances and unsecured bank borrowings which expose the Group to TTIHE LRE  RITERREE
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency RBTET SAEEEBRIINE
hedging policy but will use foreign currency contracts to hedge against the risk [ B o A 55 B IR IS I M ) E B
when it is foreseen to be significant. ONEE H ORI - B LASMER K
i AR RMERER -
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary AEBRBMERR  UIMNESHE
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: NEREEREKEENEEE
M
Assets Liabilities
BE &
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20175 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET TR TET
HK$ BT 29 43 - -
US$ =Y 76,878 36,698 131,197 94,529
Sensitivity analysis BURE DT

Subsidiaries of the Company carry out most of the transactions denominated
in HK$ or US$ and the Group is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange
risk arising from these currencies when they are different from the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial impact arising from changes in exchange rates between
HK$ and US$ is not expected to be significant and therefore, the corresponding

sensitivity analysis is not prepared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, other than those financial assets whose carrying
amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risks as 4.2% (2017: 4.3%) and 20.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the total trade receivables is due from the Group's largest

customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures over the customers to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate allowance are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade balances based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

8. £EIE(H)

®)

BHREBERALAF

PR EEN B ER K ()

EEmERBETE

720185 128318 BrERE (B A
ERRAREERRZZ
ZeMEEN AEERREH
RAABFHREBTRENEMT
MEERNEAEERRKBES
BBRAEATSERRAEHE
EREEE

rEEBEREEEFRR RAR
B 5 ENGRIEETE 24.2% (2017
F:43%)120.5% (201745 :
16.5% ) T3 BIFE A S B 2 & K
RAREF-

EFPANELZESRNIE

AEAREHEKESRR &K
SEEEECZR—MABEE
HEIEPHEERE EEEM
REAMEER T URBREDR
R B RS BERS N
FEBEMNSENEBERESRE
HIRm AT e & 58 - AR LA
ARE & BEHRE ME B E - It
O RERB BT IS HEERE

IR AEEREBMEES

BEAQI7F:-CELABER
A)ENBEEEYEE S EHE
ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁwb$“ﬂ§$
RRAAEENEERBELRE
B AE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

The management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk in relation
to sales made at concession counters is limited as the Group only operates
concession counters in leading and reputable department stores and for
international and export sales, the customers are mainly leading retailers in the
US and the credit risk is not expected to be significant. In case of any disputed
sales, the Group will closely monitor and may consider making adjustments to
sales for any returned or defective goods. For other customers, the management
closely monitors settlement status and regularly updates their credit profile to
ensure that the Group's credit risk is properly managed. For customers in the
PRC, the Group would accept bills as alternate settlement means to reduce the

exposure of credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables, bills receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and

bank balances

The credit risks on bills receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits
and bank balances are limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on other receivables are insignificant as the management of the
Group periodically monitors the balances to ensure that the counterparties are

viable to settle the debts.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings and the concentration of credit risks
of the five largest customers disclosed above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large

number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

8. £EIE(H)

®)

BHREBERALAF

PR EEN B ER K ()

EERRREEFG (F)

HEEWHE  ERRSE  EHAH
RITEAN EHRITIEARRTH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

8. SRIA(E

b HHEERREENEERBE (K)

EERRREEFG (F)

AEB 2 NEEERBRRRTE

categories: BIEAT R
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
A
EEFR i g5 EWRIE HitEMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — [2-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
KRk HFHABRVARLYEBEFAARKIE 2HEHEEBHE  2EAEH
— W EEERE EEEE
Normal risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — [2-month ECL
but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
IE & R BEBAKLERIHBERENR 2HEBEEESE 2@EAES
BEFTNRIHBREE — W EEERE EEEE
High risk There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally
= A BEBANHEEZER EERREVE HIEREERE 2HRHACEEEE
RUARE K& IE AN —WEEERE —YEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
18 ERBRTIEEREERE HIFEREERE 2HRHACEEEE
—EERIE —{EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off  Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i 85 BERBRREBABABRENBREH S FEAR A 38 & FEAR A 35

BARGEYEE R A5
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets,

which are subject to ECL assessment:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ERTA ()

BmREENEEREER (8)
EERRREEFG (F)
TRFNAEERETRAEE

ERIAGZEREEZEER

A .
oo
oS

Internal |2-month or
2018 credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
20185 RHEEFTR REARE2HAMEEFE REAE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THETT THET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REBHERAETEZ
ERMEE
Trade receivables 26  (Note) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 704,928
B 5 R R (Bt&E) HRBEERE (BEER)
Loss Credit-impaired 12,732 717,660
SR EERE

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by

internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers in relation to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired).

BHREBERALAF

Wi AEECHE S EURIEER
BRAMBREEAEIR 2B
nE ReHRBEEERTE
BREE AKEERENEE
BB B RBRREETZ
FRECENEEBR-

ERASBEERBRER 25

o AEEREEREHE,ER

NEEETR TRIZEBER

2018F 12831 HIRBE R EIERET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

38.

EWIA (&)
b HHEERREENEERBE (K)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERRBRFETG (8)
Gross carrying amount REEE

Average Trade
Internal credit rating loss rate receivables
B EEFR FHEER HZEWRNKE
HK$'000
THETT
Low risk KR 0.04% 240,654
Normal risk IF% Rk |.46% 399,866
High risk = Bk 9.67% 64,408
704,928

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about specific

debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment allowance of
HK$12,211,000 was made and charged to profit or loss for trade receivable
based on the provision matrix. A net reversal of impairment allowance of
HK$6,288,000 has been made and credited to profit or loss for credit-impaired

trade receivable.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

38 SRIAE
b HBEREENEERBEK (&)
EERBRBETG (&)
TRETERBBCHERES

ERFURTER 2 MR EE
B8

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
=HEH =HEH
FEEE FEEE
(Y #EAZERE) (E&RIE) AEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT TATT TAET
As at 31 December 2017 under 2017512831 HR#E
HKAS 39 and | January 2018 BEEBSTEREIR
under HKFRS 9 K20I185F 1 A1 H
BEEBUHERE
RIS - 19,209 19,209
Impairment losses recognised MR EE R 12,211 9,079 21,290
Impairment losses reversed BEREEE - (15,367) (15,367)
Exchange adjustments M 5 AR (30 (189) (219)
As at 31 December 2018 72018512431 H 12,181 12,732 24913

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables of the Group are mainly due

to the settlement of credit-impaired trade debtors with a gross carrying amount

of HK$15,367,000 during the year ended 3| December 2018.

HZ018FNABILFE K
EEZE S BN FIEEBEE

153670008 L ZZEREE S
JIE U FRIB FTER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over two years
past due, whichever occurs earlier The Group has taken legal action against the

debtors to recover the amount due.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of unsecured bank borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, unsecured bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for

other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 8 EMIAE)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b HEREREENEERBER (8)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELERE (&)
Liguidity tables REETxK
On demand
Weighted or less 3 months Total
average than -3 to | =5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate | month months | year years  cash flows amounts
nE  RERR = 3fEA AERRE

PHERE HSR-EA @A EIF IE5E  RESR fREE
% HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000
% THET TAT TAT TAT TATT THET

At 31 December 2018 M20I8F12831H

Trade and other payables & 5 J Bt FE (I 308 = 178,387 280,120 = = 458,507 458,507
Bills payables ESz - 15,320 17,068 53,793 - 86,181 86,181
Unsecured bank borrowings &3 88747 f& 31
— variable rate —FHF= 411 271,344 29,151 286,362 306,975 893,832 857,139
— fixed rate —EE A& 5.75 4838 11,899 - - 16,737 16,618

469,889 338,238 340,155 306,975 1,455,257 1,418,445

At 31 December 2017 M2017E12831R

Trade and other payables & 5 Rk E 1B FKB - 356317 103,490 1,361 - 461,168 461,168

Bills payables eSS - 10,546 26,777 54,151 - 91,474 91,474
Unsecured bank borrowings &3 18R4T f& 3%

— variable rate —FHF = 3.2 436829 9,489 135,624 124,304 706,246 690,568

— fixed rate —ElE A% 508 8,128 26,448 11531 - 46,107 45486

811,820 166,204 202,667 124304 1304995 1288696
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3. ERIA(H)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b HEEREENEERICK (E)

Liquidity risk (continued) mEELERE (F)

Unsecured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in RNEMEEBR TR EFAER
the “on demand or less than | month” time band in the above maturity analysis. EREBEEINEEIBHRTE
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of these unsecured FEtATHESRSF DR —1E A
bank borrowings amounted to HK$265971,000 (2017: HK$426,122,000). BB i R - A2018F 128318 -
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors do not believe ZEEmEWMETEINERA
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to 8 /5265,971,0008 7T (20174 -
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such unsecured bank 426,122,000 L) - ER A EH
borrowings will be repaid after the end of the reporting period in accordance BRI  EEREEHEIRT
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, details of Tﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁjﬂﬂ
which are set out in the table below: BEEBEFE-EEHE %5

EHARRITETBERSHRR
KERER G EPAEAREE R
& BEHBIEAR X

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that TREHIFERARSE SR

interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest EoWMHNEAFHAE  KALH

rate at the end of the reporting period. BeBARREH RO KRG
% o

Maturity Analysis — Unsecured bank borrowings with a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HHESN-BERAEER N AR ARERUBGRNBERRTHEN

Total
Less than I =3 3 months to | =5 undiscounted Carrying
| month months | year years cash outflows amounts
AERRE

PRIFE IEMER MEREIF IBSE RLAR fREE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000
THET THET THET THEL THEL TAET

3| December 2018 20185 12A31H 112,051 88,272 58,682 9,851 268,856 265,971
3| December 2017 20174 12A31H 221,657 50,776 86,969 72,653 432,055 426,122
The amounts scheduled above for variable interest rate instruments for non- ] R RPN R E A RES
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest FZHMEMEERE: B EXgtIE
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the NMESRBEZAEMNETAY
reporting period. RZEEATE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of

various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the Company are responsible to determine

the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level | inputs are not available, the management
of the Group would estimate the fair values based on a discounted cash flow

analysis.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular;, the valuation

technique and inputs used).

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

8. £EIE(H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 8 EMIAE)
()  Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued) © ERMIAZRVETE R
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value on a BEMELPEGTEZAEFT LM
recurring basis (continued) BEZAFE(F)

Valuation technique

Financial assets Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Sensitivity
fHER
ETREE RUTHEEZAFE 2AFEER REZEBAHE HRBE
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables at FVTOCI 87,769 N/A* Level 3 Discounted cash flows. A slight increase in risk-adjusted
R E A 2 E T A* E3MR HRFETE- discount rates used would result
BRATEINEZES in a slight decrease in fair value,
FE YR IE Risk-adjusted discount rates and vice versa.
of 3.38% to 4.38% quoted BT FIAT B MR T8 TR BR 3R & 7 #E Gk
by the banks EINEEHATERMRD
SRTT P 2 45 o e 5 2 RZ IR
Bh 3R %338%54.38%
* Upon application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018, certain trade receivables * RWISEIRIRERE ST
have been reclassified as trade receivables at FVTOCI as disclosed in note 2. T ER|FE5E % H MW 2

R ETEZRIGERE
MOBRBEBEMZERER
AYEFIRZE S REFR -
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the

year ended 3| December 2018.

38.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ERTA ()

© SMIAZATEER(E)

HE0I8FENANRBLEE A
FEEBRzTRER 2 ELEE

%ﬁ‘ o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements B A FETEZH K
Trade receivables
at FVTOCI
ZBEMEE
WERAFE
JR2ES
P& W SR8
HK$'000
FET
As at 3| December 2017 2017 12A31H N/A 5 F
Restated under HKFRS 9 (note 2) RIEBE BT ERELERFESRET (M) 86,658
As at | January 2018 201851 A I H 86,658
Loss on initial recognition of trade receivables P 25 R R iR HoAth 2 T W
at FVTOCI (included in other expenses) BRATEINEZESRYFIAZ

B8 (FFAEMmAR) (1910)
Sales $HE 1,132,443
Settlements BE (1,131,221
Effective interest income (included in other income) BERABWA (GAEMYA) 2263
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (464)
As at 3| December 2018 72018512431 H 87,769

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures

required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values based on discounted cash flow

analysis.

UHEF HEAFENE (AR
FOTFE) 2AREEHEERLH
BE2ATE

RERFBRSREDNT AAF
EERR NEAUBRERAR
AEZRAERARNTERS-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

39. OPERATING LEASES 3. KEHE

AEEAEEA

The Group as a lessee

Year ended 3| December

2l

BZNABLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Minimum lease payments paid under BELEHES TR

operating leases SIEBERE 102,188 90,092
Contingent rental payments HAEE 238 317
102,426 90,409

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

R|EHR - A& E A0 HEE L
EHEAERRREHENE ZF
TAHHEEEHENZHERDT -

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within one year —F R 80,498 75,099
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (RIEFEMT) 144,764 127,552
Over five years HE3A T F 70,275 88,393
295,537 291,044
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASES (continued) 39.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Included above are the following lease payments committed to a fellow subsidiary of

the Company:

e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

RERE (M)

AEEAFEA (F)

A EFREA TR A B R R B A
AIAERMEE TR

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEx FABT

Within one year —F R 9,116 19,076
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (RIEGEMT) 18,232 -
27,348 19,076

Obperating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for the retail shops,
offices, factory, staff quarters and warehouses. Leases are negotiated for initial terms

ranging from one to ten years.

EERERERAEEARTEE B
A FRE - BIFESRABNENTE
2 BOEHDEREESE  NINF
—EHERE:

BREEEAERAT 208FEFEHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

39.

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Certain retail shops include payment obligations with rental varied with gross revenue.
The additional rental payable (contingent rents) is determined generally by applying
pre-determined percentages to actual sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases. It is not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such contingent rents

payable.

According to the respective operating lease agreement entered into by the Group,
a purchase option within 3 years from the date of lease agreement was granted to
the Group to acquire a factory in the US currently leased by the Group at a pre-
determined price. The original lease term of the factory with the purchase option is
10.67 years and the Group has decided to exercise the option to purchase the factory
and the lessor will confirm the acceptance of the offer on or before 30 September
2019. As at 31 December 2018, included in the above lease commitment is amount of

HK$112,901,000 (2017: HK$125,789,000) in relation to the lease of this factory.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$14,833,000 (2017:
HK$10,833,000) and all of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

few months to four years (2017: few months to five years).

Sinomax Group Limited 2018 Annual Report
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

RelE (8)

AEEAHEA ()

REREHR AEER T RKR
BEHEFREBPIVLAR:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 15,941 8,728
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-EZERF (BEEEWSF) 32,440 12,816
Over five years BiBEAF 5,040 6,850
53,421 28,394

The amounts represent rentals receivable by the Group for leasing of unutilised
factories and warehouses classified as investment properties. Leases are generally

negotiated for initial terms ranging from few months to eight years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all
qualified employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at a rate of 5% specified in the rules, but subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month. The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

ZELERENTEEREEED R
ARENENRERIBRNE ENE
Wle BOFH-REEDET 1
INFHEBEAENENS-

RAEFEE

BEAGELBESHEEN AEE
BFMBERAAEKRREESEHRTEA
Bestal ([RESHE]) aBEest
EMEERASEBEB YA
THESEENARKE RERES
HERD BEREEEEDIER
FIETERES% Aat Bt 5K - B/ E LR
FRIS00ET - NEBBEHRESF
B —EKAREEELFAR
o A £ 4R UG AL 3K AT P LA 008 K R
FERMMERK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

40.

41.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 4. BAKBEFGE (EF)
The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement RABEXENEE AT EBTEER
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required RERBREFFEHKE -
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit MEBAREREEATIENETES
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Lo R KA FIET B R0 AR TR
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes. HES - AEEFBRKBHNGEW
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. E—EBKAREFEEL A/
3 48 4808 W B R A R BA FRUR SR
FERTE B -
The Group maintains multiple qualified contributory saving plans as allowed under AEERER 7 Bt HO% 58401 (k)
Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code in the US. These plans are defined GAETSELZEAERHERFEE
contribution plans covering employees employed in the US and provide for voluntary B-ZEHEARRERNEEXEZE
contributions by employees, subject to certain limits. The contributions are made by B EBEMRE URETRHT
both the employees and the employer: The employees’ contributions are primarily THEEERET -EEREXHE
based on specified dollar amounts or percentages of employee compensation. H#EtK - EERREEREES M
ZEERELBDLEL -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total contributable charged to the B ZE2018F12A3IBEFE G AL
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to EEakHEMEIERERSEM
HK$38,292,000 (2017: HK$39,191,000). 48 %8 538,292,000 7T (20174
39,191,000 7T ) °
COMMITMENTS 4. AEiE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition FUIEE AT HE RN ER A I TSR E
of property, plant and equipment contracted BENME  HWE REED
for but not provided in the consolidated BEARRZ
financial statements 11,485 35438
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 4. HE-BHEBAF
Disposal of Sinomax (Dongguan) Sleep Technology Limited (“Sleep Technology”) e (R%) EIRRARA R ([ R
)
On Il December 2018, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase agreement R20I8FNAIB AEEEHEEY
with an independent third party to dispose of its 90% equity interest of Sleep E-RVEERE NHEERE
Technology, which engaged in research, development and sale of health and RER (EEMERHEREREE
household products activities, at a cash consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to mER) 20%kE ReREAAR
approximately HK$8,601,000). The disposal was completed on || December 2018 in #7,000,0007T (18 & R 478,601,000
which the Group lost control of Sleep Technology. The net assets of Sleep Technology at JC) e M ER018F12A1BREK
the date of disposal were as follows: AEBEXREERBR 2 EGIR-EER
BERREERPRzEEFENT
HK$'000
TATT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control REEGHEZEEREBED N
was lost:
Property, plant and equipment E RN BT 23
Inventories FE 1572
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H it eI FRIE 880
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 2,175
Trade and other payables B 5 NHEH M EAFIE (1,259)
Tax payable FE TR IR (142)
Net assets disposed of FTib & 2 BEFE 3,249
HK$'000
T
Gain on disposal of Sleep Technology: & B AR R R 2 s
Consideration received BEHEZ KE 8,601
Net assets disposed of FritE v EEFE (3,249)
Cumulative exchange differences reclassified to BN EER B ERETE
profit or loss (67)
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses FEAE A Uz 2 B 18 2 B I 5,285
HK$'000
T
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of Sleep Technology: HEEERFELEZEESR L FEHE:
Cash consideration RERE 8,601
Consideration receivable FEWRE (8,601)
Bank balances and cash disposed of FIHE 2 IRITABRKE S (2,175)
Net cash outflow RE&RHFE (2,175)

BHREBERALAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 43.

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RETHMELAEHE

TRADAEBRAZDAELEE
28 (RS RFALED) B
BERFRELEENEERERER
ARBEREEABNAEEDEAR

EMEBRADERBELDRERE

HEE-
Unsecured
bank Interest Dividend
borrowings payable payable Total
FR 4 4
BITER NEHAX EIRE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TETT TAET
At | January 2017 201751 A 1B 476,896 571 - 477467
Financing cash flows FEH 2 246,509 (25,955) (33,122) 187,432
Non-cash changes IEH & B E)
Finance costs B 7% Bk A - 26,158 - 26,158
Dividends recognised as distribution  #E R /& 7 Ik 2 & 8. - - 33,122 33,122
Foreign exchange translation HINGE $2 B 12,649 25 - 12,674
At 31 December 2017 20174 12A318 736,054 799 - 736,853
Financing cash flows FERT 148,598 (40,371) (29,403) 78,824
Non-cash changes B &
Finance costs B R AR - 40,096 - 40,096
Dividends recognised as distribution  #E32 & 7 K 2 J& B - - 29,403 29,403
Foreign exchange translation HNERE (10,895) (24) - (10919)
At 3| December 2018 72018512431 H 873,757 500 - 874,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 4 BELHE
In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments disclosed elsewhere in the BREeMBERERMBEENR S &R
consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered into the following related NN REBD T N HIBER
party transactions: R5:
Relationship with the Group Nature of transactions 2018 2017
RAKEEER RXEME 20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Fellow subsidiary of the Company Rental expenses 13,195 18,168
NS EES =G HERX
In addition, certain trademarks owned by fellow subsidiaries of the Company were BN AEERMEFEANREERE
used by the Group free of charge during both years. FTARRARZMBARERNER
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEASNFHE
The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the EERHEMFIEEREXNERN RS H
reporting period was as follows: B E BT
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Salaries and allowances e MoRR 11,711 12,000
Performance related incentive payments BARENHES 1,460 1442
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIRAE I ET B4R 108 108
Share based payment expenses M An XA R 2 743 1,975
14,022 15,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

45.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 45 FAAMBARRE
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: AREIMEBARIGFERT
Issued and fully Proportion of share/

Place of paid share capital/ registered/quota capital

incorporation/ registered capital/ and voting power held by

operations/ quota capital the Company

establishment ERTRARKRE RARABEERE
Name of subsidiary MR FMER/ EX/BRBERKREREM Principal activities
WELARERE ge/Runy REEX 5] TERK

At 31 December
RI2A3IA
2018 2017
2018 20174

Directly owned
EBEEHE
Treasure Range Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$27 100% 100% Investment holding

EE EBR27ET REEK
Indirectly owned
FEEE
Ascension International The BVI Ordinary shares US$ | 100% 100% Investment holding

Development Limited HERUHE TRRIET REZER

BEERERERAR
Fullelite Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
BEBRAT RERLEE BERIOET REER
Year Prosper Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
BFERRAT RERZHE EBRRIOXT REEK
Wonderful Health Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding

RBRLBEE EERIOET REEK
Trade Sincere Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$100 85% 85% Investment holding
EBERAA RBRLEE EBRIET REER
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 45.

Place of

incorporation/

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ARRMELRFE (F)

Issued and fully Proportion of share/

paid share capital/ registered/quota capital

registered capital/ and voting power held by

operations/ quota capital the Company
establishment BERTRARKRE RARAHEREEM
Name of subsidiary EMA& FMER/ BAR/BBEARBZEREM Principal activities
WEARERE g/ RULE BREEX LAl TEEH
At 31 December
RI2A31R
2018 2017
20185 20174
Sinomax International Investment The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding and
Limited EBRUHE ETRRIOET provision of treasury
EHBERRERRAA management services
RERRRRHEFEEE
R
Sinomax Health & Household Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of
Products Limited B HK$1,000,000 health and household
ERBERERERARARAT 3% 1,000,007 T products
TERMBREREER
Sinomax International Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of health and
ERBERESERLA BE HK$10,000 household products
3B 1000078 T BREXEERER
Chengdu Xingang (Note 2) The PRC Registered capital 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of
BB (M aE2) + RMB 120,000,000 polyurethane foam
EMEARARE BERHEERRRAR
120,000,0007T
Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (Note |)  The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
REBRRERAMBRAR (ME) HK$32,000,000 health and household
1 & 7532,000,0007% 7T products
RENHEREREER
Shandong Sinomax Household The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Processing, manufacturing
Products and Technology Limited* H RMB30,000,000 and sales of
(Note 1) AMERARE polyurethane foam
WRBEHRERBZARARA (M) 30,000,0007C T SEREERRER

AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital/

Proportion of share/
registered/quota capital
and voting power held by

operations/ quota capital the Company
establishment BERTRARKRE RARAHEREEM
Name of subsidiary EMA& FMER/ BAR/BBEARBZEREM Principal activities
WEARERE g/ RULE BREEX x ] TEEH
At 31 December
RI2A31R
2018 2017
20185 20174

Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Processing, manufacturing

Co, Ltd* (Note 1) i RMB35,000,000 and sales of
EEBRAEHEERAR (M) HMERARK polyurethane foam

35,000,0007C T SEREERRR
AR

Sinohome Household Products The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of

(Shenzhen) Limited* (Note 1) H HK$ 1,000,000 health and household
EHFERAR ORINEBRRA 114 751,000,00078 7T products

GE TERMEREREER
Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of

Technology Limited (Formerly known /R US$30,000,000 health and household

as Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane 1 & 7830,000,000% 7T products

Household Products Limited)* (Note |) RERHEREREER
B O BRaERMHERLA

(AR O RaERE

RAmERAR) (M)
Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. The PRC Registered capital 51% 51% Manufacture and sale

Limited* (Note 2) (“Sinomax Kuka") US$2,100,000 of foam
MIEHEBRRBRERAA #Eff & 72,100,000 7T B RHERR

(Pat2) ([BHEEER])
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BENISFIAIALFE

ARRMELRFE (F)

ul|

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 45.

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital/

Proportion of share/
registered/quota capital
and voting power held by

operations/ quota capital the Company
establishment BRTRBERE AARBERE M
Name of subsidiary EMA& FMER/ EX/BRBERKREREM Principal activities
HELAREHR ge /Iy MEER x ] TEEH
At 31 December
RI2A31R
2018 2017
20185 20174
Sinomax (Dongguan) Sleep Technology The PRC Registered capital - 90% Research, development
Limited* (Note 3) RMBS5,000,000 and sale of health and
household products
B (RE)BERMRERAR FE &R AR MERHEEREXEER
(PEE3) 5,000,0007T
Sinomax Macao Commercial Macau Quota capital 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
Offshore Limited A MOP 100,000 household products
PRERMRFRAEREERATF FLRREARRPIE HEREREER
100,0007T
Sinomax USA, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
xH stock of no par value household products
| OORS £ B {8 % 38 A% HEREXEEMR
Sinomax East, Inc. The US | share of common stock 100% 1009% Manufacture of health and
xH with no par value household products
B (B AR HERBEREEMR
Dormeo North American, LLC The US Issued and fully paid share 51.31% 51.31% Investment holding
ES capital US$50,48 1,560 REER
BEETRERRA
504815605 7T
Top Shop TV, LLC The US Issued and fully paid share 51.31% 51.31% Investment holding
% capital US$42,103,890 REER
EETRERKRA
42,103890% 7T

BHREBERALAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital/

45 ARFMEARFR (&)

Proportion of share/

registered/quota capital

and voting power held by

operations/ quota capital the Company
establishment BERTRARKRE AARBERE M
Name of subsidiary EMA& FMER/ EX/BRBERKREREM Principal activities
WEARERE ge /Iy MEER x ] TEEH
At 31 December
RI2A31R
2018 2017
20185 20174
Octaspring Operations US, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 51.31% 51.319% Manufacturing and sales of
e stock of US$0.0001 health and household
par value products
|00 & X E {2 SENHERERXEER
0.0001 37T % 3@ AR
Octaspring US, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 51.31% 51.31% Retail and wholesale of
xH stock of US$0.0001 health and household
par value products
100A% & R {8 TERMEREREER
0.0001 37T & 3B
TSTV Canada Limited Canada 1,000 shares of common 51.31% 51.31% Retail and wholesale of
mex stock of no par value health and household
I 000% & B (8 L ik products
TEMMERERXEER
Notes: Bt -
(1) The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprise. () ZEQRMUINEBECET M.
(2)  The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign equity joint venture. Q) ZELRNFHEBEET M.
(3)  This subsidiary was established in November 2017 and being disposed on |1 (B) ZMBREER017FIAKY I

December 2018 and details of the disposal are disclosed in note 42.

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their respective places of
incorporation/establishment. None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt
securities at the end of or any time during the reporting periods.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only.
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46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Place of establishment

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

46 ERFERES

Proportion of ownership

and principal place interests and voting rights held Profit (loss) allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary of business by non-controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
BB R FEREDFTEHEERE PREFERER
HEAREE IREEHHY EERRRENLA A (BR) RETFERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20175 20185 20175 20185 20175
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET
Sinomax Kuka and its wholly owned The PRC 49% 49% 20,293 16,698 63,027 57,653
subsidiary
EREBRR A2 EMEAT HE
Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co, Ltd The PRC 49% 49% (140) 1,014 92,446 96,538
AR A B RERRA HE
Individually immaterial subsidiary (9,059) 245
with non-controlling interests
RAEFERERCBITEANBERA
146,414 154436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

46. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 46 EXRFERER (E)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of Group's subsidiaries that had EEAEEREERNEEREZNS
material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information ERBNMEERBREINMT -
below represents amounts before the elimination of intragroup transactions. NTHBEEHBREREEEARS
A ZE8e
(@)  Sinomax Kuka and its wholly owned subsidiary, Haining Sinomax Trading @ EREBRRXRH2ENBEAR SE
Co,, Ltd. ERBEZERAT
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Current assets MENEE 176,362 161,667
Non-current assets EMENEE 11,404 12,714
Current liabilities RERE 59,139 56,721
Total equity s R 128,627 117,660
Total equity attributable to owners RABIHEE NELRER AT
of the Company 65,600 60,007
Total equity attributable to FEFE R RIS AR
non-controlling interests 63,027 57,653
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

@)

Sinomax Kuka and its wholly owned subsidiary, Haining Sinomax Trading

Co., Ltd. (continued)

e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

BRFERER (F)

@ EREEXRHZENBAR 5=

EHBEESARNT ()

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Revenue YA 497,397 423,623
Expenses 2 455,983 389,546
Profit for the year F A A 41,414 34,077
Profit for the year attributable to RRTHEEB AEEFE AR
the owners of the Company 21,121 17,379
Profit for the year attributable to FEVERR A 25 FE (L A s
non-controlling interests 20,293 | 6,698
Other comprehensive (expense) income — fFAE M2 HE (FIZ) WA
for the year (10,245) 9,896
Other comprehensive (expense) income AN Bl A A FEAG F N EH Ath
for the year attributable to owners 2 (Fx)BA
of the Company (5,225) 5,048
Other comprehensive (expense) income  FE1%E I 1 7 JIE (1 FF W H 4th
for the year attributable to 2 (Fx)BA
non-controlling interests (5,020) 4,848
Total comprehensive income for the year & A2 HE U A 4858
31,169 43973
Total comprehensive income for the year  ZN‘Q Rl A A B1H F A
attributable to owners of the Company 2T YA 4858 15,896 22,427
Total comprehensive income for the year  FEIZE IR HE 25 FE(H F
attributable to non-controlling interests ZHEBALLTE 15,273 21,546
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests  [F] FE 28 A% 48 &5 FIT 2 A< MO A% B, 9,899 14,240
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4% & )& 8131 & M A 588 35,653 37,606
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEZBRERAFE 1,831 1,077
Net cash outflow from financing activities B & EENIR & 7 HF 5 (21,358) (33,226)
Net cash inflow WEmAFEE 16,126 5457

BHREBERALAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

46. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BEAFERER ()
(b)  Chengdu Xingang b  HEEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets MEEE 94,983 104,114
Non-current assets IEMENEE 189,684 208,001
Current liabilities mEEE 42,175 54,648
Non-current liabilities EMEEE 53,827 60,451
Total equity e M 188,665 197,016

Total equity attributable to owners RARIHEERE NEEERAE
of the Company 96,219 100,478

Total equity attributable to FEE R RIS AR

non-controlling interests 92,446 96,538
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 46 BARFEZRER (F)
Chengdu Xingang (continued) b  FEEE (&)
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T THETT
Revenue A 197,559 | 73,653
Expenses 53 197,844 171,584
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) R A (285) 2,069
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RARIEB AELFRN
owners of the Company (E18) &7 (145) 1,055
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to IR EREREA
non-controlling interests (E18) &7 (140) 1,014
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE (F)IA
for the year (8,066) 2,264
Other comprehensive (expense) income RAFIHEE ANEEFERNEM
for the year attributable to owners 2HE (FZ) WA
of the Company (4,114) [,155
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEFE IR AR FEAG FF N AR
for the year attributable to 2H (FAZ) WA
non-controlling interests (3,952) [,109
Total comprehensive (expense) income FRE2E(AX)KRARE
for the year (8,351) 4,333
Total comprehensive (expense) income RAREAANEIEFAZE
for the year attributable to the owners (X)) WALz
of the Company (4,259) 2,210
Total comprehensive (expense) income IR ERENFEANDE
for the year attributable to () WALz
non-controlling interests (4,092) 2,123
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBRERAFE 13,839 13,266
Net cash outflow from investing activities JREERSREFR (2,147) (11,480)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REEEIR S M HER (7,576) (2,823)
Net cash inflow (outflow) WERA O ) FEE 4,116 (1,037)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWIBFANALFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF 47, ERDPBZHMBERBRRRFE
THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company KRR ZBBARRR
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSET kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB Rz 779,389 779,389
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H {th & Ug Fx I8 917 849
Amounts due from subsidiaries e UL BT B A B 308 - 75,616
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNES 279 707
1,196 77,172
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H fth FE T 50IB 1,030 1,123
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B A B Z0IE 14,161 -
Unsecured bank borrowings EEAIRITIER 36,000 100,000
50,191 101,123
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEERHE (49,995) (23,951)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERRBERE 729,394 755,438
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRFEE
Share capital fig 7K 175,000 175,000
Reserves (Note) & (M5E) 554,394 580,438
TOTAL EQUITY DB 729,394 755,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZEWI8F 2A3IHIEFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF 47. ERDPFZHMBEERBRRAEE (E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company (continued) KRR ZBBARRK ()
Note: P& :
Movement in the Company’s reserves AR EEE
Share
Share Capital options Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
B
Bt EE RAEEE f#E REER E

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$O000
TATT AT TR T T

At | January 2017 201791 A 1B 404,520 (5) 13575 188,845 606,935
Loss and total comprehensive & 1B &2 H

expense for the year il < 4258 - - - (14,585) (14,585)
Dividend recognised as BRREDIKZRE

distribution (note 15) (HtaE15) - - - (17,500) (17,500)
Recognition of share based BRI R

payment expenses - - 5,588 - 5,588
At 31 December 2017 2017 127318 404,520 (5) 19,163 156,760 580,438
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE &2 H

expense for the year F X 4258 - - - (9,684) (9,684)
Dividend recognised as BRBDIKZIE

distribution (note 15) (HMI3E15) - - - (17,500) (17,500)
Recognition of share based RN R X

payment expenses - - [,140 - [,140
Lapse of share options R 2R 2K - - (876) 876 -
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12A31H 404,520 (5) 19,427 130,452 554,394
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFUMBRE

AEENBEREARRERZ 2 REUNREE
FPRBRE (ARERERERMBHRE)

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out below:

o

RESULTS £
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 20165 20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET FET FET FHET
Revenue WA 4,263,322 4,183,786 3,499,762 2,869,846 2,683,408
Profit before tax B 0 BT A 27,586 58,242 110978 244,439 246,867
Income tax expenses PG HIR X (22,744) (7,457) (10,526) (59,763) (43,920)
Profit for the year F N5 A 4,842 50,785 100,452 184,676 202,947
Attributable to: THA LR, :
Owners of the Company A/NCIE/ZEUN (5,801) 39,674 103,525 172,674 194,393
Non-controlling interest it 10,643 AREN (3,073) 12,002 8,554
4,842 50,785 100,452 184,676 202,947
ASSET AND LIABILITIES BERARE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20165 20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FHT FHT
Total assets BEBE 2,903,219 2,883,172 2,537,083 1,809,711 1,621,266
Total liabilities BiELE (1,677,376) (1,573,706) (1,322987) (713,022) (708,153)
Total equity i Sy 1,225,843 1,309,466 1,214,096 1,096,689 913,113
Attributable to: TH AL FE:
Owners of the Company RATEA A 1,079,429 1,155,030 1,059,290 1,058,352 876320
Non-controlling interest RS 146,414 154,436 154,806 38,337 36,793
1,225,843 1,309,466 1,214,096 1,096,689 913,113

Sinomax Group Limited
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